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CERTIFICATION OF INTERIM FILINGS ~ (¢0u?OR ATE FIHARCE

1, JEAN CLAUDE GANDUR, Chief Executive Officer of ADDAX PETROLEUM
CORPORATION, certify that:

1. Thave reviewed the interim filings (as this term is defined in Multilateral Instrument 52-
109 Certification of Disclosure in Issuers' Annual and Interim Filings) of Addax
Petroleum Corporation, (the issuer) for the interim period ending September 30, 2006;

2. Based on my knowledge, the interim filings do not contain any untrue statement of a
material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated or that is necessary to
make a statement not misleading in light of the circumstances under which it was made,
with respect to the period covered by the interim filings;

3. Based on my knowledge, the interim financial statements together with the other
financial information included in the interim filings fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the issuer, as of the date
and for the periods presented in the interim filings;

4, The issuer's other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and
maintaining disclosure controls and procedures for the issuer, and we have:

a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused them to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance that material information
relating to the issuer, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which the interim
filings are being prepared.

DATED: November 13, 2006

JEAR/CLJAUDE GANDUR
CHIKF EXECUTIVE OFFICER



Form 52-109F2
CERTIFICATION OF INTERIM FILINGS

I, MICHAEL EBSARY, Chief Financial Officer of ADDAX PETROLEUM
CORPORATION, certify that:

. Thave reviewed the interim filings (as this term is defined in Multilateral Instrument 52-

109 Certification of Disclosure in Issuers' Annual and Interim Filings) of Addax
Petroleum Corporation, (the issuer) for the interim period ending September 30, 2006;

. Based on my knowledge, the interim filings do not contain any untrue statement of a

material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated or that is necessary to
make a statement not misleading in light of the circumstances under which it was made,
with respect to the period covered by the interim filings;

. Based on my knowledge, the interim financial statements together with the other

financial information included in the interim filings fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the issuer, as of the date
and for the periods presented in the interim filings;

. The issuer's other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and

maintaining disclosure controls and procedures for the issuer, and we have:

a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused them to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance that material information
relating to the issuer, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which the interim
filings are being prepared.

DATED: Novcmber 13, 2006

-~

v
MICHAEL EBS
CHIEF FINAN L OFFICER
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Addax Petroleum Corporation

Consolidated Financial Statements

As at September 30, 2006 and for the three month and nine month
periods ended September 30, 2006 and 2005




ADDAX PETROLEUM CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (unaudited)
(US $000°s)

September 30, December 31,

2006 2005
ASSETS
Current
Cash and cash equivalents {note 9) 143,237 6,708
Accounts receivable (note 11) 194,215 131,613
Inventories (note 7) 111,212 62,753
Prepaid expenses 31,083 15,506
479,747 216,580
Partner loan receivable (note 13) 21,000 2,420
Future income taxes 50,525 155,884
Deferred financing charges 3,538 4,763
Property, plant and equipment (note 5) 1,818,704 487,023
Goodwill (note 3) 767,598 -
: 2,661,365 650,090
3,141,112 866,670
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY
Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 11) 303,802 160,113
Income taxes and royalties payable 475,783 203,626
Deferred revenue - 1,280
Short-term debt (note 4) 850,000 -
1,629,585 365,019
Asset retirement obligations 46,610 25,266
Future income taxes 340,231 93,093
Other long-term liabilities 8,423 4,909
Long-term debt - 80,000
395,264 203,268
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital {note 6) 738,621 20,010
Contributed surplus (note 6) 14,720 -
Retained eamings 362,922 278,373
1,116,263 298,383
3,141,112 866,670

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements




ADDAX PETROLEUM CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS (unaudited)

(US $000’s, except per share amounts)

Three month periods

Nine month periods

ended September 30, ended September 30,
2006 2005 2006 2005

REVENUE
Petroleum sales (note 11) 583,880 385,705 1,500,490 840,562
Royalties (115,010) (61,913) (278,314) (139,777)
Net sales 468,870 323,792 1,222,176 700,783
Other income 5,257 434 8,761 1,290
Total net revenue 474,127 324,226 1,230,937 702,075
EXPENSES
Depletion, depreciation and accretion (note 5) 87,098 50,309 209,262 108,120
Operating 56,355 39,276 157,472 104,009
Pre-acquisition (note 14) 4,310 2,240 20,652 4,700
Share-based compensation (note 6) 6,955 - 19,541 -
General and administrative 5,605 2,552 14,408 6,582
Interest on long-term debt 4,969 1,706 6,791 1,946
PanAfrican acquisition costs (note 3) 1,534 - 1,534 -
Other interest and finance income 248 278 570 398
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss {407) (635) (2,150} 834
Total expenses 166,667 95,726 428,080 226,589
Income before provision for income taxes 307,460 228,500 802,857 475,486
Provision for income taxes

Current (162,860) (107,393) (422,865) (256,904)

Future (69,385) (35,487) (190,341) (50,582)
Net income 75,215 85,620 189,651 168,000
Earnings per share, basic and diluted $0.51 $0.73 $£1.37 $1.44
Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding:
- basic 147,990,846 117,000,000 138,805,406 117,000,000
- diluted 148,036,198 117,000,000 138,850,759 117,000,000

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF RETAINED EARNINGS (unaudited)

(US $000°s)
Three month periods Nine month periods
ended September 30, ended September 30,
2006 2005 2006 2005
Retained earnings, beginning of period 294,621 239,683 278,373 157,303
Net income 75,215 85,620 189,651 168,000
Distribution of earnings (note 1) - - (48,188) -
Dividends (6,914) (35,000) (56,914) (35,000)
Retained eamnings, end of period 362,922 290,303 362,922 296,303

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements




ADDAX PETROLEUM CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (unaudited)

. (US $000’s)

Three month periods

Nine month periods

ended September 30, ended September 30,
2006 2005 2006 2005
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITES
Net income 75,215 85,620 189,651 168,000
Items not affecting cash (note 9) 169,261 77,604 424,790 154,196
244,476 163,224 614,441 322,196
Changes in non-cash working capital {note 9) 59,073 45,285 151,515 (37,868)
303,549 208,509 765,956 284,328
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Expenditures on property, plant and equipment {231,806) (117,054} (559,932) (276,174)
Purchase of PanAfrican, net of cash acquired {1,447,862) - (1,447,862) -
{1,679,668) (117,054) (2,007,794) {276,174)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issuance of short-term debt 850,000 - 850,000 125,000
Repayment of long-term debt - (90,000) (20,000) (50,000)
Debt issues costs - - - (3,500)
Dividends paid (6,914) (35,000) (56,914) (35,000)
.‘ Proceeds from share issue (note 1) 342,419 - 713,469 -
Distribution of earnings (note 1) - ' - (48,188) -
1,185,505 {125,000) 1,378,367 (3,500
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents {190,614) (33,545) 136,529 4,654
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 333,851 42,081 6,708 3,882
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period : 143,237 8,536 143,237 8,536

See supplemental cash disclosure (note 9)
See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements




ADDAX PETROLEUM CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudited)
September 30, 2006 and 2005

(USS$, except as noted. Tabular amounts in USS$ 000s, except as noted)

1. GENERAL

Addax Petroleum Corporation (“Addax Petroleum”) was incorporated under the Canada
Business Corporations Act on September 6, 2005 as a wholly owned subsidiary of The Addax
and Oryx Group Ltd. (“AOG”) for the purpose of acquiring all of the issued and outstanding
common shares of Addax Petroleum N.V., another whotly owned subsidiary of AOG, in
connection with the initial public offering of the common shares of Addax Petroleum (the
“lPO”).

On February 16, 2006, Addax Petroleum completed its IPO of 21.0 million common shares
and on February 24, 2006 it completed the issuance of an additional 2.1 million common
shares upon the exercise of an over-allotment option granted to the underwriters by Addax
Petroleum in connection with the IPO. Total net proceeds from the issuances were
approximately $371,050,000.

In conjunction with the completion of the IPO, Addax Petroleum acquired all of the issued
and outstanding common shares of Addax Petroleum N.V. for cash consideration of
$48,188,000 and the issuance of 117,000,000 common shares. The cash consideration has
been accounted for as a distribution of earnings. As AOG controls both Addax Petroleum and
Addax Petroleum N.V,, the acquisition occurred between entities under common control and
was accounted for in the books of Addax Petroleum as a continuity of interests. Under this
form of purchase accounting, Addax Petroleum is deemed to have acquired Addax Petroleum
N.V. at book value. Subsequent to the acquisition, Addax Petroleum financial statements
presented for comparative purposes reflect the financial position, results of operations and
cash flows as if Addax Petroleum and Addax Petroleum N.V. had been combined since the
inception of Addax Petroleum N.V.

Addax Petroleum completed a public offering of 14.75 million subscription receipts on
August 16, 2006. This included 1.75 million subscription receipts from the exercise of the
over-allotment option by the underwriters. These subscription receipts were exchanged for
common shares on September 6, 2006. Total net proceeds from the issuances were CDN§$
401,938,000, the proceeds of which were used to fund part of the acquisition of PanAfrican
Energy Corporation (Mauritius) Ltd. (“PanAfrican”) in Gabon (note 3).

Addax Petroleumn completed the acquisition of PanAfrican and Pan Ocean Energy UK Ltd. on
September 7, 2006 for CDN$1.605 billion in cash ($1.441 billion) including the assumption
of net debt totaling CDN$6.8 million ($6.1 million). Addax Petroleum funded this acquisition
by the second public offering to the market, new debt financing (see note 4) and internally
generated cash. Subsequent to the acquisition, Pan Ocean Energy UK Ltd. has been renamed
to Addax Petroleum UK Ltd. (“Addax UK™).

The operating and financial results for the three month and nine month periods ended
September 30, 2006 include PanAfrican’s and Addax UK’s operations from September 7,
2006. The comparative figures are for Addax Petroleum only.




ADDAX PETROLEUM CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudited)
(USS, except as noted. Tabular amounts in US$ 000s, except as noted)

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The interim consolidated financial statements of Addax Petroleum include Addax Petroleum,
its wholly-owned subsidiaries and its interests in joint ventures, and have been prepared
following the same accounting policies as the audited consolidated financial statements of
Addax Petroleum N.V. as at December 31, 2005. The interim financial statements contain
disclosures that are supplemental to Addax Petroleum annual audited consolidated financial
statements, Certain disclosures that are normally required to be included in the notes to the
annual audited consolidated financial statements have been condensed. These financial
statements should be read in conjunction with Addax Petroleum N.V.’s audited consolidated
financial statements and notes thereto for the year ended December 31, 2005.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess purchase price over the fair value of identifiable assets and
liabilities acquired in business combinations. Goodwili is not amortized but is assessed for
impairment annually, or more frequently as events occur that may indicate impairment.
Impairment is assessed by comparing the fair value of each reporting unit to the book value of
the reporting unit. If the fair value of the reporting unit is less than the book value then
impairment of goodwill is measured by deducting the fair value of the reporting unit’s
individual assets and liabilities from the fair value of the reporting unit to determine the
implied fair value of goodwill. This is compared to the amount of the book value of the
reporting unit’s goodwill. Any excess of the book value of goodwill over the implied fair
value of goodwill is the impairment amount. Addax Petroleum’s reporting units are consistent
with the cost centres.




ADDAX PETROLEUM CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudited)
(USS, except as noted. Tabular amounts in US$ 000s, except as noted)

3. ACQUISITION

On September 7, 2006, Addax Petroleum acquired the shares of PanAfrican and Addax UK
for a cash consideration of $1.52 billion and the results of these operations have been included
in the consolidated financial statements from that date. Approximately $1.5 million of costs
relating to employee redundancy and office closure costs were expensed.

The acquisition was accounted for by the purchase method of accounting and the estimated
allocation of fair value to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed as at September 7, 2006

was:

Property, plant and 969,980

equipment
Goodwill 767,598
Current assets 97,066
Total assets acquired 1,834,644
Current liabilities 23,725
Future income taxes 274,547
Asset retirement obligation 19,532
Total liabilities assumed 317,804
Net assets acquired 1,516,840

Currént assets include cash of $69 million.

Although the estimated allocation of fair value to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed is
subject to changes as additional information becomes available, the final allocation is not
expected to differ materially from the estimated allocation.

The goodwill was assigned to the Gabon cost centre.

4. BANK DEBT

Addax Petroleum put in place a new debt facility (The “Facility”) of $1 billion to finance, in
part, the acquisition of PanAfrican (note 3). As at September 30, 2006, $850 miltion had been
drawn on the facility. This facility is due for repayment on August 30, 2007.

Addax Petroleum is currently in the process of replacing the Facility with a similar but long
term facility, and does not expect to repay the Facility out of current cash funds.

Amounts drawn under the Facility bear interest at the Lenders’ LIBOR plus an applicable
margin of 1.75% for the first 6 months and then 2.25% for the 6 remaining months. The
effective interest rate on the credit facility for the period ended September 30, 2006 was
7.07%.




ADDAX PETROLEUM CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudited)
(USS, except as noted. Tabular amounts in US$ 000s, except as noted)

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

September 30, December 31,

2006 2005
Oil and natural gas properties 2,420,382 390,914
Accumulated depletion (616,206) (407,644)
1,804,176 483,270
Corporate assets 18,764 7,289
Accumulated depreciation (4,236) (3,536)
14,528 3,753
Balance 1,818,704 487,023

Included in property, plant and equipment are capitalized interest of $17.0 million (2005 $8.3
million)

Property, plant and equipment, net of accumulated depletion and depreciation, by cost centre
is as follows:

September 30, December 31,

2006 2005

Cost Centre

Nigeria 656,025 468,289
Cameroon 12,417 5,401
Gabon 995,614 9,580
Iraq 31,186 -
Joint Development Zone 108,934 -
Corporate assets 14,528 3,753

Balance, end of period 1,818,704 487,023




ADDAX PETROLEUM CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudited)
September 30, 2006 and 2005

(USS$, except as noted. Tabular amounts in US$ 000s, except as noted)

Included in property, plant and equipment are certain costs not subject to depletion and
depreciation as follows:

September 30, December 31,

2006 2005
Unproved properties
Carneroon 12,417 5,401
Gabon 10,398 9,580
Iraq 31,186 -
Joint Development Zone @ 108,934 -
Nigeria 93,460 -

256,395 14,981

(1) Irag

Beginning in the second quarter of 2006, costs relating to the Taq Taq field in northern Iraq
were capitalized. Exploration and development activities in Iraq may be subject to economic
and political considerations such as the risks of war, actions by terrorist or insurgent groups,
community disturbances, expropriation, nationalization, renegotiation, forced change or
nullification of existing contracts or royalty rates, unenforceability of contractual rights,
adverse changes to laws (whether of general application or otherwise) or the interpretation
thereof, and foreign governmental regulations that favour or require the awarding of contracts
to local contractors or require foreign contractors to employ citizens of, or purchase supplies
from, a particular jurisdiction.

(2) Joint Development Zone

In March 2006, Addax Petroleum entered into three production sharing contracts (“PSCs™)
with the Joint Development Authority which administers the Joint Development Zone
(“JDZ”) between Nigeria and Sdo Tomé e Principe.

(3) Nigeria

On October 16, 2006 Addax Petroleum entered into a PSC with the Nigerian National
Petroleum Corporation (“NNPC™) for OPL 291, a deepwater block offshore Nigeria. Prior to
this, Addax entered into a farm-out agreement with Starcrest Nigeria Energy Limited

(“Starcrest”) to obtain a participating interest of 72.5% in, and become the operator of, OPL
291.

Pursuant to the farm-out agreement, Addax Petroleum is obligated to pay:
« To NNPC, 100% of the OPL 291 PSC signature bonus of $55 million
+ To Starcrest, a farm-in fee of $35 million; and
+ Starcrest’s share of OPL 291 exploration and development costs which will be

reimbursed to Addax Petroleum from Starcrest’s share of production revenues from
OPL 291.




ADDAX PETROLEUM CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudited)
(USS, except as noted. Tabular amounts in US§ 000s, except as noted)

The signature bonus and farm-in fee have been paid in installments in September and October
2006. These costs are capitalized when paid.

6. SHARE CAPITAL
Addax Petroleum is authorized to issue an unlimited number of common shares and an
unlimited number of preferred shares, issuable in series. There are no preferred shares

outstanding.

Issued and Outstanding

Nine month period ended

September 30, 2006
Common
Shares Amount
Balance, beginning of period 117,000,100 20,010
Issue pursuant to initial public offering 23,100,000 371,050
Issue pursuant to second public offering 14,750,000 342,419
Shares issued for Director services (note 11) 12,425 321
Issued under employee share award program 199,699 4,821
Balance, end of period 155,062,224 738,621

On September 14, 2006, the Company paid a dividend in the amount of CDN $0.05 per
common share. In addition to holders of common shares, holders of subscription receipts (note 1)
on the record date of August 24, 2006 received the dividend for each subscription receipt held.

Share-Based Compensation

Share-based compensation relates to share awards to employees and directors of Addax
Petroleum some of which are vested immediately and some over a three year period. AOG
awarded 1,000,000 common shares of Addax Petroleum to current employees and directors
during the second quarter of the year. The grant dates of the shares were May 16, 2006 and
June 30, 2006. The shares vest as follows: 203,050 shares immediately on May 16, 265,650
shares on June 30; 265,650 shares on January 31, 2007; and 265,650 shares on January 31,
2008. The fair value of the common shares granted was $26,853,000, based on the trading
price of the common shares on the date of grant, and this compensation is being amortized
over the vesting period.

On August 31, 2006, Addax Petroleum awarded 599,097 common shares to current
employees and directors as part of a new management compensation plan. These shares vest
as follows: one third on the grant date, one third one year after the grant date and one third
two years after the grant date. The fair value of the common shares granted was $14,631,000,
based on the trading price of the common shares on the date of grant, and this compensation is
being amortized over the vesting period.

10




ADDAX PETROLEUM CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudited)
September 30, 2006 and 2005

(USS$, except as noted. Tabular amounts in US$ 000s, except as noted)

7. INVENTORIES

September 30, December 31,

2006 2005
Oil products 33,584 19,269
Materials and supplies 77,628 43,484
Balance 111,212 62,753

8. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Addax Petroleum uses certain derivative financial instruments to manage its commodity
prices and foreign currency exposures. These financial instruments are not used for trading or
speculative purposes. Addax Petroleum had the following financial derivatives outstanding as

at September 30, 2006:

Foreign currency forward
Remaining term

QOctober 2006 - December 2006

Amount ($000s) $1,500 / month
Average exchange rate

(United States dollar / Swiss Franc) 1.263

Contract liability ($000s) $(30.5)

9. CASH FLOWS

(a) Items not affecting cash

Three month periods

Nine month periods

ended September 30, ended September 30,
2006 2005 2006 2005
Future income taxes 69,385 35,487 190,341 50,582
Depletion, depreciation and accretion 87,098 50,309 209,262 108,120
Change in fair value of derivatives (254) (583) (24) (250)
Share-based compensation 7,276 - 19,862 -
Other items 5,756 (7,609 5,349 {4,256)
Total items not affecting cash 169,261 77,604 424,790 154,196

il




ADDAX PETROLEUM CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudited)
September 30, 2006 and 2005

(USS$, except as noted. Tabular amounts in US$ 000s, except as noted)

(b) Changes in non-cash working capital

Three month periods Nine month periods
ended September 38, ended September 30,
2006 2005 2006 2005
Accounts receivable 45212 (18,886) (4,969) (61,714)
Prepaid expenses (14,230) 357 (15,457) 1,217
Inventories (12,797) (29,940) (36,620) (48,393)
Partner advance 10,358 (2,420) (18,580) (2,420)
Accounis payable and accrued liabilities (21,122) (78,965) (43,736) (28,396)
Tax and royaities payable 51,652 156,781 272,157 85,585
Deferred revenue - (423) (1,280) (2,530)
Other long-term liabilities - 18,783 - 18,783
Changes in non-cash working capital 59,073 45,285 151,515 (37,868)
(c) Other cash flow information
Three month periods Nine month periods
Ended September 30, ended September 30,
2006 2005 2006 2005
Interest paid (1,391) (4,535) 2,574) (9,211)
Income taxes paid (88) (7,904) (284) (7,904)

Addax Petroleum pays taxes and royalties in Nigeria through government liftings taken-in-
Kind. For the nine month period ended September 30, 2006, such government liftings totalled
$393,301,000 (nine months ended September 30, 2005: $325,744,000, three months ended
September 30, 2006 and 2005: $197,692,000 and $107,189,000 respectively).

(d) Cash and cash equivalents

September 30, December 31,

: 2006 2005
Cash and cash equivalents consists of:
Cash 142,058 6,680
Deposits 1,179 28
143,237 6,708

12



ADDAX PETROLEUM CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudited)
September 30, 2006 and 2005

(USS$, except as noted. Tabular amounts in US$ 000s, except as noted)

10, INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES

Included in the consolidated financial statements are the following items that represent the
Addax Petroleum’s interests in the jointly controlled assets, liabilities and expenses of its joint
ventures.

September 30, December 31,

2006 2005
Current assets 69,351 6,749
Non-current assets 323,853 14,982
Current liabilities (324,103) (40,683)
Non-current liabilities (9,493) -
Net liabilities (59,608) 18,952
Expenses 12,757 10,915

11. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The following transactions took place between the Corporation and AOG and its other
subsidiary companies:

Three month periods- Nine month periods-

ended September 30, ended September 34,

2006 2005 2006 2005
Sales to Addax B.V. 370,281 278,383 899,931 514,606
Charges:
Addax Bunkering Services (5,917) (11,437) (15,836) (11,437
AOG Advisory Services Ltd (1,605) (561) (2,855) (1,683)
Addax B.V. (1,878) (918) (5,480) (3,588)
Other (734) (1,293) (761) (1,920)

The sales to Addax B.V., a marketer of Addax Petroleum crude oil, were made on the same
terms and conditions as with Addax B.V.’s non-related customers. The charges from AOG
Advisory Services Ltd., include management services, trademark licence and information
technology support. Charges from Addax Bunkering Services are for the purchase of fuel for
Addax Petroleum FPSO’s and other marine support vessels.

Other includes charges from Addax Limited for the refund of services paid on behalf of
Addax Petroleum and directors’ compensation of $720,000 of which $155,000 has been paid
in cash and $321,390 has been paid in shares of Addax Petroleum, the remaining balance
remains unpaid.
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ADDAX PETROLEUM CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudited)

(US$, except as noted. Tabular amounts in US$ 000s, except as noted)

Amounts due from (to) related parties as included in accounts receivable and accounts payable
in the consolidated balance sheet are as follows:

Addax B.V.
AOG Advisory Services Ltd.
Addax Limited

September 30, December 31,
2006 2005
86,624 109,694
3 281
47 (2,943)

12. GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

Due to the acquisition of PanAfrican and Addax UK Ltd., Addax Petroleum now operates in

Nigeria and in Gabon.

Nine month periods
ended September 30, 2006

Nigeria Gabon Corporate Total

REVENUE
Petroleum sales 1,479,545 20,945 - 1,500,490
Royalties (274,423) (3,891) - (278,314)
Net sales 1,205,122 17,054 - 1,222,176
Other income 954 85 7,722 8,761
Total net revenue 1,206,076 17,139 7,722 1,230,937
EXPENSES
Depletion, depreciation and accretion 193,902 10,696 4,664 209,262
Operating 151,574 5,282 616 157,472
Pre-acquisition ‘ - - 20,652 20,652
Share-based compensation - - 19,541 19,541
General and administrative - 100 14,308 14,408
Interest on long-term debt - - 6,791 6,791
PanAfrican acquisition costs - 567 967 1,534
Other interest and finance income - - 570 570
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss (1,482) 129 (797) (2,150)
Total expenses 343,994 16,774 67,312 428,080
Income before provision for income taxes 862,082 365 (59,590) 802,857
Provision for income taxes

Current (419,338) (3,243) (284) (422,865)

Future (192,688) 2,347 - (190,341)
Net income 250,056 (531) (59,874) 189,651
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ADDAX PETROLEUM CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudited)
(USS, except as noted. Tabular amounts in US$ 000s, except as noted)

Three month periods
ended September 30, 2006

Nigeria Gabon Caorporate Total

REVENUE
Petroleum sales 562,935 20,945 - 583,880
Rovalties (111,119) (3,891) - (115,010)
Net sales 451,816 17,054 - 468,870
Other income 512 85 4.660 5,257
Total net revenue 452,328 17,139 4,660 474,127
EXPENSES
Depletion, depreciation and accretion 74,654 10,696 1,748 87,098
Operating 50,808 5,282 265 56,355
Pre-acquisition - - 4,310 4,310
Share-based compensation - - 6,955 6,955
General and administrative - 100 5,503 5,605
Interest on long-term debt - - 4,969 4,969
PanAfrican acquisition costs - 567 967 1,534 -
Other interest and finance income - - 248 248
Foreign exchange {gain)/loss 579 129 (1,115) (407)
Total expenses 126,041 16,774 23,852 166,667
Income before provision for income taxes 326,287 365 (19,192) 307,460
Provision for incotme taxes

Current (159,529) (3,243) (88) (162,860)

Future (71,732) 2,347 - (69,385)
Net income 95,026 (531) (19,280) 75,215

13. PARTNER LOAN RECEIVABLE

Pursuant to the joint venture agreement, Addax Petroleum has advanced $21 million to a joint
venture partner. The advance is repayable on demand to Addax Petroleum. It is not expected
that the repayment will be requested in the next twelve months.

14. PRE-ACQUISITION EXPENSES

Included in pre-acquisition expenses are costs related to Addax Petroleum New Venture
activity. Related expenditures are charged to the income statement pending finalization of
Addax Petroleum’s rights to a license. These costs can include seismic purchases, studies (in-
house and external) and consuiting.

15




. ADDAX PETROLEUM CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudited)
(USS$, except as noted. Tabular amounts in US$ 000s, except as noted)

15. EVENT SUBSEQUENT TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

On November 10, 2006, the Board of Directors approved a dividend to shareholders of record
on November 30, 2006 in the amount of CDN $0.05 per common share to be paid on
December 14, 2006.
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e '_ Third Quarter Highlights

- Selected highughts“'

. Three Months,

i , :‘Nine Months .
. ' : : ended 30 September : ended 30 September:
- (% mr.'non unress otnerwrse stafed) 2006 2005, % Change - 2006 2005 ' % Change
“FINANCIAL: ~ e e o : =
F'etroleum Sales before Royalues 583.9 385.7 51% 1,500.5 ' 840.6 79%
Funds Flow. Frarn Operatrons 244.5 163.2 50% 614.4 322.2 81%
. FFFQ per share ($/share) - 1.65 1.40 18% 4.43 275 61%
Net Income 75.2 85.6. -12% - 189.7 168.0 13%
Eamings per share ($/share) 0.51 073 - -30% 1.37 1.44 5%
Weighted | average common shares. . . - 148.0 117.0 26% - 138.8 117.0 18%
outstandrng (mllllons) i ' ;
. Capltal Expendltures net of d|sposmons 2141 117.0 83% 688.8 276.1 149%
 OPERATIONAL: ' L
Average workmg mterest grnss oil productron o
(mbbls/day): i o
Nigeria 89.1 742 20% 7834 §2.0 4%
Gabon . 2.4 - - 0.9 - -
- Totat 915 74.2 ©23% 84.0 62.0 35%
Prices, expenses and netbacks (SIbbl)

‘Nigeria : .

" Average reahzed pnce 67.90 59.88 13% 65.41 52.1 25%
Operating expense - 6.11 8.10 0% 6.7 8.42 4%
Operating n__ett_)ggk T 48.03 4414 9% 46.43 37.15 25%

Gabon
.Average realized pnce 60.48 - - 60.48 - -
Operating expense |, 15.25 - - 15.25 . - -

33.99 - - 33.99 - -

- . Operating netback .

T FR. B
1) Af amounts prosented are in Unted States doffars unfess othanwiss indicated.

3 P_etroter.lm' sales in Q3 2006 amounted to $5839 &
~ million, an’increase of 51%: over petroleum sales

of $385.7 million in Q3 2005.

< Funds flow from operations was $244.5 million in

" Q3, an increase -of 50% over.the comparable

~ quarter in 2005 of $163.2 million.

- % Funds ﬂow from operatlons per share in Q3 .
:ncreased 18% to $1.65 as compared $1 40in Q3

2005..

to $59.88/bbi realized in Q3 2005.

Q3 were $60 48/bbl.

< Average reahzed crude oni sales price in Nigeria .
- in.Q3 increased 13% to $67.90/bbl as compared

+ Capital expenditures during the quarter were

L

Average reatlzed crude oil sales pr:ce in Gabon in

$214.1 million as-compared to $117.0 million in

Q3 2005. The capital expenditures for Q3 include N
development of $118.9 million, license acquisition

of $23.0 million and exploration and appraisal of

$61.3 million.
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& A dividend of $0.05 per share was declared on
_August 1, 2006 and paid on September 14, 2008.

PanAfrican was acquired on September 7.
PanAfrican has 8 licences covering 716 hectares
of which 4 licenses are in production.
Development work continues to increase the
pipeline capacity onshore and 2 drilling rigs were
in operation on the Addax Petroleum Gabon
acreage.

Development work in the Okwori and Nda fields
in OML126 (previously reported as OPL90) in
Nigeria continued.

Development of OML123 in Nigeria continued
including the installation of the new FPSO, which
commenced operation subsequent to the quarter
end, resulting in only 5 days of shutdown.

Appraisal work of the Taq Taq field in the
Kurdistan Region of Iraq continued with
commencement of drilling operations.

Exploration work in all blocks of the JDZ

continued _ _
Appraisal of the Okwok property in Nigeria
continued with the commencement of drilling
operations.




Third Quarter Financial Update
INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

Addax Petroleum completed its initial public offering of 21 millien common shares on February 18, 2006, On February 24, 2006 the issuance of an
additional 2.1 million common shares was completed after the exercise of the over-alloiment option, Gross proceeds of these issizances was CDNS
450,450,000. ’

SECOND PUBLIC OFFERING

Addax Petroleum completed a second public offering of 14.75 million common shares on September €, 2006. This inciuded 1.75 million shares from
the exercise of the over-allotment option by the underwriters. These shares were exchanged for subscription receipts issued to the market in August
2006. Gross proceeds of these issuances were CDN$ 401,937 500; the proceeds from this offering were used to finance the acquisition of
PanAfrican in Gabon.

DEBT FINANCING

Addax Petroleum arranged a new debt facility fo finance, in part, the acquisition of PanAfrican. This involves a senior secured acquisition bridge
facility underwritten by BNP Paribas, Standard Chartered Bank and Natexis Bank Populaires totalling $1 billion. As at September 30, 2006 $850
million had been drawn down, This facility is due for renewal on August 30, 2007, however Addax Petroleum is arranging a long term facility to
replace it. .

Thirdre'QllJart-er Operational Upd'ate
HIGHLIGHTS | e

&

‘During the third quarter Addax Petroleum expanded its production operatrons beyond ngena by |ntegral|ng the PanArncan operauons in Gabon
acquired on September 7th Production operations highlights include:

. Attnbutable average oil preduction during the quarter of 91,500bbis/d. Production for the prior quaner was 79 QOObbls.'d

« By quarter end was operating a tota) of seven drilling rigs comprising four land rigs {one each in N|gena and Kurdistan and two in Gabon)
two jack-up rigs {OML123 and Okwok) and one semi-submersible (OML128). - .

» A production milestone of exceeding 100,0000bls/d when the first Nda field development well was brought on stream.

«  Safe and successfut change-out of the Knock Taggart FPSO for the larger Knock Adoon FPSO on OML123, offshore Nigeria in
September.

‘s Added 3 production wells offshore Nigeria,
»  Started the multi-well exploration and appraisal program on the Okwok field close to OML123 offshore Nigeria and completed in October

«  Finished drilling and coring operations on Taqg Taq 4 well and prepared to run completion equipment in preparation for flow testing

ACQUISITION

Addax Petroleum oornpleted the acquisition of PanAfrican Energy Corporation (Mauritius) Ltd. {"PanAfrican”) and Pan-Ocean Energy UK Ltd on
September 7, 2008 for CDN$1.605 billion in cash ($1.441 billion) and assumption of net debt {olalling CON$6.8 million ($6.1 million), afer the
approval from the Royal Court of Jersey and certain Pan-Ocean shareholders. Addax Petroleum funded this acquisition by the second public
offering to the market, new debt financing and intemally generated cash. Subsequent to the acquisition, Pan-Ocean Energy UK Ltd has been
renamed Addax Petroleum UK Ltd (Addax UK.

PanaAfrican has developed a balanced portfolio of producing properties, development opportunities and exploration potential in eight licenses in
Gabon. Four of PanAfrican's licences are onshore and four are offshare, of which seven are pursuant to Production Sharing Contracts and one,
Ibekelia, is pursuant to a technical evaluation agreement. Four of the licences (Maghena, Panthers NZE, Etame and Remboug) are producing.

At the acquisition date PanAfrican was producing approximately 10,1 mbhls/day (average of July and August production 2006} of medium to light
gravity crude oll (29* to 36° API} in Gabon, West Africa. Based on the report of their extemal reserve engineers, as of Decamber 31, 2005,
PanAfdcan had proved plus probabie reserves of 87.5 mmbbls and proved ptué probable plus possible-reserves of 121.3 mmbbls. PanAfrican also
has several exploration opportunities on its 718,487 net acres of land, 55% of this acreage is offshore.

The operating and. financial results for the quarter include PanAfrican's resuits from September 7, 2006 The oomparatrve figures are for Addax
Petroleum only, unfess stated otherwise.
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PRODUCTION AND DEVELOPMENT OPERATIONS

Addax Petroleum's production cperations occur on its Nigerian offshore praperties OML123 and OML126 (previpusly OPLB0) and onshore property
OML 124 and the acquired Gabon onshore and offshore properties,

Nigeria

In:Nigeria, where Addax. Petroleurn holds 100% interest in.its producing properties, production averaged 89,100 bbls/d.of which 85% was producad
offshore from OML123 and OML126. A significant corporate milestone was achieved during the quarter where, for the first time in Addax
‘Petroleum’s history it produced over 100,000bbis in a smgte day, all in Nigera.

OML123 (Offshore)

Production from 0ML123 during the quarter averaged 48,400 bbls/day compared to 51,838 bbisiday in the previous guarter. All OML123
- production was shut-in from September 24th through to September 28th while the Knock Taggart FPSO was safely and successhtlly changed-out
for the larger Knock Adoon FPSO. Over the following three days production was steadily restored to pre shut-in levels. The Knock Adoon is
designed to store up to 1,700,000 barmels of crude oil compared to storage capacity of 1,000,000 barrels on the replaced Knock Taggart The
Knock Adoon FPSO also offers a processing capacity of 60m bbls/dayay of crude oil and a total liquids (oil and water) processing capacity of 140m
bbis/dayay. Incorporated in this facilities upgrade and expansion is an off-loading buoy terminal to allow more efficient crude oil offtoading and to
accommodate larger tankers. The replacement of the OML123 FPSQ was 2 major marine project that required greater than 2 million man-hours.
The complexity of the change-out operation itself required up to 18 marine Support vessels and 3 onshore support bases coordinating the
simulianeous shutdown of all associated production facilities on OML123.

Other major projects ongoing during the quarter include the Oron field development and redevelopment of the Adanga processing facility.

Drilling continued on OML123 during the quarter and was not disrupted during the FPS0 change-out. Two additional:production wells were brought
on stream within the quarter, but ng activities concentrated on drilling and preparing wells for completlon during the fourth quarter.

OML 126 (Offshore}
Production from OML126 during the quarter averaged 36,700 bbls/day compared to 24,300 bbis/day in the previcus quarer.

. - Development actmty has been cenfined to the drilling and:subsea tie-back of development welis on the Okwori and Nda fields using the Scarabeo-
3 semi-submersible drifing ng Dur:ng the quarter, three new wells were brought on stream.

OML 124 (Onshore)
‘Production from 0ME.12_4 during the quarter averaged 4,000 bhis/day compared to 3,763 bbis/day in the previous quarter.
Gahon '

"Addax Petroleum completed the acquisition of PanCcean Energy's Gabon operations on September 7th; this operational report references the
entire quarter. Addax Petroleum’s production operations in Gabon centre around the onshore, operated Maghena and Panthere NZE producing oil
fields and the Shelloperated Koula field presently in development planning and the offshore, Vazlkco-operated producing Etame oil field, the
_Avouma oil field under development and the Ebouri oil field presently in: development planning. Cumufative production attributable to Addax

| Petroleum since September 7th was 0:2mmbbis equating 10 a daily production rate for the period of.2,400 bbls/day.
i Onshere Operalions
|

Production from the Maghena and Panthere NZE oil fields continued to utilize the Total-operated Avocette terminal for oil export which restricted the
fields' actual produc:ive capacity. Maghena continued to produce through a 5,000 bblsiday Earty Production Facility during the quarter while wark
continued on the oonslruclnon of new 30,000 bbls/day Central Production Facility oil processing facililies at the Maghena field, a new 33 kilometer,
10-inch export ptpehne from Malhena to Coucal ang: addmonal pumping capacity at the Total-operated Coucal facility,. These facilities are
substantially compiéte and the new productton and export system is expected {0 be operational during the fourth guarter of 2006 thereby removing
hitherto processing and export constraints, Addax Petroleum’s export pipeline capacity through the end of the year will be 30,000 bbls/day with
further capacity expansion under discussion.

The third quarter saw a continuation of the successful 2006 Maghena onshore drilling prograzr:me, with the completion of two further horizontal
development wells and the spudding of a third well. in the first three quarters of 2008, a total of seven horzontal davelopment wells have been
successfully drlled and completed in the Maghena field.

At the end of the second quarter, the driling rig the Simpler 101 was mobilized 1o the Panthere NZE field and drilled and completed the

development well with a 700 metre horizontal drain in the Oentale reservoir. The rig was then moved to the eastem fiank of the field to drill the
Panthere NZE Easl appraisal well-with better than expected results as it encountered the reservoir at a shallowast level yet in the field. Drilling of a

. horizontal development well followed. ‘The results of the appraisal well and subsequent horizontal development well suggest matenel easterly
extension of the Panthere NZE not prev:ously recognized.
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On the Shell-operated Awoun permit, the Koula' West appraisal well was spudded in September and concluded in Cctober but did not confirm a
westerly extension of the field. '

QOffshore Operations

Offshore production and development operations were focused on the producing Etame field and the satellite Avouma field currently under
development, Government approval has been received to proceed to develop a further satellite, the Eboun field,

The Etame gross average field production was 17,719 bbls/day for the quarter The field co-venturers are’looking to further optimize the field to
maintain these levels of production. Only a minor shut-down of the FPSQ is now anticipated to enable the tiein of the Avouma field and fo
complete some de-bottlenecking modifications to the process equipment.

Avouma development continues to be on schedule and on budget. During the third quarter of 2006, the Avouma preduction platform was installed
and pre-commissioning aclivities are ongoing. The export pipeline to the Etame field FPSO is in place and the flex riser is due to be installed in
November. The drilling rig has now arrived at location to begin drilling the two development wells.

EXPLORATION & APPRAISAL OPERATIONS

During the quarter Addax Pstroleum has been: progressing exploration and appraisal activities on the Ckwok field in OMLE7 close to 0ML123
offshore ngena and on the Tag Taq field in: the Kurdistan Region of Irag. On its other exploration properties, namely the JOZ blocks, OPL225
offshore Nigeria and ‘Ngosso offshore Camemon Addax Petroieum continues to process and interpret 3D -seismic data recently acquired to plan
2007/2008 explorauon drilling. ‘

Nigeria (OMLE7, Okwok)

Following acquisition of a 40% participating interest in the Okwok field in late June Addax Petroleum, in its capacity as Technical Adviser on the
field, commenced a multi-well exploration and appraisal program using the GlobalSanteFe High Island IX jack-up. The 2006 Okwok campaign was
completed in October and the High Istand 1X, which remains under contract to Addax Petroleurn, has now moved to OML123 close by to undertake
development and exploration drilling. '

The objectives of the 2006 Okwok campangn were met and demonstrated the presence of medlum to llghl oils and non-optimized well fioiw

capability in:excess of 1,200 bbis/day. Well results are being incorporated into-revised subsurface models to guide 2007 appraisal and potennal
early producnon development schemes.

Kurdistan Region of lraq (Taq Taqg)

. The drilling and coring of Addax Petroleum’s first well, on the Taq Taq field in the Kurdistan region of Irag was concluded during the quarter. Since
the end of the quaner the well has been in the process of been completed ang flow tested. Wireline pressure data and core data confirm the
presence of an oil column in excess of 500 meters and, at least in the region of the well, an axtensive and productive fracture system, Qperations
at Tag Tag have prooeeded slower than mtghl otherwise have been anticipated but progress has been consistent with a new operahon m a
Ioglsllca!iy dlff cult location, :
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Management's Discussion & Analysis

The following Management's Discussion and Analysis of Addax Petroleum Corporation (*"Addax Petroleum?) is dated November X, 2006 and should
be read in conjunctbn with Addax Petroleum's interim consolidated financial statements as at September 30, 2006 and for the three and nine month
' periods ended Seprember 30, 2006 and 2005 tagether with the notes thereto and the consolidated financial statements of Addax Patrofeum N.V. as
-at and for the year ended December 31, 2005 togen';er with the notes thereto and refated Management's Discussion and Analysis. The
consolidated financial statements presentod herein are those of Addax Petroleum and its subsitiaries. Except as otherwise indicated, certain

' defined words and terms used herein have the meaning set forth in Addax Petroleum’s Annual information Form dated March 28, 2006 and which
. Is available at www.sedar.com. ANl amounis presented are in Uniled Stales doliars unless otherwise indicated.

- LEGAL NOTICE ~ FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

" Certain statements in this report constifufe forward-looking statements under applicable secunties legislation. Such statements are generally
" identifiable by the terminology used, such as “anlicipate™, "befiove", “intend”, “expect”, “plan”, “estimate”, "budget”, “outiook” or other similar wording.

Forward-looking information includes, but is not limited to, reference o business strategy and goals, future capital and other expenditures, reserves
and resources estimates, driling plans, construction and repair activities, the submission of development plans, seismic activity, production levels
and the sources of growth thereof. project development schedules and results, results of exploration activities and dates by which certain areas may
- be developed or may come on-stream, royalties payable, financing and capital activities, conlingent abiliities, and environmental matters. By its
very nature, such forward-looking information requires Addax Petroleum to make assumptions that may not materialize or that may not be accurate.
This forward-iooking information is subject to known and unknown nisks.and uncertainties and other factors, which may cause actual results, levels
of activity and achievements to differ materiaily from those expressed or implied by such information. Such factors include, but are not limited to;
dmprecision of reserves and resources estimates, “ulfimate- recovery of reserves, prices of oil and natural gas, general economic, market and

 business conditions; industry capacity; compelitive action by other campanies; fluctuations in oil prices; refining and marketing margins, the ability to

produce and transport crude oil and natural gas to markels; the effects of weather and climate conditions; the resufts of exploration and
development driling and related activities, fluctuation in interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates; the ability of suppliers o meet
‘commitments; aclions by governmental authorities, including increases in taxes; decisions or approvals of adminisirative tribunals; changes in
.environmental and other regulations; risks attendant with'oil and gas operations. both domestic and International; international political events;
expected rates of returmn; and other factors, many of which are beyond the control of Addax Petroleum. Mors specifically, production may be
affected by such factors as exploration success, start-up timing and success, facilty reliability, reservoir performance and natural decline rates,
water handling, and drilling progress. Capital expenditures may be affected by cost pressures associated with new capital projects, including labour
and material supply. project management, drilling rig rates and availability, and seismic costs. These factors are discussed in greater detall in filings
made by Addax Petro.'eum with the Canadfan prownc:an' secunnes commissions.

Readers are caut.voned that the foregomg fist of :mpodant factors aﬂ‘ectmg forward-looking information is not exhaustive. Furthermore, the forward-
looking information contained in this quarterly report is made as of the date of this report and, except as required by applicable law, Addax
Petroleurn does not undertake any obligation to update publicly or to revise any of the included forward-fooking information, whether as a result of

. new m!onnatmn future events or otherwise. The forward-locking information’ canramad in this report is expressly qualified by this cautionary
L statement :

i

- NON-GAAP MEASURES

" Addax Petfrofeum defines “Funds Flow From Operations® or "FFFQ” as nel cash from operating aclivities before changes in non-cash working

ca_pr'taf. Management belloves that.in addition to net income, FFFQ is a useful measure-as it demonstrates Addax Petroleum’s ability to generate
the cash necessary fo repay debt Or fund future growth through capital investment. Addax Patroleum also assesses its performance utilizing

' -Operating Netbacks which it defines as the per bamel profit margin associated with the production and sale of crude oil and is calcufated s the

funds flow from operations per barrel sold, prior to corporate charges. FFFO and Operating Netback are not recognized measures under
Canadian GAAP. Readers are cautioned that these measures should not be construed as an altemative lo net income or cash flow from

- operations determined in accordance with Canadian GAAP or as an indication of Addax Petroleum’s performance. Addax Petroleum's method of -
calculating this measure may differ from other companies and accordingly, it may not be comparable to measures used by other companies.
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Management's Discussion & Analysis
'PRODUCTION

Exienswe continuing capltal investment in 2006 has resulted in record levels of production in the first nine months of 2006, representing an.
‘increase of 49% over the same period in 2005, ' Production also increased in Q3 over the previous quarter by 23% driven by increased

» production at OML126 and the acquisition of PanAfrican properties in Gabon. Over 80% of Addax Petroleum’s production in Q3 was from
" offshore Nigeria. Addax Petroleurn's average working interest production for each license area was as follows:

Average working interest oil Three Months ’ Nine Months
production ended 30 September ended 30 September
{mbbis/day) . . 2006 2005 Change 2006 2005 Change
Before Royalties: o s - o |
Nigeria )
.OML123 48.4 479 1% . 50.2 45.9 9%

OML128 367 227 81% 29.2 128 132%

Subtotal - Offshore 85.1 706 21% 79.4 58.5 36%

: . OML124 4.0 3.6 12% 3.7 35 5%
. -Subtotal - Nigeria - =¥ 8941 . 742 .%o 831 620 . C 4%
Gabon . .

Panthere NZE 0.5 - - 0.2 - -
Maghena - - 0.3 - - 0.1 - -
Remboue 0.2 - - 0.1 - -
Subtotal - Onshore 1.0 .- - 0.4 - -
Etame - 1.4 - - 0.5 - -

' Subfotal - Gabon  © . . 24 - - 0.9 -

. Total - ' ' 91.5 74.2 23% 84.0 62.0 49%

: Nigeria Properties

i OML123
In OML123, daily production has, continued to mcrease in the first nine months of 2008 and for, the third quarter of 2006 as compared to the
same penods in 2005. Five new production wells hava been added to this block in the first nine months of 2008 (2 wells added in Q3 2008)
bringing the total producing wells for the license to 51. From September 26 the production of OML123 was shut in to facilitate the change over
- of the FPSO Knock Taggart to a larger FPSO Knock Adoon, Production recommenced on October 1. The shut down pericd was 5 days,
compared to a budgeted shut down period of 10 Days. The changeout resulted in the deferral of 340 mbbls in the third quarter.

OML126

In the quarter OPL80 was successfully converted to OML126 by the Nigerian authorities. All references to OML126 in the curent report were
previously reported as 0F'L90 The OPL 225 hoense name has not changed

OML126 commenced pfoducuon in the first quarter of 2005, and output has continued to increase, Durlng 2008 drilling and facilities work has
centinued to increase production. 5 new production wells have been added o this block in the first nine months of 2006 (3 wells added in Q3
2006) bringing the total producing wells for the license to 11,

OML124 -

In OML124, daily production has again slightly increased in both the quaner and year to date penods as compared to 2005. This has been
achieved due to a well work over campaign. There are 15 producing wells in OML124.

‘
|
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‘ Gabon Properties

* Addax Petraleum acquired the Gabon properties from Pan-Ocean Energy on September 7, 2006, The Gabon properties produced an average
of 9.4 mbbls/day for the 24 days from acquisition to the end of the period. To give an indication of the operational history for these properties
the following table shows the average working interest production for the Gabon properties for the comesponding periods when they were
operated by Pan-Ocean:

Avarage working interest ol Three Months Nina Months
production ended 30 September ended 30 September
{mbbls/day) 2006 2005 Change 2006 2005 Change

i

i

Before Royalties:

Gabon
Panthere NZE 16 1.0 56% 1.6 1.7 5%
Maghena - 1.9 2.0 2% 18 0.7 182%
Remboue 0.8 0.9 -15% 08 1.0 -16%
' Subtotal — Onshore 4.3 3.9 10% 4.2 34 24%
Etame 5.6 6.3 -12% 5.6 6.0 7%
Total — Gabon 9.9 10.2 3% 9.8 9.4 4%

! Maghena & Panthére NZE

' Maghena & Panthere NZE are located onshore Gabon and at the end of the pericd had 10 completed wells Export capacity relating to both
Maghena and Panthere NZE is currently limited to approximately 5.0 mbbls/day gross. Accordingly, only three of the ten recently drilled and
completed development welis are producing, the remainder being capacity constrained, Addax Petroleum plans to increase production upon
completion of the Maghena to Coucal export pipeline.

Addax Petroleum has a 92.5% working interest in tha Maghena license and a 92.5% working intefasi in the Panthere NZE license. Average
production for the 24 days to the-end of September was 1.4 mbbls/day at Maghena and 1 8 mbbls.fday at Panthere NZE.

Remboué

« Remboué is located onshore Gabon and at the end of the period has 7 producmg wells. Addax F‘etmleum has a 92% working interest and
, average production:for the 24 days to the end of September was 0.8 mbblis/day. B BRI

Etame

Etame is located offshore Gabon and at the and of the period has 4 producing wells. Addax Petroleum has a 31.36% working Interest and
average production for the 24 days to the end of September was 5.4 mbbis/day;

i
4
2
i
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_CRUDE OIL MARKETING AND PRICES

Addax.Petroleum cumently produces and selfs crude oil from 3 streams in Nigeria: Antan {OML123), Brass (OML124) and Okwori (OML126),
as well as 4 streams in Gabon: Panthere NZE, Remboué, Maghena and Etame. The selling price for each area is based on the Dated Brent
Benchmark Price plus a premium or a discount depending on the quality of the crude oil. Summarized below are the average prices and
premiums or discounts for each producing region and for significant individual sireams.

Three Months ended -~ : Nine Months ended -
o - 30 Sep 30 Jun 30 Sep 30 Sep 30 Sep
{$/bbl) . 2006 2006 2005 2006 2005
Average Dated Brent Benchmark Price 69.49 69.62 61.53 66.96 §3.54
Nigeria - Total | . .
* Avérage Premium (Discounty™ - (198 (194) (2.14) . (2.04) (2.80)
Average Realized Sales Price . BT.90 - 6785 5088 . . 8541 -
OML123
Average Premium (Dlscount)“’ {4.00} (3.16) {2.90) (3.98) (3.68)
Average Realized Sales Price 66.36 66.09 58.84 83.52 50.01
OML126
Average Premium {Discount)” 0.37 0.87 (0.82) 0.82 0.28
Average Realuzgd Sales Pnce 69.60 70.16 62.82 68.10 60.50
Gabon-Total ¢ . LA ' : :
Average Premium (Dlscount)‘” : (1.23) - - {1.23) -
Average Realized Sales Price : 50.48 - - 60.48 -
Total Average Realized Sales Price 67.60 67.85 59.88 6534 52.21

1} Average Pramium (Discouni} to Brent Crude are mparied on & volume weighied basis for bolh the ctrude in question and Brent Crude, whereas Average Dated Breni Benchmark Prices
. are reported a3 averages of monthly values for the perod. Accardingly, the diference bety the mportad A o ired Prices and Average Deted Brent Banchmark Pricas may
not comespond to the Average Premium (Discount} to Brent Crude. T . )

Tension in the Middle East, the loss of Alaskan suppfies due to pipeline failure, and speculative buying all helped 1o push oil markets to record
highs in- earty August 2008, but thereafter a major downward correction set in. The cessation of hostilities in Lebanon, the easing of the
confrontation over Iran's nuclear ambitions and a significantly below-average US Hurricane Season were all negative factors. {EA forecasts for
2006 global demand were revised downwards in July and again in September, while inventories of crude oil and refined products remained at or
above year-earlier levels in the main consuming regions.

International benchmark crude oit prices such as Dated Brent fell steadily through the remainder of the third quarter, with the decline gathering
pace fowards the end of September.after the close of the US Summer driving season. Despite a drop of more than 20% in absolute pnce from
the July high of $78:00/bbl, average prices for the third quarter were similar to those of the second guarter. .

For the nine months to end-September 2006 Dated Brent averaged almost $87.00/bb!l — around 25% above the average for the corresponding

nine months of 2005. The average realized price for Nigerian liftings for the current nine month period also rose by 25% compared to the same
period in 2005.

Addax Petroleum average realized prices for Nigerian crude wera 13% higher in Q3 2006 than in Q3 a year earlier, in lina with the 13%
increase in the benchmark between the two periods.

, OML123 continues to be sold both.spot and term at discounts to Dated Brent of the order of $3,00 to $4. 00/bbl, This discount remains relatively
stable, as would be expected from a mature producmg stream with little changes in the quality of the oil, and with established patterns of trade.

OML126 has been s0ld spot- and term at sieadlly improving premiums to Brent, as the grade has bacome more established in the market place.
Going forward it is anticipated that the premium to Dated Brent will probably stabilize slightly above $1.00/bbt for individual cargoes, although
this may not be fully reflected in comparisons with the quarterly average benchmark,

Gabon's net realized average oil price on export since acquisition was $680.48/bbl;, a $1.23/bbl discount to the $61.78 Brent average oil prices
for the month of September.
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Petroleum sales are reported on the basis of oil volumes sold gross of royalties and exclude any volumes held as inventory at the end of the
period. Inventory held at the beginning of period is included in sales during the period together with the related costs and any overlifts are
accounted for as deferred income on the balance sheel. inventory held as at September 30, 2006 was 973 mbbls compared to 1,101 mbbls as
| at June 30, 2006. As part of the PanAfrican acqunsmon 156 mbbls of inventory was acquired. The petroleum sales volumes and rmxes are as
set out in the table below:

| . PETROLEUM SALES AND SALES VOLUMES
|

Petroleum Sales Volumes Three Months ended Nine Months ended

30 Sep 30 Jun 30 Sep 30 Sep 30 Sep
{Mmbbis) 2006 2008 2005 2006 2005
Nigeria . - . .
omLI123 _ 4.5 . 4.8 44 . 13.6 128
OML126 ) - 34 2.6 1.7 8.1 27
OML124 ' : 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.9 0.9
Subtotal ~ ngena . 8.3 .17 . 6.4 226 16.2
Gabon R o . : S ) # i .
All licences 0.4 - - 0.4 . -

Total 8.7 1.7 6.4 230 16.2

i

The changing mix of petroleum sales between the Addax Petroleum properties is set out in the table below:

Petroleum Sales Mix Three Months ended Nine Months ended
30 Sep 30 Jun 30 Sep 30 Sep 30 Sep
(%) : . 2006 2008 2005 2006 2005

Nigeria PRI L ’ . ’
OML123 . 51% . 82% ’ 68% 55% 78%
OML126 39% 34% 27% 35% 17%
OML124 ) 5% 4% . 4% 4% 5%
. ‘'Subtotal - Nigeria - ) 95% 100% - 100% 98% 100%
- Gabon ) S :

All licences o 5% - - 2% -
Total : 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

- The petroleum sales dollar amounts are as set out in the table below: : .

Petroleum Sales Three Months ended Nine Months ended

30 Sep 30 Jun 30 Sep 30 Sep 30 Sep
{$ millions) 2006 2006 2005 2006 2005
Nigeria . ;’ . :
OML123 ' t 302.4 319.9 262.0 865.4 632.4
OML126 - 2328 178.3 108.3 551.2 160.0
OML124 - 271 24,2 17.4 63.0 48.2
Subtotal — Nigeria _ N 563.0 522.4 3857 . 1,4788 840.8
Gabon ) : y t
All licences 20.9 - - 20.9 -

Total Petroleum Sales L 582.9 522.4 385.7 1,500.5 840.6

v . HE

Total petroleum sales have mcreased by 79% for the first nine months of 2006 and 51% for the third quarter of 2006 as compared {0 the same
periods in 2005, Total petroleum sales also increased by 12% in Q3 2006 over Q2. These increases are primarily as a result of increased
sales volumes and hlgher realized pnces the movements in which have been discussed previously.

-
oy
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ROYALTIES -

In Nigeria royalties are comprised. of Royalty bil Niger. Delta Development . Corporatlon (NDD'C) levy, Education Tax, Nigeria National
'Petroleum Corperation’s (NNPC) share of Profit Qil and'the Cost.Penalty Arrangement. For the-Okwari field, in the OML.126 block, a profit share
royalty is paid to TOTAL, one of the prev;ous ||cense holders of OML126 as part of the acqutsmon agreement when Addax Petrnleum acquired
the block. . . .

In Gabon, royaltles mcludes Government myaltles plus any Profi t Qil payments in excess of the taxes. payable at the Gabonese statutory rate
Royalties are. delermmed in accordance with the appl;cable Production Sharing Contract. - K
Royaltles RS Three Months ended: : Nine Months anded

- T.30'8ep L 30dun <30 Bep® ° 30 Sep -
(3 mlﬂ'rons) - 2006 - . . 2006 - | 2006 il . 2905

ngena ~ OML {23134 T C

. ‘Royaltyoi ~ - - . : 27 242 646‘

FUNDDClewy e s el 2828 -8.7
. Education Tax ** < . T 48 © 49 . 128
_NNPC’s sharé of Profit il M2 338 . T 899
Cost Pen_alty_Arrangement -20 28 " T84 7
'Royalties-Nigeria-OML123!124 - 63.0 88.4 54.5 184.4

' ngena OML126, . R ‘ S T e

. .Rovalty OIl © -~ . 1486 . T8 - ¥ . 287 .

. NDDClewy ~ ° 19 . 28 . 2B X
-Education Tax: . 34 L2000 L0e - 10
NNPC’s share of Prol"t 0|l 220 X v e - 402

: CostPenaltyArrangement - e U A
Okiwori:Net Profit Interest .= 6.2 i ER — SRR I B

; .Royaltles ngena 0ML126 T asa . .21.6: . R 7.4 “ ; L. 900
Gabon P D ) : ) '
Royalty Oil + ~ “ S Tt 23 - e C © 23
Government’s: share of ProfitQil. 1.6 ) == - . 1.6
Royaltles Gabon T ‘_ - " e R : - '_ o - oL Tas
Total Royaltues 115.0 B X AR 5 M 27833
Royames asapercentage of re!atedsales (%) ____________ - ) . ) - L.

Ni;ieﬂéi: o 20% L 17% % o 19%

- oml123/124 . " T 1% S0t iew e “a0%
OMLIZE . gy e 2%, TR o 1e%

R ~=-:‘ 5 ,1 i . ) L . s : w Cos
Gabon™ o o R |- T - -19’/.- ;

In Nugena roya!taes for OML1231124 have mcreased by.43% in the first nine months of 2005 and by 16% in. the thlrct quarter of 2006 as
‘compared 10 the same periods in 2005 'Fhe total foyalties for OML 123/124 remain steady as a percentage of sales but'increase in value due to
the increase in production and: pnces . . A

:

In OML128, the absolute value of foyaltaes and the percentage of sales are both increasing. The percentage of royalhes related to sales has
increased as: the assets” capital-allowances have been-used. The absclute vatue of royaltles has. |ncreased clue to the use of capttal allowances
-the increase | in productton and:the tncrease in.crude oit pnces . i . Ea -
Royalty Qiliis tevned on:petroleum sales with the percentage of Royalty Qitincreasing with sales volumes: Prof t Qitis the prof it remalmng after.
deductmg royaltiés: production costs and taxes and is shared. between NNPC and Addax Petroleurn: on & sliding scale based. on monthly, .
production. The increase in royalties is. driven by increased .Royalty Oil and: Profit Qil due for OML123!124 and OML126 resultlng from a
combination-of increased production.and higher benchmark crude oil.prices. Increased production and lncreased oil prices are: the mam dnvers
) -ol' the year on'year change Prcductton from:QML 126 enly commenced inMay 2005. .. - o . .

TOTAL is entttted to 8% niet prof it interest in the Okwon ﬁeld (of OML126}), once total: revenues exoeed total costs Includmg a!l royaltles and
taxes, Total revenues exceeded totat costs forthe first time:in 03 2006 , .

= :_’ "s

ngenan royaltles as a percentage of sales has changed as the. sales mix of the revenue streams has changed with an lncreased propomon
from-OML126. we G e ; :

I3 *

In Gabon royaltses lnctude government royaltres whlch are Iewed asa percentage on petroleum sales, mcreaslng with. sales volumes, plus any

Profit Gil payments'in excess of the taxes payable at the statutory Gabonese rate.: Government. royalties were Iewed durrng the current quarter
at rates of 3% for Panthere NZE and Remboué 4.5% for Maghena and ala rate of 15% for Etame : .
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OPERATING EXPENSES : g

The operating expenses prgsented' below inciude costs relating to production, transporiation and selling for both Nigerian and Gabon
operations.

Operating Expenses ! Threa Months ended Nine Months ended
R ‘ 30 Sep 30Jun - 30 Sep " 30Sep 30 Sep
($ millions and per barre! soid) L 2006 2006 2005 . 2008 . 2005

Nigeria

OML123/124 _ 35.0 36.9 30.0 107.6 86.2
OML126 ) 16.0 17.0 9.2 7 446 17.8
Total - Nigeria -~ B 51.0 - 839 "39.2 1522 . 1040
Gabon 53 - - 5.3 -
Total Operating Expenses o 563 . 539 392 1575 © 1040

PER BARREL SOLD ($/bbl):

Nigeria
OML123/124 : 3 7.21 7.18 6.37 740 6.36
OML1Z6 . S a7 6.42 5.44 5.48 8.45
Total "N]gena o 8.1 6.99 6.10 5.71 8.42
Gaben . 15.25 - - 15.25 ‘ -
Total OperatingiExpenses E \' 6.47 - 8:09 " 810 6.81 6.42

There is an upward pressure on operating costs world-wide due to high demand for oil services. Addax Petroleum continues to mitigate this
upward pressure through a number of methods such as using competitive bidding procedures and awarding Iong term contracts, but with crude
‘oil prices remammg high, upward cost pressure Is expacted.
Operating expenses in Nigeria increased by 46% for the first nine months of 2006 and by 30% for the third quarter of 2006 as compared to the
same periods in 2005. The increases are principally due to the coming on stream of OML126, to bonus payments made to employees for
OML123/124 and to higher service costs resulting from the increase in industry wide activity in reaction to higher crude oii prices. For
OML123/124, the increass in operating expenses for the first nine months of 2006 compared to the same period in 2005 is due to increased
persgnnel costs of $9.9 million mainly relating to a special bonus and allowances paid to the Nigerian staff following union negotiations and an
increase in vessel-costs of $10.7 million including a settlement of a cantract relating to the period from April 2004 to March 2008 (increase of
$3.6 million). For OML128, the increase in operating expenses mainly relates to the FPSO (86.7. million) and vesse! costs ($3.4 million). The
decrease in operating expenses in Nigera for Q3 2006 compared to Q2 2006 of 5% was due to high bonus payments made to employees In
Qz2. ‘

Operating costs in Gabon are impacted by restrictions in production onshore which results in high per barrel costs. The pipeline used for the
Maghena and Panthere NZE fields is capacity constrained and therefore the production Is constrained, which means the production is currently
not as cost efficient as it could be. As mentioned previously Addax Petroleum has.future plans {o increase tha production capacity at these
fields. At Rembgué, field barges are used 1o fransport production resulting in a higher cost than in other transportation due to the relativety small
amounts that are transported.
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-OPERATING NETBACKS

. Operating netbacks is a 'non- GAAP measure and represents the per-barral profit margm assocmted with-the productlon and sale of crude il

and is calculated as the funds génerated- !rom operatlons per barrei soid, prior: to corporate charges The cemponents of- operatrng netbacks
are shown below:, . e .

RN Nine Months ended. ~ . .
30 Sep. 30 Sep
- 2006 2005 -

" Three Months ended:

Operatlng Netbacks N
(3 per barre! sofd)

oy

ngena OML123I124 s
Average Reahzed Sa!es Pnce

s

.. .6380. 1
(1268) -

. 5028 ¢ -
{8.50) ;

5122,
(7.40

rOperatlng Nelback before X = - OML 3/124,

AR

s Nrgena 0ML1 26 .

* Average Realized Sales: Pnce - E B . . 60,50
Royalties . : (1417) ) {8:18) - ) (4 33)— (11.05). D (4.04)
NetSales & 5543 62000 . " 5829 -57.05 56.46
Operating expense B @) (6.42): Tt (5.44), {5.48) (6.49)
Operatmg Netback before tax.~ 0ML126 5072 . H._.:‘s"s.ss 52.85 51.57 L. 49.97
~ @abon - O ' ST .
Average Reahzed Sales Pnce . 60.48 . - 60.48° -
. Royalties e . {11.23). - (11_.2;): -
© NétSales . . ' 3; L S 4924 - 49.24 -
_Operating expense . Lo S {(15:28) - - (15.25) -
Cperating Netback before tax Gabon '33.99 o .- '33.99 : -
Total OperatmgiNetback before tax i‘ e -_Q4r.9u . 4414 : 45.4?3 375

In Nrgena operatlng netbacks per barrel solc for OML123I124 |ncreased by 27% for the fiest nme months -of 2006 and by 14% for the third
quarter of 2008 as compared to.the same peripds in 2005. The operating netback for OML123/124 increased by 1%°in:Q3:2006 as compared
to Q2. These increases weare prlmanly driven by higher praduction and hrgher average realized sales prices partially offset by a cerrespundmg
increase in royaitres and an: 1ncrease in: operatlng expenses, : :

RN .
‘-

'Operatmg netbacks per| barrel sold for OML126-increased by 3% for the first ntine riofths of 2006 and decreased by 4% for the thrrr.l quarter of
2006 as compared o the same: penods in 2005. The overall increase was pnmanly dnven by lhe factors descnbed above. for 0ML1 23M24.

AS sat_es from 0ML126

. For ngena overall the changmg mlx of; sates between OML123I124 and OML126 mﬂuences the operatrng netback

In Gabon, operatmg nelbacks are: lower than thl ngenan f'gures due 1o thei‘hrgh operaung expense a_s dlscussed prev:ous!y This is. K
exacerbaled due to the Eow produchon as capacrty is oonstralned glwng a hrgh operaung expenseibbi figure. .. T i .
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DEPLETION, DEPRECIATION AND ACCRETION (DD&A)

The costs of oil and naturai-gas properties are depleted on a unit-of-production basis by cost pool, based on Addax Petroleum's share of gross
estimated:proved reserves for that pool. Addax Petroleum currently has two producing cost pools — ngeria and Gabon.

The proved reserves utilized to compute DD&A for the gquarter for the Nigerian cost pool were based on the independent reserve engmaer's
estimate of proved reserves at December 31, 2005 and adjusted for any additions or deletions based on internal estimates. Addax Petroleumn
used a proved reserve estimate of 120.5 million barrels as at September 30, 2006. The proved reserve figure used in calculating DD&A
includes upward adjustments of 36.7 million barrels compared to the reserve base .as at December 31, 2005 due o increases .in proved
reserves during 2006. ' .

The proved reserves utilized to compute the depletion for the Gabonese cost pool were based on the éxternal reserves report as a January 1,
2005. The proved reserves figure used for Gabon was 35.9 million barrels.

DD&A . Three Months ended Nine Months ended
o . 30 Sep 30 Jun 30 Sep 30 Sep - 30 Sep

(§ millions, § per barrel soid} 2006 2006 2005 2006 2005
Depletion of oil assets

Nigeria- . 75.6 84.0 49.5 186.3 105.8

Gabon . 10.6 - - 10.6 -

Total Depletion 86.2 64.0 49.5 206.9 105.8

PER BARREL SOLD (§/bbl):

Nigeria 9.05 8.31 772 8.65 6.54

Gabon ; - o ‘ 30.52 . - -- 30.52 -

Total Depletion ) ‘ 9.91 : 8.31 7.72 B.94 6.54
Accretion of Asset Retirement Obligation .

Nigeria . 0.6 05 0.5 ; 1.7 - 1.8

Gabon . . 01 - - L e B 5 B -

Total Accretion 07 06 0.5 18 18
Depreciation

Corperate and Other - 0.2 02 03 0.8 o7

Total Depreciation .~ - . 0.2 0.2 0.3 08 07
Total DDA 871 64.8 50.3 209.3 108.1

In Nigeria, the depletion increased by 85% for the first nine months of 2006 and by 53% for the third quarter of 2006 as compared to the same
periods in 2005. The depletion increased by 18% in Q3 2006 as compared to Q2. These increases are mainly due to the inclusion of
approximately $68.1 mitlion of depletion on OML126 for the first nine months of 2006 ($27.8 for the same period of 2005) and the increase in
OML123 sales {8% increase on the year to date figures, as noled previously). The increase in Q3 2006 compared-to QZ is pnmanly due to
incréased production.

‘Depreciation on the Gabon assets.is inciuded for the first time. It is anticipated that exploration, appraisal and development drilling will result in
increased reserves and reduce the per barrel rate over time.

The depletion on a per barrel sold basis. has increased duve to the continued |nve5tment by Addax Petroleum in ns oil properties, See the
discussion of the capital expenditure during the period.
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. CORPORATE EXPENSES

Cotporate expenses include items that do not relate to the operation of individual production streams. Shown below are general and
administrative expenses mainly incurred by the corporate services, pre-acquisition costs which are recognized in the income statement until
licenses are in place, the cost of employee share based compensation and ather income and expenses.

Corporate Expenses Three Months ended Nine Months ended
30 Sep 30 Jun 30 Sep 30 Sep 30 Sep

($ millions, § per barrel soid) 2006 2008 2005 2006 2005
General and Administrative Expenses 5.6 55 28 144 8.8

G&A per barrel sold ($/bbl) ) 0.64 0.74 0:41 0.62 0.41
Pre-Acquisition Expenses

New Venture Costs — Nigeria 28 1.7 0.2 6.9 02

New Venture Costs = Other 1.6 21 03 8.3 28

Taq Taq Operating Costs - - ot 0.4 08 1.7 8.5 17

Total Pre-Acquisition Expenses 43 4.4 2.2 20.7 47
Share-Based Compensation 6.9 126 - - 195 .-

Earnings per share impact ($) 0.05 0.09 - 0.14 -
Acquisition expenses B .

PanAfrican . e 1.8 S - 1.5 -
Other (Income) Expenses

Interest Charges ) 5.0 0.6 1.8 6.8 2.0

Other Finance.Charges . 0.2 0.2 03 0.6 0.4

Foreign Exchange (Gain) Loss . v {0.5) (1.3} 0.7) {2.2) ] 0.8

Other Income {5.2) (2.3) (0.4) (8.1 (1.3)

Total Other (Income) Expenses {0.4) (2.8) ) 1.0 ' {3.5) 1.8
Total Corporate Expenses _ ) ' 17.8 19.7 5.8 52.6 13.2

General and administrative expenses increased by 118% for the first nine months of 2006 and by 115% for the third quarter of 2008 as
compared to the samae periods in 2005. General and administrative expenses increased by 2% in Q3 2008 as compared o Q2. The reason
for the year to date increase is the additional employees resulting from expansion aclivities within the commercial and finance depariments in

- the Geneva office working specifically on corporate activities as a result of Addax Petroleum being a publicly quioted company.

Pre-acquisition expenses include costs related to Addax Petroleum’s New Venture activity. Related expenditures are charged to the income
statement pending finalization of Addax Petroleum's nghts to a license. These costs include seismic purchases, studies (in house and external)
and consulting, Pre-acguisition expenses continue to increasa for the nine months in 2008 compared to the same period in 2005 but pre-
acquisition expenses for Q3 2008 decreased by 3% as compared to Q2. The reason for the overall increases is due to Addax Petroleum
aggressively seeking new business opportunities in its core areas. Included in pre-acquisition expenses are costs incurred for the operation of
the Taq Taq property in the Kurdistan Region of Iraq and costs incurred relating to the blocks in the Joint Development Zone of Nigeria. The
Taq Taq expenses are mainly comprised of the field set up and support costs, together with final 2D seismic expenditures. Commencing in Q2
2006, Addax Petroleum began capitalizing capital costs incurred for the operation of Taq Taq which were previously expensed.

Share-based compensation relates to share awards {o employees and directors of Addax Petroleum some of which are vested immediately and
some over a three year period. ACG awarded 1,000,000 common sharas of Addax Petroleum to current employees and directors during the
second quarter of the year. The grant dales of the shares ware May 18, 2008 and June 30, 2006. The shares vest as follows: 203,050 shares
immediately on May 16; 265,650 shares immediately on June 30; 265,650 shares on January 31, 2007; and 265,650 shares on .Ianuary 31,
2008. The fair value of the common shares granted was $26.9 million based on their value on grant date.

Addax Petroleum awarded 599,097 common shares to current employees as part of a new management compensation scheme. These share
vest as follows: a third on the grant date, a third one year after the grant date and a third two years after the grant date. The fair value of the
common shares granted was $14.6 mlllnon based on the trading price of the comman shares on grant date.

As required by GAAP, Acldax Petroleum has recurded the award based on the fair value of the shares at gram date and will amoﬂaze the
remaining share awards over the two year vesting period.

Interest and debt commitment fees directly. attributable o development activities are capitalized to the respective cost pools and amortized-on a
unit of production basis with the cost pool to-which it relates or otherwise expensed. Other (income) expenses hava reduced during the nine
months of 2006 due low average loan balance during the period,

' - N |
t
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INCOME TAXES

Income taxes paid in Nigeria and Gabon are pursuani {o the production sharing contracts which govern Addax Petroleum’s operations at each
of its properties and vary materialty based primarily upon prevailing world oil prices, actual operating costs and the amount and timing of capital
expenditures, The applicable rate for Addax Petroleum's Nigerian production sharing contract is 60% of taxable profit which is calculated as

revenues less royalties, non-capital costs, capital depreciation and an investment tax allowance, The corperate tax rate in Gabon is 35%.
Income 1ax obligations in Gabon are satisfied out of a portion of the Government of Gabon's share of profit oil.

Income Taxes Three Months ended Nine Months ended
30 Sep 30 Jun 30 Sep 05ep . 30Sep
(3 millions and per barrel produced) 2006 2006 2005 . 2008 2005
Current income Taxes
Nigeria
OML123/124 130.0 131.2 100.7 3378 2496
OML126 0.5 446 66 825 6.6
Total — Nigeria 160.5 175.8 107.3 420.3 256.2
Gabon ] 3.2 - - ' 3.2 -
Other {0.9) 0.4 0.1 0.7) 07
Total Current Income Taxes 162.8 175.9 107.4 4228 '256.9
Future income Taxes
Nigeria
0ML123.’124 . 0.4 105 9.3 237 24.4
OML126 . ‘ 71.3 49.7 26.2 . 168.9 26.2
Total - Nigeria ' .7 602 355 1926 50.6
Gabon (2.3) - E) -

Total Future Income Taxes _ 69.4 60.2 35.5 180.3 50.6

In Nigeria, current income taxes increased by 64% for the first nine months of 2008 and by 50% for the third.quarter of 2006 as compared to the
same periods in 2005, The overall increase in current income taxes for OML123/124 is in proportion to sales revenue,  The-increase. in
current incorme taxes for OML126 is not driven by the sales increase but by the restrictions on accessing capital allowances in accordance with
the regulatlons of lhe Nigerian fiscal code and the rernoval of the availability of significant tax deductlona claimed in 2005, -

In Q2 2006 0ML126 could not access all the avallable allowances, but in Q3 due-to the high gil price and lower faclllty costs all allowances
were avallable hence the reduction in current income taxes in Q3 compared to Q2, Going forward it is anticipated OML 128 will be able to
access ali its allowances assummg production and oii prices remain at current fevels.

In Gabon the corporate tax rate is 35%.

. * § . .
Future income laxes for Nigeria increased significantly for the first nine months of 2008 and for the third quarter of 2008 as compared-to the.
same periods in 2005, future income taxes also increased in Q3 2006 as compared to Q2. The significant increase in future income laxes
relates to OML126 and is directly a result of the usage of tax allowances compared to the corresponding period.in 2005.

-

The Gabon future income tax is driven by the depletion of the fair value adjustment made to- the PanAfrican assets on consolldatlon
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l CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

For management's review purposes the capital expenditure is reviewed by production stream or region and by the type of expenditure.
Exploration costs are exploration dritling and seismic work.

Capital Expendilures by area and type Thrae Months ended Nina Months endad
- 30 Sep 30 Jun 30 Sep . 30 Sep - 30 Sep
[t m:ﬂrons) ) 2006 2006 2005 . 20086 2005
Nigeria
QOML123/124
Exploration -- - 2.7 8.3 28
Development drilling 31.2 322 303 84.3 " 685
Facilities - 129 236 167 78.3 18.9
Other o 20 64 22 1.1 ] 9.0
Capital Expenditures — OML123/124 484 622 510 1820 99.2
OML126/0PL225 ’
Expleration . 24 5.5 - 7.9 -

- Development drilling 422 374 30.9 122.5 79.1
Facilities 5.4 20.1 336 T25 80,8
Other - 73 1.0 15.2 29
Capital Expenditures ~ OML126 §0.0 79.3 64.7 2181 172.8

OMLE? . o . _

" Exploration o - = - - -
Development drilling 29.8 27 - 325 -
Facilities ’ - - - : 0.0 . ‘e
Other 5.2 367 - 419 -
Capital Expenditures - OML67 350 39.4 - 74.4 -

oPL281 _
Capital Expenditures - OPL291 - : . 230 - - 23.0 -
.I Total Capital Expenditures - N}geria - ) : 1541 180.9 116.6 497.5 - 2718
Gabon. - '
Exploration - 0.5 1.6 0.8 24
Development drilling 5.2 - - 5.2 -
Facilities and Pipeline 200 - - 20.0 -
Other - - -- .- -
State Panicipation'" - - - : - -
Total Capital Expenditures — Gabon . 252 0.5 , 16 ° . 26.0 7 ;7,2.4
Other Regions and Properties .
Cameroon o 0.4 0.1 0.1 7.0 08
JDZ Block 2 : 14 37 - 20.2 -
JDZ Block 3 : 1.5 34 - 144 . .
JDZ Block 4 . 0.5 2B.4 - 703 : -
Taq Tag 201 1.1 - 3.2 -
Other 10.9 1.1 {1.3) 222 - 1.3
Tg@al Capital Expenditures — Other 34.8. 47.8 . 12y 1853 . 1.9
Total Capital Expenditures 214.1 228.2 1170 688.8 276.1
{7) Camied intsrest participation r . !5 the working interest of the state anddor third parties which is recoverad in the nat amount of the sxcess of mvenue jas over the op

codl recoveries in awom'ame wm‘: the terms of lhe various PSCx in Gabon,

The capital expenditure above does not include the acquisition of the Panafrican and Addax UK by Addax Petroleum.

. "
N

-
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Total capital expenditures increased by 148% for the first nine months of 2006 and by 83% for the third quarter of 2008 as compared to the
same periods in 2005. Total capital expenditures decreased by 7% in Q3 2008 as compared to Q2. The increase in capital expenditures over
2005 is mainly due to new assets in Nigeria (Ckwok), Kurdistan (Teq Tag), three JOZ Blocks, new interest in OPL281 In addition to continuing
development in OML126, the FPSO replacement in 0ML123 and an increase of the number of drilling rigs operating for Addax Petroleum from
two in 2005 to seven at September 30, 2006.

There is upward pressure on capital expenditures due te high demand for cil services especially for drilling rigs. Addax Petroleum continues to
mitigate this upward pressure such as using competitive bidding procedures bidding on long term contracts, but with crude oil at high levels,
upward cost pressure is expected.

In Nigeria, capital expenditures totalled $154.1 million for the third quarter of 2006, consisting primarily of exploration expenditures of $2.4
million, development drilling expenditures of $103.2 million, faciities expenditures of $18.3 million and other expenditures of $30.2 million.
There were minor exploration expenditures in the third. quarter in OML126. Third quarter development drilling expenditures in Nigeria included
the drilling of 2 development wells in OML128, with-2 development welis in OML123, and 3 OMLE7 appraisal wells. Other capital expenditures
in Nigeria consisted. primarily of $23 million for the initial 25% OPL291 farm-in fee and signature bonus. Addax Petroleum farmed-in to 72:5%
of OPL291:in August 2008 and is to carry.all the capital expenditures for the field to production. The farm-in was completed in October wnth a
further final'$67 m||||on for signature bonus and farm-in fee

In Gabon, follomng the acquisition of PanAfrican Energy Corporatlun on September 7", capital expendltures totalled $25.2 mitlion for the
remainder of September. The main activity was onshore development drilling on the Maghena field and construction of the Central Production
Facility (CPF). Commissioning of the CPF is planned for mid November 2006, There was also drilling of an anshore well on the Panthere NZE
field. In the non-operated field of Avourna a new production platform began commissioning.

Capital expenditures in other regions and properties for the third quarter of 2008 related primarily to $20.1 million for appraisal drilting and
refated support expenditures at Taq Taq in the Kurdistan Region of Northern traq. Addax Petroleum has 8 Farm-in Agreement with Genel
Enerji of Turkey for 30% interest in the Tag Taq field. During the second quarter of 2006, Addax Petroleum commenced capitalizing
expendituras relau'ng to the Taq Taq field as the risks and rewards of ownership had been confirmed.

Major Capital Prc-jects

In OML123, the ma;or capital project is the replacement of the FPSQO. The total capital expendstures to the end of September 2006 are- sae 3
millien and the capital expenditures to complete the project are forecast to be $13.0 million. These expenditures are for subsea pipelines and
risers, FPSO moorings a:ncl= topsides water injection package. The FPSO change out was completed successfully in September 2006.

In OML126, there are two major capital projects: 1) the Okwori field development, and 2) the Nda field development, For the Okwori field
development, the drilling is completed and the wells tied in. A further additional well Is planned for Q1 2007, The total capital expenditures for
Okwori to the end of September 2006 are $355.9 million and the capital expenditures to complete the project are forecast to be $74.0 million.
The tolal capital expenditures for Nda development capital costs to the end of September 2006 are $196.4 million and the capital costs to
complete the project are forecast to be $23.0 million. It is planned to drill further appraisal wells in the greater Nda area following the Nda field
development project.

In Gabon, the major capital projects are the further development of the Maghena field onshore, and the construction of the Central Production
Facility {*"CPF"). Commissioning of the CPF is planned for Q4 2006.

Cameroen, Okwokf'—ﬁ'é'q Tagq, OPL291 and the thres JDZ deep water blocks are in the appraisal and:ex;}loration stages.

P S

i
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FUNDS FLOW FROM OPERATIONS (“FFFO")
The components of FFFO are set out as follows:

Fundé f-‘loﬁ From 6hemﬁons . Three Months ended Nine Months ended
) - 30 Sep 30 Jun 30 Sep 30 Sep 30 Sep
(3 millions) 2008 2006 2005 2006 2005
Net Income 75.2 57.9 85.6 189.7 168.0
Adjustments for non-cash items:
DD&A | : 87.1 84.8 50.3 2093 108.1
Stock-based compensation ) . 7.3 12.6 : 0.0 19.8 0.0
Future income taxes . - : - 69.4 60.2 35.5 190.3 50.8
Other L ) _ 55 0.2 (8.2 5.3 {4.5)
Funds.Ftow From Operations : 2445 195.7 163.2 6144 322.2
Changes in:non-cash working capital 59.1 114.6 453 151.5 (37.9)
Cash Flow From Operations 303.6 310.3 2085 786.9 2843
Weighted Average Shares Qutstanding (millions) 148.0 140.1 117.0 138.8 117.0

FFFO per share ($/share) 1.65 1.40 1.40 4.43 275

FFFO increased by 91% for the first nine months of 2006 and by 50% for the third quarter of 2006 as compared to the same periods in 2005.
FFFOQ also increased by 25% in Q3 2006 as compared to 2. The major reasons for the increases in FFFO for the nine month period of 2006
compared to the same period in 2005 were the significant increases in the average oil price and the increased production (up 34%) during the
period. The 26% increase in-Q3 is mainly due to the increased in production from OMLs 123 and 126 in the quarter compared to Q2 2006,

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Addax Petroleum’s principal source of liguidity has been fund flows generated from operations which has been supplemented as necessary by
credit facilities and equity funds generated from public offerings to meet increased capital expenditures, primarily for the development of the
Okwori property in OML126 and expenditure relating to the JDZ btocks and the Tag Taq field. Provided applicable solvency and corporate
requirements are satisfied, there are no legal or practical restrictions in Nigeria or Gabon on the ability of Addax Petroleum’s Nigerian and
“Gabonese subsidiaries to transfer funds to Addax Petroleum in the form of cash dividends, loans or advances. In addition, there are no
contractual restrictions on such transfers of funds to Addax Petroleum by its Nigerian and Gabonese subsidiaries. Addax Petroleum has not
experienced seasonal variations in its cash flows.

- Changes in Working Capital and Capital Structure
The following table shows the capital structure of Addax Petroleumn at the quarter ends.

Capital Structure ’

: 30 Sep 30 Jun 31 Mar Dec
(Smitlions) 2008 2006 2006 2005
Accounts receivablé 194.2 209.9 1207 131.6
Partner advance 21.0 33 2.4 24
laventories 111.2 95.8 B9.5 62.8
Prepaid expenses 3141 16.7 35.3 15.5
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities {303.7) (284.0) {293.2) (160.1)

Income taxes and royalties payable {475.8) (424.1) {215.6) (203.6)
Non-cash working capital . (422.0) (382.6) (260.9) {151.4)
Cash and cash equivalents 143.2 3339 249.2 6.7
Total net working capital - (276.8) (48.7) (1.7 (144.7)
Short term debt 850.0 - -- -
Long term debt - - - - 80.0
Shareholders Equity . 1,116.3 698.3 627.7 - 2084

The major component of Addax Petroleum's capital resources at September is the bank facility. This still has undrawn lines of credit totalling
$150 million at the quarter end. This facility is discussed in more detail below.

Addax Petroleum had a working capital deficit at the end of the quarter resulting from the income tax and royalty due, Addax Petroleum expects
a reduction in this deficit, however with the bank facilities open to them, and future increases in working capital from oll sales, Addax Petroleum
can continue to fund the aggressive expansion of exploration and development activities.
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. Short tenn dabt

Addax Petroleum has entered into-a 364 day $1 bllllon Senior Secured Acquisition Bndge Facmty with BNP Paribas, Standard Chartered Bank
and Natexis Bank Populaires as Joint Mandated Lead Arrangers which was signed on August 31, 2006 replacing the previous syndicated $300
miilion senior secured reducing revolving credit facility. The new credit facility bears interest at floating rates linked to LIBOR plus a margin of
1.75% during the first 6§ months and 2.25% thereafter. The facility is secured by a pledge over the shares of APNV, Addax Petroleum Qverseas
‘Ltd:and PanAfrican, as well as a pledge over the bank accounts.

As at September 30, 20086, the amount outstanding under the facility was $850 million (as at June 30, 2008, ail amounts drawn on the previous
credit facility were reimbursed) and is due to be reimbursed on August 30, 2007,

Addax Petroleum is currently in the process of replacing it with a similar longer term.facility. Management does not anticipate any problems
with the facility renewal or replacement and therefore does not expect a requirement to repay the facility out of current cash funds.
Public Offarlngs : '
In February 2008, Addax Petroleum was listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange by way of an Initial Public Offering (“IPQ"). Pursuant to the IPQ,
Addax Petroleum issued 23.1 million shares for gross proceeds of $390.6 million (CDN $450.5 million) of which;
+  $15.5 million (CDN $22.5.million} was used to pay expenses related to the IPO; and .
*  $48.2 miilion (CDN $55.6-million) and 117.0 million common shares of APC were pald {o acquire all of the issued and outstanding
common shares of Addax Petroleum N.V., previousty held by AQG. .

Total net proceeds from the IPO, the over-allotment option and the share purchase amounted to $322.9 miflion (CON $372.4 million). A portion
of the net proceeds were used to pay down Addax Petroleum’s long-term debt and the- ba!ance of the proceeds were used to fund Addax
Petroleum’s ongo:ng capital expenditure program.

In September 2006, 'Addax Petroleumn completed an offering to the market. The net proceeds from this and the over-alloiment option amounted
1o $357.4.million {CDN $401.9 million). The net proceeds were used as part of the funding of the acquisition of the PanAfrican companies.

’ Acguisition financing
On September 7, 2006 Addax Petroleum completed the acquisition of the PanAfrican subsidiaries of PanOcean. This was for a total of CON
$1.605 billion in cash {$1.441 billion). This cash was raised, as noted above, in part from the debt financing $850.0 million, in part from the
second public offering $357.4 million and in part from Addax Petroleum’s internally generated cash reserves $234.1 million,
\ SR

Consolidated Changes in Cash Flow
The following table summarizes the principal components of Addax Petroleumn’s consolidated cash flows for the periods indicated:

Cash-flow ; ‘ ' Three Months ended Nine Months ended
. : 30 Sep 30 Jun 30 Sep 30 Sep 30 Sep

- (% millions} S - s : 2006 2006 2005 2006 2005

Funds flow from opieraiions 244.5 1957 163.2 614.4 322.2

Net cash flow from (used in) investing activities (1,679.7) (225.7) (117.1) (2,007.8) {278.2)

Net cash flow from (used in) financing activities 1,185.5 - (125.0) 1,378.4 (3.5)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash (249.7) (30.0) (78.9) (15.0) 425

equivalents before changes in working capital

(Increase) decrease in non-cash working capital 59.1 114.6 45.3 151.5 (37.9)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash (190.6) 84.6 (33.6) 136.5 48

equivalents

Funds flow from operations was $614.4 million for the nine month period ended September 30, 2008 compared to $322.2 million for the same
period of 2005, representing an increase of $292.2 million. The increase resulted from the increase in income before income taxes of $327.4
million, due to higher oil prices and higher production from OML126 and OML123 compared to 2005 (up 36% in the period). For the quarter
ended September 30, 2008, funds flow from operations has increased mainly due 1o the increased production of OML123 and OML128
compared to the same quarter in 2005.

Net cash used in investing activities consists principally of the purchase of PanAfrican, the purchase of property, plant and aquipment and
intangible capital expenditures. Net cash used in investing activities was $1,931.0 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2008
compared to $276.2 million for same period in 2005, representing an increase of $1,654.8 million. The majority of this increase is due to the
$1,447.9 million acquisition of PanAfrican. The remaining expenditure increase of $559.9 million relates to additional $108.9 million in capital
expenditures on JDZ Blocks 2, 3 and 4, an increase of $71.0 in capital expenditures on Okwok, post acquisition expenditures on the Gabonese
properties of $25.2 million and the $23.0 million initial payment for the farm-in and signature bonus for OPL201. The remaining increase is due
to higher capital expenditures on the Nigerian properties of OML123/4 and OML126.

Net cash from financing activities was $1,378.4 million for the nine month period ended September 30, 2006 compared to a cash outflow of
$3.5 million in the same period 2005. Addax Petroleum received $371.0 millicn from the IPQ. This cash inflow was partially offset by the
following outflows: repayment of iong term debt {$80 million), payment of dividend ($50 million} and fees related to the purchase of Addax
Petroleum N.V. by Addax Petroleum. A further $342.4 million was received from the second public offering in Q3 2006 and this with the $850
million drawn down from the new credit facility was used to offset part of the PanAfrican acquisition. The net cash outfiow for Q3 2005 was
mainly due 1o.the balance of the funds required for the PanAfrican acquisition being me! out from the cash of Addax Petroleum,
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ECONOMIC SENSITIVITIES

The following.table shows the esttmated after-tax effect that changes to crude oil prlces crude oil production and operating costs would have
had on Addax Petroleur’s net income for the nine months ended September 30, 2006, had these changes occurred on January 1, 2006, These
calculations are based on business conditions, production and sales volumes existing for Q3 2008. The 1,000bbis/d increase has been
allocated equally between OML123/0ML124, OML126, Etame, Maghena, Panthere NZE and Remboué.

Economic Sensltlvitias
Change  Net income Impact: Net income Impact

Factor o (+) (8 million) (S per share)
Average Realized:Price $1.00/bbl 60 . .. 0.04
. . Crude ¢il production . 1,000 bbls/d 42 0.03
Fide - Increase in operating expenses 10% . 4.1y {0.03)
A Interest rate ) ’ 1% {0.7) (0.01)

“The'ipact ‘of thé above changes may be compounded or offset by changes to olher business conditions. in addition, the table does not
consider the relataonshlps between the above factors,

Changes in the exchange rate between CDNS$ and US$ has not been con5|dered here as changes would not be significant to the results given
the low number of transactions denominated in CDNS$.

H

CUTLOOK FOR THE REMAINDER OF 2006 AND 2007

Addax Petroleum expects average daily production for 2006 to be approximately 89,000 bamefs per day, with a production rate by year end of
115,000 barrels per day. Production is expected to increase throughout the remalnder of the year as Addax Petroleum brings on-stream
development wells in OML126 and OML123

‘Total capital expenditures for the first nine months of 2006 were $688.8 million, and for the fourth quarter are forecast to be $350.0 million.
The 20067 budget anticipates an average production rate throughout the year of 130,000 barrels per day. Production is expected to increase as
Addax Petroleum brings on stream development wells in Oron, Ebughu and Adanga in Nigeria and Maghena, Panthere NZE and Etame in
Gabon; and the increase in production of onshore Gabon due to an increase in pipeline capacity.

Capital expenditure in 2007 is expected to be $1,200 million, with $125 million forecast for exploration, $933 million forecast for development

drilling and related faciliies and $142 forecast for gas studies and other costs. $873 million is forecast to be spent on the Nigerian assets, $248
million forecast to be spent in Gabon and $79 million on other assets primarily for the JOZ, Cameroon and Taq Taq.
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CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND COMMITMENTS

Addax Petroleum has assumed various conifractual obligations and commitments in the normal course of operations and financing activities.
These obligations and commitments have been described in the December 31, 2005 MD&A and have not significantly changed during the nine
month period ended September 30, 2006 except as noted below. Also as part of the acquisition of the PanAfrican companies Addax Petroleumn
has assumed new commitments and obligations as summarized below,

Exploration commitments in JDZ blocks
These are exploration commllments as defined in the PSCs and for the 3 blocks, the minimum four year hnancnal commitments total $43.3
million at quarter end,

Exploration commitment for OPL291

OPL291 PSC was signed after quarter end. The exploration commitment is defined in the PSC and the minimum five year financial commitment
is $75 mu!llon - ]

Exploratlon & Development commttments in Gabon

These are costs commitied to by contracts for continued exploration and development in Gabon ‘Theyinclude a charter of an FPSO, dnllmg of
an expforation well at Etame and the construction of the Coucal papelme extension and processing facility. The total cost is $23.8 million,

Contingent comemitments after the PanAfrIcan acquisition

Following PanAfrican’s acquisition of the Iris and Thermis permits in Gabon contingent commitments arose to pay $0.75 million in the event of a
commercial discovery during the second, third or any subsequenl exploration pericd and $0.75 million following the granting of an exploitation
license by the Republic of Gabon.

Addax Petrgleum expects to fund its obl:gat:ons and committed capital investiments from a combination of cash flow and drawings from the new
senior bank facility.
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RISK MANAGEMEN;I' :

Addax Petroleumn is exposed to several operational risks inherent in exploring, developing, producing and marketing crude oil and naturai gas.
These inharent risks include: economic risk of finding and producing reserves at a reasonable cost; cost of capital risk associated with securing
the needed capital to carry out Addax Petroleum’s operations; nsk of fluctuating foreign exchange rates; risk of carrying out operations with
minimal environment impact; risk of govemmental policies, social instability or other political, economic or diplomatic. developments in its
international operations; and non-performance by counterparties to contracts.

Addax Petroleum has published its assessment of its business risks in the Risk factors section of its 2006 Annual Information filing. The
principal risk of Addax Pétroleumn remains the fluctuation of oil prices which are affected by word -politics, demiand and future reserves
available. Since then there:have been no significant changes to these identified risks other than those noted below:
+«  The company has acquired the PanAfrican companies which have production and exploration operations in Gabon. As this is a
different location to Addax Petroleum s core cperations there may be risks specific to the operations that management are not yet
able to assess.
B 4

Addax Petm[eum |s aware. il has an lncreased Ieverage and rewews its use of avallable facilities -considering future capltal expendllure
expected returns in production and ofl price trends, to ensure that the requured repayments can be made.

Addax Petroleurn utilizes various financial instruments to manage its commodity prices, foreign currency and interest rate exposures. These
financial instruments are not used for trading or speculative purposes. Currently Addax Petroleum holds a foreign exchange forward contract to

" manage its exposure to foreign currency risk with respect-to the Swiss franc against the US dollar, There are no liquidity risks associated with
this instrument. Gains cr losses on foreign exchange forward contracts are included in other interest and finance charges. Addax Petréleum has
no immediate plans to put in place other hedges or financial insttuments. Addax Petroleum's current position with respect o its financial
instruments is detailed in note & to the consolidated financial statements. The arrangements and policies concerning Addax Petroleum's
financial instruments are under constant review and may change depending upon prevailing market conditions.

Addax Petroleum has direct responsibility for Health, Safety and Environment (HSE) in its Nigerian and Cameroonian properties. Addax
Petroleum has implemented HSE policies in respect of its operations. These HSE policies are an important part of the responsibilities of Addax
Petroteurn's managers and significantly influence the operations of Addax Petroleum, Addax Petroleum requires alt employees and contractors
to comply with HSE policies. The HSE pelicies are codified in Addax Petroteum's HSE manual, which define individual HSE responsibilities and
suggests ways to promote:and support a safe and healthy environment. Addax Petroleum circulates the manual to employees in all locations
and managers regularly discuss the policies .with staff at periodic safety meetings. . In Nigeria, Addax Petroleum has a dedicated HSE
depariment that focuses-on accident prevention, monitors operational compliance with the HSE policies and advises management on sta!utory
and industry requirements. The manager of this HSE department reports directly to the Managing Director of Nigedan Operations of Addax
Petroleum and is a member of the management committee, which meets weekly to discuss and direct Addax Petroleum’s activities. The HSE
policy of Addax Petroleum emphasizes leadership, commitment and training, risk management, health and safety operat:ons enviranmental
_protechon and incident response pan,

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

As at September 30, 2006 Addax Pe1roleum had no ofr balance sheet arangements other than those mentioned in notes to the 2005 annual
financial statements

¢

suassdusm EVENTS

On Qctober 17, 2008 Addax Petroleum entered into a Production Sharing Contract ("PSC"} with NNPC having previously entered into a farm-
out agreement with Starcrest ngerla Energy Limited ("Starcrest”) for OPL291, a. deepwater area offshore Nigeria. Addax Petmleum has a
=peuttclpatmg interest of 72, 5% and is the operator.

Pursuant to the t'arm out agreement, Addax petroleum is obligated:
= To pay to the Nigerian government, 100% of the OPL291 PSC signature bonus of $55 million
*  To pay to Stacrest a farm-in fee of $35 million; and
*  To pay Starcrest's share of OPL281 exploration and development costs which will be reimbursed to Addax petroleum from Starcrest's
share of production revenues from OPL291. R

The signature boenus and farm-m fee have been paid in instalmenis in September and October 2006 and have been capitalised.

On November 10, 2006, the Board of Directors approved a dividend to shareholders of record on November 30, 2006 in the amount of CDN
$0.05 per oommon share to be paid on:December 14, 2006, . ,
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SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY AND OUTSTANDING SHARE DATA

Outstanding Share Data o I ““Thres Months ended Nine Months ended
30 Sep 30 Jun 30 Sep 30 Sep 30 Sep
{miflions) 2006 2006 2005 2006 2005
Common Shares Outstanding
Beginning of period 1401 140.1 117.0 171.0 117.0
Issued 15.0 - - 38.% -
End of period 155.1 140.1 117.0 155.1 117.0
Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding 148.0 140.1 117.0 © 1388 117.0

As at September 30, 2008 Addax Petroleum had no stock options or any other security convertible inta common shares.

On September 6, 2006 Addax Petroleum completed a second public offering. This offering and the over-alloiment option which was exercised
resulted in 14,750,000 common shares being issued. This issuance was preceded by the distribution of subscription receipts in August 2006.
Holders of subscription receipts exchanged these for common shares on the completion date.

This transaction was used {o part: fund the acquisition of the PanAfrican companies and has been discussed in more detail in the Liquidity and -
Capital:Resource saction of this report.

©n August 1, 2008, the Board of Directors approved-a dividend to shareholders on record on August 24, 2006 of the amount of CDN $0.05 per
common share 10 be paid on September 14, 2006. Holders of subscrlptlon receipts on the record date and the over allotment holders were
entitled {o.receive the dividend for each subscnptlon rece:pt held. .

On August 1, 2006, 12,425 common shares were issued to directors for fees for services in lieu of cash. The fair value of the common shares
issued was $321,390, based on the trading price of the common shares on the date of issue. This cost has been included in directors' fees in
the Income statement. -

. On August 31, 2006, Addax Petroleum awarded 589,097 common shares {0 current empldyees and diféctors as part of a new managemnent
compensation plan. These share vest as follows: one third on the grant date, one third one year after the grant date and one third two years
after the grant date. The fair value of the common shares granted was $14,630,937, based on the trading price of the common shares on the
date of grant, and is amortized over the vesting period

The public offerings during 2006 have diluted the holding of AQOG and as at September, 30, 2006, it's interest in Addax Petroleum stood at
41.56%. Although AQG no longer have majority control over Addax Petroleum, they remain the largest shareholder.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

In the preparation of Addax Petroleurn's financial statements,-management is required to use judgements, assumptions and estimates in the
application of generally accepted accounting policies which has.an impact on the financial results of Addax Petroleum. These estimates and
assumptions are based on the best available information at the time, but may change due to new events and additional information giving rise
to changes in the estimates over time. Note 1 of Addax Petroleum's consclidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2005
explains the significant financial accounting policies used by Addax Petroteum.

The financial and operating results of Addax Patroleum utilise certain estimates including:
»  Estimated oil reserves are used in calcufations for the depletion of oil assets and the future life of Addax Petroleur’s properties
*  Estimated future cash flows to assess if Addax Petroleum's investments and properties require impairment
*  Agselretirement obllgatlons are assessed usmg estimated of future costs of site restoration

Addax Petroleum ensures that these estlmates are made by people wnth the necessary skills and that they have access to all available
information including operation and financial data and industry best practice standards. fn addition past estimates are compared to actual
results in order to made more mrormed decision on future estimates.

Since the December 31, 2005 annual repont Addax Petroleum has adopted accounting policies that reguire addmonal accounting estimates.
Please referto Note 2 our-interim fmanc:lal statements.
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TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Addax Petroleum has entered into no new transactions with related parties during this guarter. The ongoing transactions with AQG remain as
noted below:
+  Antan Crude Qil-Supply Agreement, the Brass River Blend Crude Oil Supply Agreement and the Okweri Crude Oil Supply Agreement
{collectively defined as the "Crude Qil Supply Agreements");
Management Services Agreement;
Bunkering Agreement;
Agreament for Services of Jean Claude Gandur effective January 1, 2006 between APS and AOG
Trademark Agreement;
Non-Competition Agreement; and
Share Transfer Agreement between a subsidiary of AOG and Addax Petroleum.

The following transactions took place between Addax Petroleum and ACG and its other subsndlary companies (as discussed further in Note 11
to the Sepiember 30, 2006 ﬂnanmai statements)

Significant Retated Party Transactions Three Months ended Nine Months )

: 30 Sep 30 Jun 30 Sep 30 Sep 30 Sep
{$millions} . . 2006 2008 2005 2006 2005
Sales {0 Addax BV, _ 370.1 352.7 278.4 899.8 514.6

An amount of $720,000 is included in the income statement for the period for directors’ compensation of which $155,000 has been palcl in cash,
and $321,390 has been pand in comrmon shares of Addax Petroleum, the remaining-balance has not yet been paid.

Alt transactions with related parties are as set out in the individual agreements that are regularly reviewed by Addax Petroleum’s management.
Crude Oll Supply Agreaments

Addax B.V. ("ABV"), whlch is a subsidiary of AQG, is the sole marketer of Addax Petroleum’ s crude il productlon under the Crude Oil Supply
Agreements. All crude oil produced from OML123/124 and OML126 is sold to ABV on the same terms and conditions as with ABV's non-

related customers. Some crude oil from Remboué field {acquired as part of the PanAfrican acquisition) is also sold to ABV. This is a
continuation of trading prior to the PanAfrican acquisition and is on a non-related customer basis.
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SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY RESULTS

The following is a summary of quarterly resulls for Addax Petroleum for the eight most recently completed quarters.

Summary of Quarterly Results . 2006 . 2005 . 2004
(# million unless otherwise stated) Q3 Q2 a1 Q4 Q3 Q2 Qi Q4
Petroleum Sales before Royalties 583.9 522.4 394.2 378.5 385.7 257.8 1971 156.4
. Funds Flow From Operations i 244.5 1957 1743 1480 - 183.2 - - 88 699 52.6
FFFO per share ($/share} = - 1.65 - 1.40 1.24 125 1.40 . 078 0.60 0.45
Net Income 75.2 57.8 56.5 38.1 856 53.5 289 213
Earnings per share ($/share) CL.o 05 0.41 0.44 0.33 0.73 0.46 0.25 0.18
Weigmed'average common:shates ‘ . 1480 140.1 140.1 1170 117.0 117.0 117.0 117.0-
outstanding-{millions) :
Capital Expenditures, net of dispositions 214.1 228.2 2455 105.4 117.0 69.4 89.7 125.1
Average working interest gross oil
production (mbbls/day): - . )
Nigeria ’ 89.1 79.8 B0.4 748 742 62.3 493 428
Gabon . 24 - - — - - -~ -
Total 91.5 79.9 80.4 74.8 74.2 B62.3 49.3 428

The general upwa:rd trend over the eight quarters of increasing petroleum sales has resulted from a combination of increased production from
OML123, increasing production from the commencement of sales from OML126 in Q2, 2005 and increasing crude oil prices throughout the
period. -

The general upward trend of increasing net income over the eight quarters is due to increasing petroleum sales, partially offset by increasing
operating costs, DD&A and taxes. In Q2 and Q3 2005, Addax Petroleum benefited from tax incentives in OML128. From Q4 2006 onwards,
Addax Petroleum no longer benefits from the tax incentives. Offsetting the increase in sales which in turn increased the net income, were
increases in expenses for operating costs due to rate increases by oil service companies, DD&A increases due to additional production,
increases in taxes and royalties due to increase income, and increases in G&A and share based compensation due to Addax Petroleum
becoming a publicly quoted company in Q1 2006,
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FORM 52-109F2
CERTIFICATION OF INTERIM FILINGS

[, JEAN CLAUDE GANDUR, Chief Executive Officer of ADDAX PETROLEUM
CORPORATION, certify that;

1. I have reviewed the interim filings (as this term is defined in Multilateral Instrument 52-
109 Certification of Disclosure in Issuers’ Annual and Interim Filings) of Addax
Petroleum Corporation (the issuer) for the interim period ending June 30, 2006,

2. Based on my knowledge, the interim filings do not contain any untrue statement of a
material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated or that is necessary to
make a statement not misleading in light of the circumstances under which it was made,
with respect to the period covered by the interim filings;

3. Based on my knowledge, the interim financial statements together with the other
financial information included in the interim filings fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the issuer, as of the date
and for the periods presented in the interim filings;

4, The issuer’s other certifying officers and 1 are responsible for establishing and
maintaining disclosure controls and procedures for the issuer, and we have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused them to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance that material information
relating to the issuer, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which the interim
filings are being prepared.

DATED: August 1, 2006
“Signed”

JEAN CLAUDE GANDUR
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER




FORM 52-109F2
CERTIFICATION OF INTERIM FILINGS

I, MICHAEL EBSARY, Chief Financial Officer of ADDAX PETROLEUM
CORPORATION, certify that:

1. [ have reviewed the interim filings (as this term is defined in Multilateral Instrument 52-
109 Certification of Disclosure in Issuers’ Annual and Interim Filings) of Addax
Petroleum Corporation (the issuer) for the interim period ending June 30, 2006;

2. Based on my knowledge, the interim filings do not contain any untrue statement of a
material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated or that is necessary to
make a statement not misleading in light of the circumstances under which it was made,
with respect to the period covered by the interim filings;

3. Based on my knowledge, the interim financial statements together with the other
financial information included in the interim filings fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the issuer, as of the date
and for the periods presented in the interim filings;

4, The issuer’s other certifying officers and | are responsible for establishing and
maintaining disclosure controls and procedures for the issuer, and we have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused them to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance that material information
relating to the issuer, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which the interim
filings are being prepared.

DATED: August 1, 2006
“Signed”

MICHAEL EBSARY
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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Addax Petroleum Corporation

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

For the three and six months ended June 30, 2006 ‘




MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(amounts presented are in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Addax Petroleum Corporation was incorporated under the Canada Business Corporations Act
on September 6, 2005 as a wholly owned subsidiary of The Addax and Oryx Group Ltd.
(“AQG”) for the purpose of acquiring all of the issued and outstanding common shares of
Addax Petroleum N.V., another wholly owned subsidiary of AOG, in connection with the
initial public offering of the common shares of Addax Petroleum Corporation (the “IPO”).

On February 16, 2006 Addax Petroleum Corporation completed its initial public offering of
21 million common shares and on February 24, 2006 it completed the issuance of an
additional 2.1 million common shares upon the exercise of an over-allotment option granted
to the underwriters by Addax Petroleum Corporation in connection with the IPO.

The aggregate gross proceeds from the issuance of common shares pursuant to the IPO and
exercise of the over-allotment option was CDN§ 450,450,000. Prior to the completion of the
IPO, Addax Petroleum Corporation acquired all of the issued and outstanding common shares
of Addax Petroleum N.V. from Addax Mining Holdings BV for cash consideration of CDN$
55,575,000 and 117,000,000 common shares of Addax Petroleum Corporation. As AOG
controls both Addax Petroleum Corporation and Addax Petroleum N.V., the transaction
occurred between entities under common control and was accounted in the books of Addax
Petroleum Corporation as a continuity of interests. Under this form of purchase accounting,
Addax Petroleum Corporation is deemed to have acquired Addax Petroleum N.V. at book
value. Subsequent to the acquisition, Addax Petroleum Corporation’s financial statements,
presented for comparative purposes, reflect the financial position, results of operations and
cash flows as if Addax Petroleum Corporation and Addax Petroleurn N.V. had been combined
since the inception of Addax Petroleum N.V.

Additional information relating to Addax Petroleum Corporation can be found on SEDAR at
www.sedar.com.

The following Management's Discussion and Analysis of Addax Petroleum Corporation
(the “Corporation”) should be read in conjunction with the Corporation's interim consolidated
financial statements as at June 30, 2006 and for the three and six month periods ended June 30,
2006 and 2005 together with the notes thereto and the consolidated financial statements of
Addax Petroleum N.V. as at and for the year ended December 31, 2005 together with the notes
thereto and related Management’s Discussion and Analysis. The consolidated financial
statements presented herein are those of Addax Petrofeum Corporation and its subsidiaries.

Certain statements in this report constitute forward-looking statements under applicable
securities legislation. Such statements are generally identifiable by the terminology used, such
as “anticipate”, “believe”, “intend”, “expect”, “plan”, “estimate”, “budget”, “outlook” or
other similar wording. Forward-looking information includes, but is not limited to, reference to
business strategy and goals, future capital and other expenditures, reserves and resources
estimates, drilling plans, construction and repair activities, the submission of development
plans, seismic activity, production levels and the sources of growth thereof, project development
schedules and results, results of exploration activities and dates by which certain areas may be
developed or may come on-stream, royalties payable, financing and capital activities,
contingent liabilities, and environmental matters. By its very nature, such forward-looking
information requires the Corporation to make assumptions that may not materialize or that may
not be accurate. This forward-looking information is subject to known and unknown risks and




uncertainties and other factors, which may cause actual results, levels of activity and
achievements to differ materially from those expressed or implied by such information. Such
Jactors include, but are not limited to: imprecision of reserves and resources estimates, ultimate
recovery of reserves, prices of oil and natural gas, general economic, market and business
conditions; industry capacity, competitive action by other companies; fluctuations in oil prices;
refining and marketing margins, the ability to produce and transport crude oil and natural gas
to markets; the effects of weather and climate conditions; the results of exploration and
development drilling and related activities; fluctuation in interest rates and foreign currency
exchange rates, the ability of suppliers to meet commitments; actions by governmental
authorities, including increases in taxes; decisions or approvals of administrative tribunals;
changes in environmental and other regulations; risks attendant with oil and gas operations,
both domestic and international; international political events, expected rates of return; and
other factors, many of which are beyond the control of the Corporation. More specifically,
production may be affected by such factors as exploration success, startup timing and success,
Jacility reliability, reservoir performance and natural decline rates, water handling, and
drilling progress. Capital expenditures may be affected by cost pressures associated with new
capital projects, including labour and material supply, project management, drilling rig rates
and availability, and seismic costs. These factors are discussed in greater detail in filings made
by the Corporation with the Canadian provincial securities commissions.

Readers are cautioned that the foregoing list of important factors affecting forward-
looking information is not exhaustive. Furthermore, the forward-looking information contained
in this quarterly report is made as of the date of this report and, except as required by
applicable law, the Corporation does not undertake any obligation to update publicly or to
revise any of the included forward-looking information, whether as a result of new information,
future events or otherwise. The forward-looking information contained in this report is
expressily qualified by this cautionary statement.

The Corporation defines "Cash Flow From Operations” or "CFFO" as net cash from
operating activities before changes in non-cash working capital. CFFO is not a recognized
measwre under Canadian GAAP. Management believes that in addition to net income, CFFQ is
a useful measure as it demonstrates the Corporation’s ability to generate the cash necessary to
repay debt or fund future growth through capital investment. Readers are cautioned, however,
that this measure should not be construed as an alternative to net income determined in
accordance with Canadian GAAP or as an indication of Addax Petroleum’s performance.
Addax Petroleum's method of calculating this measure may differ from other companies and
accordingly, it may not be comparable to measures used by other companies.

For the purpose of the following discussion and analysis, figures expressed on a per
barrel basis are derived using sales volumes rather than production.

117,000,000 shares of APC were given to AOG for APC to acquire Addax Petroleum
N.V. Therefore for calculating earnings per share, it is assumed that, prior to the Initial Public
Offering on February 2006, there were 117,000,000 shares of APC held by AOG.

There are no diluted shares and there are no off balance sheet transactions.

Except as otherwise indicated, certain defined words and terms used herein have the
meaning set forth in the Corporation’s Annual Information Form dated March 28, 2006.

This MD&A is dated August 1, 2006.




ABBREVIATIONS

Crude Oil and Natural Gas Liguids Natural Gas

Bbls........ Barrels mcf  thousand cubic feet

bbls/d ..... barrels per day mmef  Million cubic feet

mbbls ..... thousands of barrels bef billion cubic feet

mmbbls.. millions of barrels tcf trillion cubic feet
mbbls/d.. thousands of barrels per day meffd  thousand cubic feet per day
mmbbls/d millions of barrels per day mmcf/d million cubic feet per day

boe/d ...... barrels of oil equivalent per day bef/d  billion cubic feet per day
Mboe/d... thousands of barrels of oil
equivalent per day

Currency
$ United States dollars

CDN$ Canadian dollars
N Nigerian naira
CHF  Swiss francs




SUMMARY

The Corporation’s sales figures are reported gross of royalties and NNPC’s share of
Profit Oil and exclude any volumes held as inventory at the end of the period. Inventory held at
the beginning of period is included in sales during the period together with the related costs.

The Corporation currently produces and sells crude oil from 3 streams in Nigeria; Antan
(OML123), Brass (OML124) and Okwori (OPL90). The document will refer to OMLI123,
OML124 and OPL.90.

During the quarter ended June 30, 2006, the Corporation brought 3 new wells on-stream
(4 wells in the first quarter of 2006). These wells were in both OML123 and OPL90. Total
average daily production for the six months ended June 30, 2006 amounted to 80,132 bbls/d in
comparison to 55,860 bbls/d during the same period in 2005.

The Corporation’s total crude oil production for the six month period ended June 30,
2006 was 9.3 mmbbls from OML123, 0.6 mmbbls from OML124, and 4.6 mmbbls from
OPL90, as compared with 8.1 mmbbls from OML123, 0.6 mmbbls from OMLI124 and 1.4
mmbbls from OPL90 for the same period in 2005.

In March 2006, APC entered into three Production Sharing Contracts (“PSC’s”) with
the Joint Development Authority (JDA). The JDA administers the Joint Development Zone
(JDZ) between Nigeria and Sao Tome Principe. The three blocks awarded were JDZ 4 (APC as
operator with a share of 33.3%), JDZ 3 (APC non-operated share of 15%) and JDZ 2 (APC
non-operated share of 14.33%). During the second quarter, the Corporation purchased a further
5% of JIDZ 4 to increase its share in this block to 38.3%.

In June 2006, the Nigerian government approved a 40% assignment of the Okwok
property to the Corporation. Okwok lies directly to the south of OML123.

Net income increased to $114.4 million for the six month period ended June 30, 2006
from $82.4 million for the same period in 2005.

Net income in the second quarter of 2006 includes a stock based compensation award
of $12.6 million for 1,000,000 shares which have been awarded by AOG to current employees
and directors of the Corporation for past and future service. Once accepted by the employees,
the shares will vest over a three year period. Some of the shares vest immediately. As required
by GAAP, the Corporation has recorded the award based on the fair value of the vested shares
at grant date and will amortize the remaining share awards over the two year vesting period.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Three Months Ended

Six Months Ended

Jun30  Mar31  Jun30 Jun.30  Jun.30
2006 2006 2005 2006 2005
(% million) ($ million} ($ million) (% million) ($ million)

REVENUE
Petroleum sales 522.4 394.2 257.8 916.6 4549
Royalties {80.0) {73.3) (39.6) {163.3) (77.9)
Net sales 432.4 320.9 218.2 753.3 377.0
Other income 2.3 1.2 0.3 3.5 0.9
Total net revenue 434.7 32241 218.5 756.8 377.9
EXPENSES

 Operating 53.9 47.3 39.7 101.2 84.8
General and administrative 85 33 25 8.8 4.0
Preacquisition cosis 4.4 11.9 1.3 16.3 2.5
Share based compensation 12.8 0.0 0.0 128 0.0
Other (1) (0.5) 0.9 1.7 0.4 1.8
Depletion, depreciation and accretion 684.8 57.4 36.8 122.2 57.8
Total expenses 140.7 120.8 82.0 2615 130.9
Income hefore provision for income taxes 294.0 201.3 136.5 495.3 247.0
Provision for income taxes
Current (175.8) (84.1) (74.9) (260.0) (149.5)
Future (60.2) {60.7) (8.1} (120.9) {15.1)
Net income 57.9 56.5 53.5 114.4 82.4

Three Months Ended Six Monthg Ended
Jun.30 Mar. 21 Jun, 30 Jun.30 Jun.io
2006 2006 2005 2006 2008
($/bbl) ($/bbl) ($/bbl) {$/bbl) {$/hbly

REVENUE
Petroleurn sales 67.9 594 48.2 63,9 46.5
Royalties {(11.7) {11.0) {7.4) {11.4) {8.0)
Net sales 56.2 484 408 525 i85
Other income 0.3 0.2 0.0 0.2 0.0
Total net revenue 56.5 48.6 40.8 52.7 a5
EXPENSES
Operating 7.0 71 T4 71 6.6
General and administrative 0.7 0.5 0.5 0.8 04
Preacquisition cosis 0.6 1.8 0.2 11 03
Share based compensation 1.6 0.0 0.0 09 00
Other (1) 0.1 01 03 00 0.2
Depletion, depreciation and aceretion 8.4 8.7 6.9 8.5 5.9
Total expenses 18.2 18.2 153 18.2 134
Income before provision for income taxes 38.3 30.4 25.5 34.5 25.1
Provision for income taxes
Current (22.8} (12.7) {14.0} {18.1) {15.3)
Future (7.8) (8.1 (1.5) (8.4) {1.5)
Nat Income 13 18 1a.0 80 83
Notes:

(1) Other includes interest on long term debt, other interest and finance charges and foreign exchange losses

(gains).

(2) Figures expressed on a per barrel basis are derived using sales volumes rather than production velumes, and

adjusted for overlifts.




SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
Jun.30 Mar.31 Jun.30 Jun.30 Jun.30

2006 2006 2005 2006 2005
Revenue, befere Royalties {million) 522.4 3942 257.8 916.6 454 9
Net Income (million) 579 56.5 53.5 114.4 824
Per commaon share ($) 0.41 0.44 0.46 0.85 0.70
Cash Flow from Operations (million) 195.7 174.3 89.1 370.0 159.0
Per common share ($) 1.40 1.36 0.76 276 1.36
Capex, net of dispositions (million) 229.2 2455 69.4 474.7 1581
Net income / Revenue 11.1% 14.3% 20.7% 12.5% 18.1%

Note:

- 2006 per share amounts for quarters 1 and 2 of 2006 are calculated on a basis of 127,850,100 and
140,100,100 Common Shares, respectively, and for the six meonths ended June 30, 2008, per share
amounts are calculated on the basis of 134,008,840 common shares of Addax Petroleumn Corporation.

- 2005 per share amounts are calculated on the basis of 117,000,000 Common Shares of Addax
Petroleum N.V.

For the six months ended June 30, 2006, the Corporation recorded a net income of $114.4
million compared to a net income of $82.4 million for the same period in 2005. For the
second quarter of 2006, the Corporation reported net income of $57.9 million compared to net
income of $53.5 million in the second quarter of 2005.

Cash Flow From Operations for the six months ended June 30, 2006 increased by 133% to
$370.0 million from $159.0 million for the comparable period in 2005. Cash flow from
operations for the second quarter of 2006 increased to $195.7 million, up 120% from $89.1
million for the second quarter of 2005 and up 12% from $174.3 million in the first quarter of

2006.

The major reasons for the increase in revenue and cash flow from operations for the period
ended June 30, 2006 were the increased oil prices, and increased production from OPL90 and
OMLI123. These increases were partly offset by increases in taxes, royalties, operating
expenses, general and administrative expenses, depletion and other expenses.




. SELECTED OPERATING INFORMATION OPERATING HIGHLIGHTS

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
($/bbl) except daily production and sales in Jun.30 Mar31  Jun.30 Jun.30  Jun.30
number of barrels 2006 2006 2005 2006 2005
Daily production 79,892 80,374 52,307 80,132 55,880
Daily sales (1) : B4,607 73713 58,736 79180 54,006
Sales price (2) 67.85 59.41 48.23 63.895 46.53
Royalties : (11.69) (11.04) (7.40) {11.39) {7.97)
Operating expenses (6.99) (7.13)  (7.40) {7.05) (6.62)
Netback 4917 41.24 33.43 45.51 31.94

(1) including any overlift adjustment
(2) Total petroleum sales {overift included) divided by the number of barrels sold (overlift included)

The volume of daily sales has increased significantly in the six month period ended June 30,
2006 compared to the same period for 2005. The 2006 daily sales volumes for the period
ended June 30, 2006 amounted to 79,190 bbls/d compared to 54,006 bbls/day for the same
period in 2005. Daily sales volumes for the quarter ended June 30, 2006 were 84,607
bbls/day compared to 73,713 bbls/d for the first quarter of 2006 and 58,736 bbis/d for the
second quarter of 2005. This increase is mainly due to the production from OPL90 for which
the first lifting occurred in June 2005, and from OML123 due to additional development wells
being brought into production.

‘ The average sales price increased 37% to average $63.95 per bbl for the six months ended
June 30, 2006 up from 3$46.53 per bbl for the same period in 2005, and increased 41% to
average $67.85 per bbl in the second quarter of 2006, up from $48.23 per bbl for the same
period of 2005. The increase between the six month periods is due to the increase in the Dated
Brent Benchmark Price which increased by 33%.

Royalties per barrel have increased by 43% for the six months ended June 30, 2006 compared
to the same period for 2005 and have increased 58% in the second quarter of 2006 compared
to the same period for 2005. The increase is due to higher revenues.

Operating expenses per barrel have increased by 7% for the six months ended June 30, 2006
compared to the same period for 2005. This is primarily due to upward cost pressure from
high demand for oil services.

As a result, the netback has increased by 43% from $31.94 per barrel for the six months ended
June 30, 2005 to $45.51 per barrel for the same period in 2006.




PRODUCTION

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
. Jun.30 Mar.31 Jun.30 Jun.30 Jun.3o
OML123-124 . 2006 2006 2005 2006 2005
Production (mbbl} 5060 4'834 4'394 9'894 8'758
Daily Production {bbl) 55'602 53715 48'288 54'663 48'391
Royalties (mbbl) (1'1886) (920} {745} (1'933}) (1'601)
Daily Royalties {bbi) (13'038) (10'224) (8'182) {10'678) (8'844)
Daily Production Net of 42'564 43491 40'106 43'985 39'547
Royalties {bbl)
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
' Jun.30 Mar.21 Jun.30 Jun.30 Jun.30
OPL90 2008 2008 2005 2006 2005
Production {(mbbl) 2'210 2'399 1276 4'610 . 1'352
Daily Production {bb) 24'290 26'659 14'020 25'468 7468
Royalties {mbbh (321) (322) {66) (667) (66}
Daily Royalties (bbt) {3'533) (3'574) (724) (3'687) {364)
Daily Production Net of

" : : : 7104
Royaltiee {bb) 20757 23085 13296 - 21781

The daily production has increased by 43% to 80,131 bbls/d for the six months ended June 30,
2006 from 55,859 bbls/d for the comparable period in 2005. The increase in production is
mainly due to the Corporation’s extensive capital investment in 2006 which has resulted in
record levels of production.

In OML123, the daily production has increased by 14% from 44,930 bbls/d for the six months
ended June 30, 2005 to 51,136 bbls/d for the six months ended June 30, 2006. 2006 second
quarter production increased by 7,019 bbls/d or 15% compared to the second quarter of 2005.
Five new production wells have been added to this block in the six month period ended June
30, 2006 (2 wells added in Q2 2006).

In OML.124, the daily production has increased by 2% from 3,461 bbls/d for the six months
ended June 30, 2005 to 3,527 bbls/d for the same period in 2006. Q2 2006 daily production
increased 8% or 288 bbls/d compared to Q2 2005 production.

OPL90 commenced production in the first quarter of 2005, and has an average production for
the six months ended June 30, 2006 of 25,468 bbls/d compared to 7,468 bbls/d for the same
period of 2005. Q2 2006 production totalled 24,290 bbls/d compared to 14,020 bbls/d for the
same period in 2005. As at June 30, 2006, 8 wells were producing (June 30 2005: 4 wells).
One new production well has been added to this block at the end of Q2 2006. The reduction
of 2,369 bbl/d to 24,290 bbls/d in the second quarter of 2006 from 26,659 bbls/d in the first
quarter of 2006 was due to a shut-in on the FPSO in the second quarter when four mini-
manifolds were lifted and installed onto the FPSO.

The production split has changed with the continuing increase in production in OPL90. For
the six month period ended June 30, 2005, the number of barrels produced in OML123
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accounted for 81% of the total barrels produced, the other 19% being from OML124 (7%) and
OPL90 (12%). For the six month period ended June 30, 2006, barrels of production
progressed as follows: OML123 accounted for 64%; OML124 accounted for 5%; and OPL90
accounted for 31% of the total production.

CRUDE OIL PRICES

The selling price for each area is based on the Dated Brent Benchmark Price plus a premium
or a discount which depends on the quality of the crude oil.

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
Jun.30 Mar.31 Jun.30 Jun.30 Jun.30
($/barrel} 2006 2006 2005 2006 2005
Average Dated Brent Benchmark Price 69.62 61.75 51.59 65.69 49,55
OML123
Average Discount (3.16}) {4.90) {3.97) (3.97) {4.29)
Average Price 66.09 57.14 47,52 62.10 45.14
% of total lifting 62.49% 64.03% 76.21% 63.20%  83.94%
OML124
Average Premium 1.32 0.90 0.18 1.18 0.16
Average Price 71.33 62.81 51.51 68.56 50.33
% of total lifting 4.42% 2.80% 6.16% 3.67% 6.41%
OPL90
Average Premium 0.87 1.91 2.47 1.14 2.47
Average Price 70.16 63.56 56.88 67.02 56.88
% of total lifting 33.09% 33.17% 17.63% 33.13% 9.65%
Note:

Premium/(Discount) to Brent Crude are reported on a volume weighted basis for both the crude in question and
Brent Crude, whereas Dated Brent Crude prices are reported as averages of monthly values for the period.
Accordingly, the difference between the reported average realized petroleum prices and Dated Brent Crude
prices may not correspond to the Premium/(Discount) to Brent Crude.

Geopolitical issues, continued demand and refinery constraints have seen oil prices continue
to rise in 2006. The average dated Brent Benchmark Price has increased to an average price of
$65.69 per barret for the six months ended June 30, 2006 from an average price of $49.55 per
barrel in the comparable period in 2005 up $16.14/bbl or 33% on the same period a year ago.

The crude oil lifted from OML123 was sold with an average discount of $3.97 per barrel for
the six months ended June 30, 2006 ($4.29 per barrel in the six months ended June 30, 2005)
against the weighted average dated Brent benchmark price. This accounts for an average
discount of 6% in comparison to Brent. Q2 2006 sales averaged a discount of $3.16 or 5%
compared to $3.97 or 8% for the same period in 2005.

The average premium applied on the crude oil lifted from OML124 is $1.18 per barrel in the
six months ended June 30, 2006 in comparison to $0.16 per barrel in the six months ended
June 30, 2005. For the second quarter of 2006, there was an average premium on crude oil
lifted from OML124 of $1.32 compared to $0.18 premium for the same period in 2005.
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The average premium per barrel applied on the crude oil lifted from OPL90 for the six months
ended June 30, 2006 is $1.14 ($2.47 in 2005). The average price is $67.02 ($56.88 in 2005).
33% of the barrels lifted in six months ended June 2006 were from OPL90 compared to 10%
for the same period in 2005. The average premium applied on crude lifted from OPL9S0 for
the second quarter of 2006 is $0.87 ($2.47 in 2005) whilst the average price is $70.16 (856.88
in 2005).

PETROLEUM SALES

Petroleum sales are reported on the basis of production volumes sold gross of Royalties and
NNPC'’s share of Profit Oil and exclude any volumes held as inventory at the end of the
period. Any overlifts are accounted for as deferred income in the balance sheet.

The table below summarises the Petroleum Sales.

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
Jun.30 Mar.31 Jun.30 Jun.ag Jun.30
Petroleum sales in $ million 2006 2008 2005 2006 2005
OML123 318.9 2427 187.6 562.6 370.4
OML124 24.2 1.6 16.5 35.8 308
OPL90 178.3 135.9 53.7 318.2 53.7
TOTAL SALES 522.4 394.2 257.8 916.6 454.9

The petroleum sales have increased by 101% for the six month period ended June 30, 2006 in
comparison to the same period in 2005. Petroleum sales in the second quarter of 2006 rose
'103% compared to the second quarter of 2005. Petroleum sales include liftings from
OML123, OML124 and OPL90 (OPL90 liftings began in the second quarter of 2005).

Petroleum sales from OML123 for the six month period ended June 30, 2006 account for 61%
of the total (81% for the same period in 2005). Petroleum sales from OML124 account for 4%
of the total (7% in 2003). Petroleum sales from OPL90 account for 35% (12 % in 2005) of
total of revenue. Q2 2006 sales for OML.123 account for 61% of total petroleum sales (73%
in 2005); for OML124 5% of total petroleum sales (6% in 2005); and for OPL.90 34% of total
petroleum sales {21% in 2005).

The increase in petroleum sales in OMLI123 (52% between the six months ended June 30,
2006 and same period for 2005) from $370.4 million to $562.5 million is due mostly to the
increase in market prices. The impact of the increase in price is $153.6 million whereas the
impact of the increase in production is $38.5 million.

In OML124, the increase in petroleum sales by 16% from $30.8 million to $35.8 million is
due to the increase in the sales price. The impact of the increase in price is $9.6 million
whereas the impact of the decrease in production is $4.6 million.

In OPL90, the first liftings occurred in June 2005. The revenue of $318.2 million is mostly
generated by this new production.
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ECONOMIC SENSITIVIES

The following table shows the estimated afier-tax effect that changes to crude oil prices,
crude oil production and operating costs would have had on the Corporation's net income for the
six months ended June 30, 2006, had these changes occurred on January 1, 2006. These
calculations are based on business conditions, production and sales volumes existing for Q2
2006. The 1,000 bbis/d increase has been allocated equally between OML123/OML124 and
OPL90.

Factor Change (+} Net Incomne Impact  Net Income Impact
{$million) {$/share)
Price received for crude oil $1.00/bbl 2.8 0.02
Crude oil production 1,000 bbls/d 29 0.02
Increase in operating costs 10% (2.4} (0.02)

The impact of the above changes may be compounded or offset by changes to other

business conditions. [n addition, the table does not consider the relationships between the above
factors.




ROYALTIES

Royalties are comprised of NNPC Profit Qil, Education Tax, Royalty Oil, Niger Delta
Development Corporation (NDDC) levy and the Cost Penalty Arrangement (CPA). Royalties
are determined in accordance with the applicable PSC.

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended

OML123-OML124 Jun.30 Mar.31 Jun.30 Jun.30 Jun.30
$million 2006 2006 2005 2006 2005

Royalty Oil 242 17.7 14.8 419 316
NDDC Levy 2.9 35 1.7 6.4 34
Education Tax 49 31 2.8 8.0 56
NNPC's share of profit il 338 24.9 16.6 58.7 33.6
LCost Penalty Arrangement 28 3.8 0.0 6.4 go
Total 68.4 53.0 35.9 121.4 74.2

Three Months Ended

Six Months Ended

OPLY90 Jun.30 Mar.31 Jun,30 Jun.30 Jun.30
] $million 20068 2006 2005 2006 2005
Royalty Oil 7.9 6.2 1.7 14.4 1.7
NDDC Levy 2.9 3.1 20 6.0 2.0
Education Tax 2.0 1.6 0.0 36 Q.0
NNPC's share of profit oil 8.8 9.4 0.0 18.2 0.0
Cost Penalty Arrangement 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total 21.6 20.3 3.7 41.9 3.7
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
Total Jun.30 Mar.31 Jun.30 Jun.30 Jun.30
$million 2006 2006 2005 2006 2005
Royalty Qil 321 239 16.5 56.0 333
NDDC Levy 58 6.6 37 12.4 54
Education Tax 6.9 4.7 28 116 56
NNPC's share of profit oil 426 343 16.6 76.9 336
Cost Penalty Arrangement 2.6 3.8 0.0 6.4 0.0
Total Royalties 90.0 73.3 39.6 163.3 71.8

Three Months Ended

Six Months Ended

Total Jun.30 Mar.31 Jun.30 Jun.30 Jun.30
$/bbl 2006 2006 2005 2006 2005

Royalty Oil 417 3.60 3.08 391 ifn
NDDC Levy 0.75 1.00 0.69 0.87 0.55
Education Tax 0.80 0.7 0.52 0.81 0.57
NNPC's share of profit oil 5.53 5.17 3N 5.37 3.44
Cost Penalty Arrangement 0.34 0.57 0.00 0.45 0.00
Total Royalties 11.69 11.05 7.40 11.41 7.97

Royalties for crude oil lifted from OML 123 and OML 124 for the three and six months ended-
June 30, 2006 increased from comparable periods in 2005 primarily due to higher benchmark
prices and a significant increase in production. :

Royalties for crude oil lifted from OML123 and OML124 have increased by 64% from $74.2
million (37.59 per barrel) to $121.4 million ($8.47 per barrel). The Royalties for crude oil




lifted from OPL90 are $41.9 million ($2.94 per barrel) compared to $3.7 million in the quarter
ended June 30, 2003,

Royalty Qil from OML123 and OML124 increased by 33% from $31.6 million (33.23 per
barrel) in the quarter ended June 30, 2005 to $41.9 million ($2.92 per barrel} in the quarter
ended June 30, 2006. Royalty Oil is levied on petroleum sales, with the percentage of Royalty
Oil increasing with production. Royalty Oil has increased due to a combination of increased
production and higher benchmark crude oil prices in Q2 2006 compared to Q2 2005. OPL90
Royalty Oil for the six months ended June 30, 2006 is $14.1 million ($0.98 per barrel)
compared to $1.7 million in the six months ended June 30, 2005.

Profit Qil in OML123/124 is up 75% from $33.6 million in the second quarter of 2005 ($3.44
per barrel) to $58.7 million ($4.06 per barrel) in the same period of 2006. The increase is due
to the increase of 69% in revenues in OML 123 and OML124. Profit Qil in OPL90 for the six
months ended June 30, 2006 amounted to $18.2 million compared to nil the same period in
2005. In the second quarter of 2005, OPL90 enjoyed significant tax deductions, resulting in
nil profit oil.




OPERATING EXPENSES

The operating expenses presented below include costs relating to OML123/124 and to
OPL90.

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended

Jun.30 Mar.31 Jun.30 Jun.30 Jun.30

Operating Expenses in $ million 2006 2006 2005 2006 2005
OML123/124 369 35.7 311 726 56.2
QPL90 17.0 1.6 86 28.6 8.6
Total Producing Assets 53.9 47.3 39.7 101.2 64.8
$/obl lifted 6.99 713 7.33 7.05 6.57
$/bbl lifted in OML 123-124 717 8.05 707 7.58 6.36
$/bbl lifted in OPL90 6.64 526 8.56 6.00 8.56

There is a continuing upward pressure on operating costs due to high demand for oil services.
The Corporation continues to mitigate this upward pressure through a number of methods
such as using competitive bidding procedures and awarding long term contracts, but with
crude oil continuing at its historic highs, continual upward cost pressure is expected.

Operating costs for the three and six months ended June 30, 2006 increased from the
comparable periods in 2005. The increase is principally due to the coming on stream of
OPL90, to one off employee payments made for OML123/124 and to higher service costs
resulting from the increase in industry wide activity in reaction to higher crude oil prices.

The operating costs in OMLI123/124 have increased by 29% ($16.4 million) from $56.2
million to $72.6 million and from $6.57 per barrel in the six months ended June 30, 2005 to
$7.05 per barrel in the same period of 2006.

For OML123/124, the increase in operating costs -for the six months to June 30, 2006
compared to the same period in 2005 is mainly due to a $4.5 million increase relating to a
special bonus and allowances paid to the Nigerian staff following union negotiations, an
increase in vessel costs of $7.1 million including a settlement of a contract relating to the
period from April 2004 10 March 2006 (increase of $3.6 million), and an increase in FPSO
costs of $2.5 million.

For OPL90, total operating costs for the six months ended June 30, 2006 were $28.6 million
which mainly relates to costs related to the floating production storage and offloading vessel
(“FPSO™) ($18.4 million). The increase in operating costs for Q2 2006 compared to Q1 2006
were due to an increase in FPSO costs of $3.4 million including $2.0 million of agreed
variation orders relating to the modification of the FPSO, and a $0.4 million increase in
chartered ships and helicopters.

16




GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

General and administrative charges relate to corporate costs.

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
Jun.3o Mar.31 Jun.30 Jun.30 Jun.20
$million except per bbl amounts 2006 2006 2005 2006 2005
Corporate costs (million) 5.5 3.3 25 88 40
Corporate costs (per barrel) 0.76 0.50 0.44 0.61 0.40

Corporate costs have increased by 120% to $8.8 million in the quarter ended June 30, 2006
compared from $4.0 million in the quarter ended June 30, 2005. The main reason for the
increase is additional employees resulting from expansion activities within the commercial
and finance departments in the Geneva office working specifically on corporate activities.

PRE-ACQUISITION EXPENSES

Included in pre-acquisition expenses are costs related to the Corporation's New Venture
activity. Related expenditures are charged to the income statement pending finalization of the
Corporation’s rights to a license. These costs can include seismic purchases, studies (in house
and external) and consulting.

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
Jun.30 Mar.31 Jun.30 Jun.30 Jun.30
$million except per bbl amounts - 2006 2006 2005 2006 2005
Taq Tag Operating Costs 06 7.7 0.0 83 0.0
New Venture Costs - Nigeria 1.7 286 0.0 43 0.0
New Venture Costs - Other 2.1 1.6 1.3 3.7 25
Total Pre-acquisition costs 4.4 11.9 1.3 16.3 2.5

The reason for the increase from June 30, 2005 to June 30, 2006 is due to the Corporation
aggressively seeking new opportunities in its core areas,

Total Taq Taq costs incurred in the six months period ended June 30, 2006 totalled $8.3
million. This mainly comprises the field set up and support costs, together with final 2D
seismic expenditure. From the second quarter of 2006, the capital costs relating to Taq Taq
have been capitalized. Prior to this they have been expensed. There are a small amount of
operating expenses which have been charged to pre-acquisition expenses as no revenue is
generated from Taq Taq.

The New Venture costs have increased by $1.2 million from $2.5 million in the six months
ended June 30, 2005 to $3.7 million in the six months ended June 30, 2006. The Corporation
is continuing to increase its new venture activity in 2006, including the establishment of a
New Ventures — Nigeria department.

Nigeria New Venture costs decreased from $2.6 million in Q1 to $1.7 million in Q2 2006 due

to a successful acquisition in Q2 of Okwok. Costs relating to this project in Q2 have thus been
capitalized whereas in Q1 $0.8 million in relation to it was expensed.
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SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

Share-based compensation relates to share awards to employees and directors of the
Corporation. These awards can be granted immediately or over a three year period.

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
Jun.30 Mar.31 Jun.30 Jun.30 Jun.30
$million except per bbl amounts 2006 2006 2005 2006 2005
Share based compensation (million) 126 0.0 0.0 128 0.0
Share (earnings per share) 0.09 0.0 0.0 0.08 0.0

AOG has awarded 1,000,000 common shares of the Corporation to current employees and
directors during the second quarter of the year. The grant date of the shares was June 30,
2006. The shares vest as follows: 468,700 shares immediately; 265,650 shares on January 31,
2007; and 265,650 shares on January 31, 2008. The fair value of the common shares granted
of $26,852,702 is expensed over the vesting period. The earnings per share of this award is
$0.09 per share.

OTHER
Interest and debt commitment fees directly attributable to development activities are

capitalized to the respective cost pools and amortized on a unit of production basis with the
cost pool to which it relates.

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended

Jun.30 Mar.31 Jun.3o Jun.30 Jun.3o
($ million) 2006 2006 2005 2006 2005
Long term debt 0.0 0.0 83.8 0.0 183.8
Interest 06 1.2 0.2 18 0.2
Other finance charge 02 0.1 0.0 0.3 01
Foreign Exchange (Gain)/Loss (1.3) (0.4) 1.5 {(1.7) 1.5
Other Income (2.3) (1.2) {0.3) {3.5) (0.9)
Total {2.8) (0.3} 14 (3.1} 1.0

Other income has increased from $0.9 million in the six months ended June 30, 2005 to $3.5
million for the same period in 2006. The increase is mainly related to an increase in interest
income, which totalled $1.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2006 mostly generated
from cash received from the Initial Public Offering completed in February 2006.

The Corporation utilizes various financial instruments to manage its commodity prices, foreign
currency and interest rate exposures. These financial instruments are not used for trading or
speculative purposes. Currently the Corporation holds a foreign exchange forward contract to
manage its exposure to foreign currency risk with respect to the Swiss franc against the US
dollar. There are no liquidity risks associated with this instrument. Gains or losses on foreign
exchange forward contracts are included in other interest and finance charges. The Corporation
has no immediate plans to put in place other hedges or financial instruments.
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DEPLETION, DEPRECIATION AND ACCRETION (DD&A)

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
Jun.30 Mar.31 Jun.30 Jun.30 Jun.30

{$ million) 2006 2006 2005 2006 2005
Nigeria 64.0 56.6 357 120.7 56.3
Corporate 0.2 0.2 0.3 04 05
64.2 56.8 36.0 1211 56.8
Unwinding 0.6 06 08 1.1 1.0
Total depletion 64.8 57.4 36.8 122.2 57.8

The costs of oil and natural gas properties are depleted on a unit-of-production basis, based on
the Corporation’s share of gross estimated proved reserves. The proved reserves utilized to
compute DD&A for the quarter were based on the internal estimate of proved reserves at
December 2005 and adjusted for any additions or deletions. The Corporation used a proved
reserve estimate of 121.3 million barrels as at June 30, 2006. The proved reserve figure used
in calculating DD&A includes upward adjustments of 22.9mmbbls compared to the reserve
base as at December 31, 2005 due to increases in proved reserves in Okwori, Nda, Adanga
North, Adanga South and North Oron during the first 2 quarters of 2006.

The increase in DD&A from $56.8 million in the six month period ended June 30, 2005 to
$121.1 million for the same period of 2006 is mainly due to the inclusion of approximately
$37.9 million of OPL90 DD&A for the six month period ended June 30, 2006 ($19.7 for the
same period of 2006), and the increase in OML123 production.
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} . CURRENT INCOME TAXES

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
Jun.30 Mar.31 Jun.30 Jun.30 Jun.30
(3 million) 2006 2006 2005 2006 2005
OML123/124 131.2 76.7 74.5 207.8 148.9
OPLS0 44.6 7.3 0.0 52.0 0.0
Other 01 0.1 0.4 0.2 0.6
Current Income Taxes 175.9 84.1 74.8 260.0 149.5

Current income taxes have increased by $110.5 miltlion (74%) from $149.5 million in the six
months ended June 30, 2005 to $260.0 million in the six months ended June 30, 2006.

The overall increase in taxes in OML 123/124 is a result of the increase in revenues during the
period.

Taxes for OPL 90 have increased due to restrictions on accessing capital allowances. This is
due to the regulations of the Nigerian fiscal code.

In the second quarter of 2005 OPL90 enjoyed significant tax deductions, resulting in zero
current tax.

The “other taxes™ represent local income tax due by the Geneva Branch of Addax Petroleum

. Services, a subsidiary of the Corporation.
FUTURE INCOME TAXES

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended

Jun.30 Mar.31 Jun.30 Jun.30 Jun.30

(3% million) 2006 2006 2005 2006 2005
OML123/124 10.5 12.8 8.1 233 15.1
OPL20 49.7 47.9 0.0 97.6 0.0
Other 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Future Income Taxes 60.2 60.7 8.1 120.9 15.1

Future income taxes for OML123/124 increased by $8.2 million (54%) to $23.3 million in six
months ended June 30, 2006 from $15.1 million in the quarter ended June 30, 2005.

Future income taxes for OPL90 were $97.6 million in the six months ended June 30, 2006
compared to nil in the same period of 2005. The significant increase in future income taxes
for OPL90 is directly a result of the usage of tax allowances compared to the corresponding
period in 2003,
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
Jun.30 Mar.31 Jun.30 Jun30  Jun.30
{$ million) 2006 2006 2005 2006 2005
OML123/M124
Driliing 34.2 208.2 19.5 63.4 383
Facilities 23.8 418 -1.2 65.6 4.1
Other 4.2 27 1.2 6.9 49
Sub Total 62.2 73.7 19.5 135.9 47.3
OPL90/225
Okwori development 22.4 48.4 442 70.8 93.7
Nda development 49.6 32.5 44 821 541
Nda extended well test 0.0 - 0.0 - 81
Other 7.3 7.9 o8 15.2 1.0
Sub Total 79.3 88.8 49.4 168.1 107.9
Cameroon 0.1 6.5 0.1 66 0.5
Gabon 0.5 0.3 04 0.8 0.8
JDZ Block 2 3.7 15.1 0.0 18.8 0.0
JDZ Block 3 3.4 95 0.0 12.8 0.0
JDZ Block 4 284 41.4 0.0 69.8 0.0
Okwok 39.4 0.0 0.0 394 0.0
Iragq - Taq Tag 111 0.0 0.0 11.1 0.0
Other (1} 11 10.2 0.0 11.3 26
Total 229.2 245.5 69.4 474.7 159.1

There is a continuing upward pressure on capital expenditures due to high demand for oil
services especially for drilling rigs. The Corporation continues to mitigate this upward
pressure such as using competitive bidding procedures bidding on long term contracts, but
with crude oil continuing at its historic highs, continual upward cost pressure is expected.

Total capital expenditures have increased by 198 % from $159.1million for the six months in
2005 to $474.7 million for the six months in 2006 with quarter two increased by 230% from
$69.4 million in quarter two 2005 to $229.2million in quarter two 2006. This is mainly due to
new assets in three JDZ Blocks, Okwok and Taq Taq, Nda development, the OML123 FPSO
replacement and the increase of the number of drilling rigs operating for the Corporation from
two in 2005 to four at June 30, 2006.

For the first six months of 2006, total capital expenditures on OML123 and OML124 were
$135.9 million compared to $47.3 million for the six months of 2005. Drilling costs were
$63.4 million which comprised $7.5million of OMLI124 and $47.6 million of OML123
appraisal and development wells. OML124 commenced drilling in quarter two 2006. There was
an exploration well which was completed in quarter one 2006 for $8.3million which was a non-
commercial discovery. Facilities costs totalled $65.6 million on OMLI23 and OMLI24,
comprising $55.5 million for the OML123 FPSO replacement, the project commencing during
quarter three 2005, and $4.7 million for Adanga North extended well test which commenced in
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quarter four 2005. OMLI24 oil facilities expenditure was $2.1million. Other capital
expenditures on OMLI23 and OML124 were $6.9 million including capitalized studies of
$3.9 million, capitalized seismic costs of $0.4 million and $2.6 million of office capital
expenditure.

For the first six months of 2006, total capital expenditures on OPL90 and OPL225 were
$168.1 million compared to $107.9 million for six months of 2005. Capital expenditures on
OPL90 included $82.1million for the appraisal and initial development of the Nda field, which
commenced development in the third quarter 2005, and $70.8 million for development,
facilities and drilling costs on the Okwori property. The other costs of $15.2 million are
primarily capitalized seismic acquisition costs of $8.9 million on OPL225 which commenced in
the fourth quarter of 2005 and an Okporo exploration well in second quarter 2006.

Capital expenditures of $6.6 million in Cameroon for first six months 2006 are primarily related
to the acquisition of 3D seismic data which began in the fourth quarter of 2005.

Capital expenditures of $101.5 million in the Joint Development Zone Blocks for first six
months 2006 are mainly related to signature bonus payments and farm in fees for the JDZ Block
2 ($18.8 million); Block 3 ($12.9 million) and Block 4 ($69.8 million).

Okwok incurred costs in the third quarter of $39.4 million including $35 million Farm-in fees.
The Corporation farmed-in to 40% of the Okwok property, OML67 in Nigeria June 2006 but is
carrying all the Capex to production. Okwok costs commenced being capitalized for the first
time in the second quarter of 2006.

In Northern Iraq the Taq Taq field began appraisal drilling which, including support costs,
totalled $11.1 million in in the second quarter of 2006. Addax has a Farm-in Agreement with
Genel Enerji of Turkey for 30% interest in the Taq Taq field.

During the second quarter of 2006, costs relating to the Taq Tagq field in northern Iraq were
capitalized as the risks and rewards of ownership had been confirmed. Exploration and
development activities in Iraq may be subject to economic and political considerations such as
the risks of war, actions by terrorist or insurgent groups, community disturbances,
expropriation, nationalization, renegotiation, forced change or nullification of existing
contracts or royalty rates, unenforceability of contractual rights, adverse changes to laws
{whether of general application or otherwise) or the interpretation thereof, and foreign
governmental regulations that favour or require the awarding of contracts to local contractors
or require foreign contractors to employ citizens of, or purchase supplies from, a particular
jurisdiction.

Other capital expenditures mainly relate to the acquisition of a rig for the Taq Taq field in
Northern Iraq for $8.8 million in the first quarter of 2006.

Major Capital Projects

There are two major capital projects on OPL90, the Okwori field development, and the Nda
field development.

For the Okwort field development, the final two wells will be completed and tied in during June
and July 2006. The capital costs inception to date are $351.2 million, and the capital costs to
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complete the project are forecast at $60 million, including the gas export line for $35 million for
flares down compliance.

The Nda field development has currently 1 test well producing. In the first quarter the Nigerian
authorities gave approval for the full development of the Nda project. An appraisal well was
drilled Q4 2005 and three further development wells will be drilled in 2006 and brought on
stream in the third and fourth quarters of 2006.

The Nda development capital costs inception to date are $158.4 million, and the capital costs to
complete the project are forecast to be $42 million. It is planned to drill further appraisal wells
in the greater Nda area following the Nda field development project.

On OML123, the replacement FPSO work is ongoing, It is anticipated that the replacement will
be completed in the third quarter of 2006. Costs from inception to the end of June 2006 are
$77.3 million, and the capital costs to complete the project are forecast at $23 million. These
costs are for subsea pipelines and risers, FPSO moorings and topsides water injection package.

Okwok, Taq Taq and the three JDZ deep water blocks are still in the appraisal and exploration
stages.

Outlook

The capital expenditure forecast for 2006 is 6% less than the MD&A as of December 2005. The
capital expenditure forecast for JDZ 4 is $77.3 million, JDZ 3 is $15.9 million, and for JDZ 2 is
$21.4 million. The costs include signature bonuses, farm-in fees and technical studies. Okwok
2006 work programme is forecast at $68.3 million, including 2 appraisal wells, in addition to
the Farm-in fee. The capital expenditure on Taq Taq is expected to be $30 million in the second
half of 2006 for a further 2 appraisal wells and production facilities.

Total capital expenditures for the first six months were $474.7 million, and for the following
two quarters are forecasted to be: for the third quarter $240 million; and for the fourth quarter
$230 million.

Average production for 2006 is forecasted to be 85,000 barrels per day, with a production rate
by vear end of 100,000 barrels per day.

Proposed Transactions

On July 20, 2006, the Corporation announced that it had agreed with the board of Directors of
Pan-Ocean Energy Corporation Limited (“Pan-Ocean Energy”) to acquire two of its wholly-
owned subsidiaries, PanAfrican Energy Corporation (Mauritius) Ltd. (“PanAfrican”) and Pan-
Ocean Energy UK Ltd. (Pan —Ocean UK”), for CDN $1.605 billion in cash. PanAfrican owns
and operates an exploration, production and marketing business in Gabon, West Africa with
management and operational services being provided by Pan-Ocean UK. Funding will be
provided by a combination of internal cash resources and firm financing commitments from a
syndicate of lenders.
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The closing of the transaction, expected on or about September 7, 2006, is subject to three
quarters majority vote of both the Class A and B shares of Pan-Ocean Energy to be held at the
special meeting of shareholders of Pan-Ocean Energy on August 30, 2006 and approval of the
Royal Court of Jersey.

On August 1, 2006, the Corporation filed a preliminary short form base PREP prospectus with
the securities regulatory authorities in Canada relating to the distribution of up to 15,000,000
subscription receipts, each subscription receipt representing the right to receive one common
share of the Corporation, without payment of additional consideration. The Corporation has
also granted to the underwriters an over-allotment option in respect of up to 10% of the
subscription receipts purchased exercisable at any time not later than 30 days after closing of ]
the offering. The net proceeds of the offering will be used to fund a portion of the acquisition |
of PanAfrican and Pan-Ocean UK described above.

On August 1, 2006, the Board of Directors approved a dividend to shareholders of record on
August 24, 2006 in the amount of CDN $0.05 per common share to be paid on September 14,
2006. Holders of subscription receipts on the record date are entitled to receive the dividend
for each subscription receipt held.

The Corporation is planning to buy a production unit which is currently leased to OMLI123. The
technical review is ongoing. Assuming a positive result from the technical and commerciat
review, the unit will be bought in the third quarter of 2006 for approximately $30 million
including facilities and upgrade.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESQURCES
Overview

The Corporation's principal source of liquidity has been cash generated from operating
activities which has been supplemented as necessary by credit facilities and equity funds
generated from the IPO to meet increased capital expenditures, primarily for the development of
the Okwori property in OPL90 and expenditure relating to the JDZ blocks and the Taq Tagq
field. The Corporation has not experienced seasonal variations in its cash flows. Currently, the
Corporation generates all of its cash from operating activities from its Nigerian subsidiaries.
Provided applicable solvency and corporate requirements are satisfied, there are no legal or
practical restrictions in Nigeria on the ability of the Corporation's Nigerian subsidiaries to
transfer funds to the Corporation in the form of cash dividends, loans or advances. In addition,
there are no contractual restrictions on such transfers of funds to the Corporation by its Nigerian
subsidiaries,

The Corporation held total cash and cash equivalents of $333.9 million as at June 30,
2006.

On February 16, 2006, the Corporation was listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange by
way of an Initial Public Offering (“IPO”). Pursuant to the IPQO, the Corporation raised $355.1
million (CDN $409.5 million) of which:

e $17.6 million (CDN $20.5 million) was used to pay expenses related to the IPO;
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s $48.2 million (CDN $55.6 million) and 117,000,000 common shares of APC
were paid to acquire all of the issued and outstanding common shares of Addax
Petroleum N. V., previously held by AOG.

On February 24, 2006, an over-allotment option held by the underwriters was exercised
yielding net proceeds of $33.7 million (CDN $38.9 million) (gross proceeds totalled $35.5
million (CDN $41.0 million)).

Total net proceeds from the IPO, the over-allotment option and the share purchase
amounted to $322.9 million (CDN $372.4 million). Part of the proceeds were used to pay down
the Corporation’s debt. The balance of the proceeds will be used to fund the Corporation’s
ongoing capital expenditures.

The Corporation has a senior secured revolving credit facility with BNP Paribas as
Mandated Lead Arranger and Standard Bank as Lead Arranger with a borrowing base of
$300.0 miltion. This facility expires on December 31, 2008. The borrowing base was initially
set at $100.0 million, and is re-determined semi-annually based on NSAI's evaluation of the
Corporation's 0il and gas reserves, subject to the approval of the majority lenders. As at June 30,
2006, all amounts drawn on the credit facility were reimbursed. The credit facility bears interest
at floating rates linked to LIBOR plus a margin determined in relation to the percentage of
utilization on the first day of the interest period.

The following table summarizes the principal components of the corporation’s
consolidated cash flows for the periods indicated:

Three Months Ended ] End
Jun,30 Mar.21 Jun. 2o Jun.30 Jun.30

Net Cash Inflows (outflows) beforea movements

in warking capital (§million) 2006 2006 2005 2008 2005
Cash Flow from operations 185.7 1743 89.1 3700 159.0
Net cash flow used in investing activities {225.7) (102.4) (69.3) (328.1) {150.1)
Net cash flow {used in) financing activities 0.0 192.9 88.2 192.9 121.5
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (30.0) 264.8 108.0 234.8 121.4
(Increase) decrease in working capital 114.6 {22.2) (82.6} 924 (83.2)
Increasa (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents B4.6 2426 253 3272 38.2
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 3338 249.2 421 333.9 421

Cash Flow From Operations

Cash flow from operations was $370.0 million for the six month period ended June 30,
2006 compared to $159.0 million for the same period of 2005, representing an increase of
$211.0 million. The increase resulted from the increase in income before income taxes of
$248.4 million, due to higher prices and higher production from OPL90 and OML123
compared to 2005. For the quarter ended June 30, 2006, cash flow from operations has been
reduced due to the increase in current income taxes in OPL90 to $44.6 million from $7.3
million in the quarter ended March 31, 2006.

Net Cash Flow Used in Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities consists principally of the purchase of property,
plant and equipment, and intangible capital expenditures. Net cash used in investing activities
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was $328.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2006 compared to $159.1 million for
same period in 2005, representing an increase of $169.0 million. This increase is mainly due to
an increase by $101.5 million in capital expenditures on JDZ Blocks 2, 3 and 4, and an increase
of $39.4 in capital expenditures on Okwok. The remaining increase relates to increases in
capital expenditures in OML 123 and OPL 90.

Net Cash From (Used in) Financing Activities

Net cash from financing activities was $192.9 million for the six month period ended
June 30, 2006 compared to a cash inflow of $121.5 million in the same period 2005. The
Corporation received $371 million from the IPO. This cash inflow was partially offset by the
following outflows: repayment of long term debt (380 million in Q1 2006 in comparison to
$15.0 million in Q1 2005), payment of dividend ($50 million in Q1 2006 in comparison to nil
in QI 2005) and fees related to the purchase of Addax Petroleum N.V. by the Corporation.
The cash inflow for the half year to June 2005 consisted of loan drawdowns used to fund the
OPL90 development program.

COMMITMENTS

On July 20, 2006 the Corporation announced that it had agreed to acquire two wholly-owned
subsidiaries of Pan-Ocean Energy Corporation Limited offering CDN $1.605 billion in cash.
Funding will be provided by a combination of internal cash resources and firm financing
commitments from a syndicate of lenders. For more information, please refer to the ‘proposed
transactions’ section above.

The Corporation has assumed various contractual obligations and commitments in the normal
course of its operations and financing activities. These obligations and commitments have
been described in the December 31, 2005 MD&A and have not significantly changed during
the six month period ended June 30, 2006.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Corporation is exposed to several operational risks inherent in exploring, developing,
producing and marketing crude oil and natural gas. These inherent risks include: economic
risk of finding and producing reserves at a reasonable cost; cost of capital risk associated with
securing the needed capital to carry out the Corporation’s operations; risk of fluctuating
foreign exchange rates; risk of carrying out operations with minimal environment impact; risk
of governmental policies, social instability or other political, economic or diplomatic
developments in its international operations, and non-performance by counterparties to
contracts.

The Corporation uses a variety of means to help minimize these risks. The Corporation
maintains a comprehensive insurance program to reduce risk to an acceptable level and to
protect it against significant losses. Operational control is enhanced by focusing efforts on
large core regions with high working interests and by assuming operatorship of all key
facilities. Sales of crude oil are aimed at various markets to ensure that undue exposure to any
one market does not exist. Financial instruments are utilised to help ensure targets are met to
manage commodity prices, foreign currency rates and interest rate exposure. The Corporation

26



minimizes credit risks by entering into sales contracts and financial derivatives with only high
rated entities and financial institutions. In addition, the Corporation reviews its exposure to
individual companies on a regular basis, and where appropriate ensures that parental
guarantees or letters of credit are in place to minimise the impact in the event of default.

The Corporation’s current position with respect to its financial instruments is detailed in note
6 to the consolidated financial statements. The arrangements and policies concerning the
Corporation’s financial instruments are under constant review and may change depending
upon prevailing market conditions.

The corporation has direct responsibility for Health, Safety and Environment (HSE) in its
Nigerian and Cameroonian properties. The Corporation has implemented HSE policies in
respect of its operations. These HSE policies are an important part of the responsibilities of
the Corporation’s managers and significantly influence the operations of the Corporation.

The Corporation requires all employees and contractors to comply with HSE policies. The
HSE policies are codified in the Corporation’s HSE manual, which define individual HSE
responsibilities and suggests ways to promote and support a safe and healthy environment.
The Corporation circulates the manual to employees in all locations and managers regularly
discuss the policies with staff at periodic safety meetings. In Nigeria, the Corporation has a
dedicated HSE department that focuses on accident prevention, monitors operationai
compliance with the HSE policies and advises management on statutory and industry
requirements. The manager of this HSE department reports directly to the Managing Director
of Nigerian Operations of the Corporation and is a member of the management committee,
which meets weekly to discuss and direct the Corporation’s activities,

The HSE policy of the Corporation emphasizes leadership, commitment and training, risk
management, health and safety operations, environmental protection and incident response
plan.

ENVIRONMENT
Ag at
Jun.30 Jun.30 Mar.31
($ million) 2006 2005 2006
Asset retirement obligations 26.6 242 259
OML123-124 14.0 12.8 13.7
OPLI0 126 11.4 12.2

. The asset retirement obligation relates to both OML123/124 and OPL90 in Nigeria. The
Production Sharing Contracts (PSC) for OML123/124 specifies that the Corporation’s share
of the total asset retirement obligation shall equal the percentage derived from the relationship
of the anticipated remaining production to the production prior to the corporation assuming
the operatorship. Costs relating to property, plant and equipment constructed after the
Corporation assumed operatorship is allocated 100% to the corporation.
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The increase in the asset retirement obligation for both OML123/124 and OPL90 between the
six months periods ended June 30, 2005 and 2006 relates to the accretion of the liability over
this period.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

In the preparation of the Corporation's financial statements, management is required to
use judgements, assumptions and estimates in the application of generally accepted accounting
policies which has an impact on the financial results of the Corporation. These estimates and
assumptions are based on the best available information at the time, but may change due to new
events and additional information giving rise to changes in the estimates over time. Note | of
the Corporation's consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2005
explains the significant financial accounting policies used by the Corporation. The following is
a discussion of the critical accounting policies which use significant assumptions and estimates
in determining the financial results of the Corporation.

Estimated Oil Reserves

Reserve estimates have a significant impact on eamnings due to its impact on
depreciation and depletion rates and asset impairment. The Corporation's reservoir engineers
perform an internal evaluation on a bi-annual basis of all of its crude oil reserves. The
estimation of reserves are based on engineering data, projected future prices, expected future
rates of production and the timing of future capital expenditures, all of which are subject to
numerous uncertainties and interpretations. The Corporation expects over time that its reserves
will change, upwards or downwards, as a result of the results of future drilling, testing,
production levels, changes in future price estimates, and economics of recovery based on cash
flow forecasts. A change in the reserves estimate may result in a higher or lower depletion
charge to the income statement and affect the future tax charge. A lower reserve estimate could
result in a write-down of an oil property under the ceiling test.

Independent petroleum engineering consultants evaluate 100 per cent of the oil
properties on a semi-annual basis, and reconciliation is performed between the Corporation's
reserves estimates and that of the independent consultants.

Asset Impairments

Annually, an impairment test is performed to ensure that unamortized capitalized costs
do not exceed their fair value. An impairment loss will be recognized in the income statement
when the carrying value of a cost centre exceeds the estimated undiscounted future cash flows.
The future cash flows used in the impairment test include assumptions on oil prices, production,
and operating costs. Changes to any of these assumptions such as a decrease to future oil prices,
a decrease in reserves, or an increase in operating costs could result in the impairment of an
asset's carrying value.

Full Cost Accounting

The Corporation follows the full cost method for accounting for oil and gas properties as
described by the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants. Accordingly, costs incurred in
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the exploration and development of oil and gas properties are capitalized on a country by
country cost pool basis. Capitalized costs include land acquisition, geological and geophysical
activities, exploration and development wells, both successful and unsuccessful, related plant
and equipment, directly attributable interest costs, overhead charges directly related to
exploration and development and the estimated discounted cost of the asset retirement
obligations.

The capitalized costs are depreciated, depleted and amortized on a unit of production
method based on proved reserves for each producing cost pool. Costs relating to unproved
properties and certain development projects are not subject to depreciation, depletion and
amortization until production commences. The costs relating to unproved properties are

reviewed periodically and any impairment is transferred to the costs being depleted, or if it is

ascertained there are no reserves relating to the unproved properties, the impairment is charged
directly to the income statement.

Asset Retirement Obligation

The Corporation currently records the asset retirement obligations of fixed assets at fair
value when they are incwred, discounted to the Corporation's credit-adjusted risk free interest
rate. Retirement costs equal to the fair value are capitalized as part of the related capital assets
and are amortized to the income statement over the estimated life of the asset. Estimates of the
fair value of the retirement obligations can change over time due to legislation, current costs,
technology, interest rates and field life, which can affect the rate of amortization. Differences
between the estimated and actual costs to settle the retirement obligation could result in gains or
losses in the settlement of the obligation.

Income Taxes

The Corporation follows the liability method of accounting for income taxes under
which the future tax consequences are recognized for temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying value for financial reporting purposes. Future
income tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted or substantively enacted income tax
rates expected to apply in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to
reverse. The effect of a change in income tax rates on future income tax assets and liabilities is
recognized in the period in which the change occurs.

The Corporation earns capital investment allowances on capital expenditures in Nigeria.
The future income tax benefits arising from capital investment allowances are recorded when
the capital investment allowances are earned and reduce the carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment. Capital investment allowances are charged to future income tax in the statement
of operations as the tax benefits are realized,

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Corporation has entered into the following transactions with AOG:

= the Share Transfer Agreement between a subsidiary of AOG and Addax Petroleum
Corporation;
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» the Antan Crude Oil Supply Agreement, the Brass River Blend Crude Oil Supply
Agreement and the Okwori Crude Oil Supply Agreement (collectively defined as the
"Crude Oil Supply Agreements");

» the Management Services Agreement;
* Bunkering Agreement;

+ the Agreement for Services of Jean Claude Gandur, effective January 1, 2006
between APS and AOG;

+ the Trademark Agreement; and

+ the Non-Competition Agreement.

Share Transfer Agreement
3

Addax Petroleum Corporation and a subsidiary of AOG have entered into the Share
Transfer Agreement under which Addax Petroleum Corporation has acquired a full and legal
ownership of all of the outstanding shares of Addax Petroleum N.V. at the time of the IPO. In
consideration for the transfer of ownership of Addax Petroleum N.V. to Addax Petroleum
Corporation, the AOG subsidiary received the equivalent of 120,000,000 Commeon Shares.

The Crude Oil Supply Agreements

The existing Crude Oil Supply Agreements were executed at the same time as the Credit
Facility arranged by BNP Paribas, of which assignment of the Crude Oil Supply Agreements
and the proceeds from oil sales constitute a significant element of the loan security package.
The Crude Oil Supply Agreements shall terminate on the later of the Maturity Date and the
Final Discharge Date (as defined in the Credit Facility and anticipated to be December 31, 2008
at the latest).

The price of crude oil is determined for (i) Antan crude liftings, FOB Antan Terminal as
the average of Platt's Crude Qil Marketwire quotations, midpoint of spot assessment for Brent
Crude effective for the month of loading, plus/minus a premium on/discount off to be mutually
agreed by both parties, (ii) Brass River Blend crude liftings, FOB Brass River Terminal as the
average of Platt's Crude Oil Marketwire quotations, midpoint of spot assessment for Brent
Crude effective for the month of loading, plus/minus the differential as quoted in the Official
Selling Price for Brass River Blend Crude notified by NNPC to the Corporation for that month,
and (iii) Okwori crude liftings, FOB Okwori Terminal as the average of Platt's Crude Oil
Marketwire quotations, midpoint of spot assessment for Brent Crude effective for the month of
loading, plus/minus a premium on/discount off to be mutually agreed by both parties. In each
instance payment terms are in US dollars, paid offshore and 30 days from bill of lading date.
Under the agreements amending the Crude Oil Supply Agreements each dated November 2005,
ABYV will receive a marketing fee of $0.08 per barrel. The Corporation has the right of audit of
ABV's resale of Antan crude, Brass River Blend crude and Okwori crude. The payment
obligations of ABV under the Crude Oil Supply Agreements are guaranteed by AQG.
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The Crude Oil Supply Agreements offer a reliable and competitive means for the sale of
crude oil produced from its operations. The Board intends to have a semi-annual review of the
terms and conditions of this arrangement.

Management Services Agreement

AOG provides management services to the various subsidiaries of AOG. The services
include support in relation to financial control and reporting, legal, tax, risk and insurance,
human resources, information technology, training and local expertise in-country.

Unless terminated for a breach of terms, the initial duration of the Management Services
Agreement will expire on December 31, 2009 and will thereafter continue for further periods of
one year unless and until terminated by six months prior notice given at any time by either
party. The fee to be paid under the contract is $2.5 million per year for the term.

‘Bunkering

A subsidiary of AOG provides fuel bunkering for the Corporation’s FPSOs in Nigeria.

Agreement for Services of Jean Claude Gandur

Addax Petroleum Services Ltd has entered into a services agreement with AOG for the
procurement of services to be rendered by Mr. Jean Claude Gandur as Chief Executive Officer
and member of the Board of Directors of the Corporation. At present, it is anticipated that
approximately 90 per cent of Mr. Gandur's time will be dedicated to Addax Petroleum. The
total fee to be paid by the Corporation for such services is $1.1 million per annum.

Unless terminated for a breach of terms, this agreement shatl continue in force unless and until
terminated by nine months prior notice given at any time by either party.

Trademark Agreement

The Corporation identifies itself using names and logos that indicate a relationship with
AOG. The Corporation believes that association with the AOG trademark has been and will
continue to be beneficial. The Corporation’s regional strategic focus is the African continent,
particularly West Africa where AQG has established itself in the petroleum trading, oil storage
and retail petroleum products industries. The Trademark Agreement provides the Corporation
with the right to use under a sub-license agreement all registered and unregistered AQG
trademarks in any territory in which the Corporation has business activities.

Unless terminated for a breach of terms, the initial duration of the amended and restated
Trademark Agreement will expire on December 31, 2009 and will thereafter continue for
further periods of one year unless and until terminated by six months prior notice given at any
time by either party. The Corporation will pay AOG a fixed annual fee of $500,000 under this
agreement.

31




Non-Competition Agreement

AOG has agreed with Addax Petroleum that, provided AOG and Jean Claude Gandur
together own not less than 25 per cent of the issued and outstanding Common Shares, neither
AOG nor any of its subsidiaries will:

*» acquire any petroleum properties or facilities or participate in the exploration for or
development and production of petroleum or participate in any upstream petroleum
business opportunities, unless AOG has first offered such business opportunities to
Addax Petroleum and Addax Petroleum has declined to acquire such business
opportunities. Such offer must remain open for acceptance for a minimum of
30 business days. For purposes of certainty, petroleum trading, downstream
activities or non-petroleum resource activities of AOG shall not be considered
directly competing interests; or

+ participate in any person, other than acquiring not more than five per cent of the
equity of a publicly listed corporation, which engages in the above prescribed

activities.

QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Pefroleum Sales (million)
Net income (million)
Net income per share (5)

Cash Flow from operations (million)
Per common share ($}

Notes:

(1) Per share amounts for quarters 1 and 2 of 2006 are calculated on a basis of 127,850,100 and 140,100,100

2008 2005 2004
Q2 Q1 Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1 Q4 Q3 Q2
5224 3942 3785 3857 257.8 187.1| 1564 1468 1171
57.9 58.5 3841 B5.6 53.5 28.9 1.3 158 13.7
0.41 0.44 0.33 0.73 0.46 0.25 0.18 0.14 0.12
1857  174.3] 1460 163.2 89.1 €9.9 526 48.0 33.0
1.40 1.36 1.25 1.39 0.76 0.60 0.45 0.41 0.28

Commen Shares, respectively, and for the six months ended June 30, 2008, per share amounts are caluculated on
the basis of 134,008,940 common shares of Addax Petroleum Corporation.

(2) 2004 and 2005 per share amounts are caleulated on a basis of 117,000,100 common shares of Addax

Petroleum N.V.

(3) In the prospectus relating to the IPO of February 2008, the revenues did not take into account overlift adjustments for

quarters 1, 2 and 3 of 2005. In quarter 1, 2005 there was an overlift adjustment of $2.6 million which increased the petroleum
sales from $194.5 million contained in the prospectus, to $1987.1 million in the March 2005 income statement. In quarter 2,

2005 there was an overift adjustment of $2.1 million increasing the petroleum sales to $257.8 million. In quarter 3, 2005

there was an overlift adjustment of $2.1 million reducing the petroleumn sales to $385.7 million.

Petroleum Sales
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The petroleum sales have increased by 33% between Q1 2006 and Q2 2006 from $394.2
million to $522.4 million. This increase is due to both an increase in prices and an increase in
liftings during the quarters. The average selling price has increased by 16% from $57.14 to
$66.09 whilst the liftings increased by 17% from 6.6mmbbls to 7.7mmbbls. The increase is due
to the delay of a March 2006 lifting of 650,000 barrels in OPL90 due to the unavailability of
tugs and a lifting delay in OML124 of 120,000. Both liftings occurred in April.

The general upward trend over the eight quarters of increasing petroleum sales has

resulted from a combination of increased production from OML123, commencement of sales
from OPL90 in (@2, 2005 and increasing crude oil prices throughout the period.
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Net Income

Net income increased in Q2 2006 by 2% to $57.9 million from $56.5 million in Q 1. The
major reasons for the increase were a $128.2 million increase in petroleum sales which have
been offset by an increase in expenses of 13.3% or $19.8 million and an increase in taxes of
$91.8 million.

Expenses increased due to an increase in DD&A of $7.4 million in Q2 2006 compared
to Q1 2006 due to the increase in liftings discussed in the Petroleum Sales section above, an
increase in operating costs of $6.6 million from QI 2006 to Q2 2006 primarily due to the

increase in FPSO costs of $3.4 million and vessel and helicopter costs of $0.4 million in
OPL90, and a charge of $12.6 million relating to share based compensation partially offset by a
reduction in pre-acquisition costs of $7.5 million due to the capitalization of Okwok and Taq
Taq in the second quarter of 2006.

The increase in taxes from $84.1 million in Q@ 1 2006 to $175.9 million in quarter 2,
2006 is primarily due to the increase in taxes in OPL90 as discussed in the Current Income
Taxes section above and the increase in petroleum sales of $128.2 million, discussed in the
Petroleum Sales section above.

The general upward trend of increasing net income over the eight quarters is due to
increasing petroleum sales, partially offset by increasing operating costs, DD&A and taxes. In
quarters two and three 2005, the Corporation benefited from tax incentives in OPL90. In
quarter two 2006, the Corporation no longer benefits from these tax incentives.

Cash Flow from Operations

Cash flow from operations increased by 12% to $195.7 million in the second quarter
of 2006 compared to $174.3 million in the first quarter. The major increases in the second
quarter compared to the first quarter of 2006 were an increase of $1.4 million in net income,
as discussed above, and an increase in items not affecting cash of $19.9 million. This increase
was due to an increase in DD&A of $7.3 million and share based compensation of $12 6
million. Cash flow from operations in Q2 2006 was adversely impacted due to the increase in
current taxes in OPL90 of $37.3 million.

The general upward trend in cash flow from operations in the eight quarters is due 1o
increasing petroleum sales, partiaily offset by increasing operating costs and current taxes.
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ADDAX PETROLEUM CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (unaudited)
(US 3000’s)

June 30, December 31,
2006 2005
ASSETS
Current
Cash and cash equivalents 333,851 6,708
Accounts receivable (note 9) 213,152 134,033
Inventories (note 5) 93,562 62,753
Prepaid expenses - 16,733 15,506
659,298 219,000
Future income taxes 110,349 155,884
Deferred financing charges 3,946 4,763
Property, plant and equipment (note 3) 741 417 487,023
855,712 647,670
1,515,010 866,670
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 9) 283,963 160,113
Income taxes and royalties payable 424,131 203,626
Deferred revenue - 1,280
708,094 365,019
Asset retirement obligations 26,583 25,266
Future income taxes 73,643 93,093
Other long-term liabilities 8,423 4,909
Long-term debt - 30,000
: 108,649 203,268
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital (note 4) 391,060 20,010
Contributed surplus (note 4) 12,586 -
Retained eamnings 294,621 278,373
698,267 298,383
1,515,010 866,670

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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ADDAX PETROLEUM CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS (unaudited)

. (US $000’s, except per share amounts)
Three-month periods Six-month periods
ended June 30, ended June 30,
2006 2005 2006 2005
REVENUE
Petroleum sales (note 9) 522,449 257,805 916,610 454,857
Royalties (90,036) {35,570) (163,304) (77,864)
Net sales 432,413 218,235 753,306 376,993
Other income 2,271 231 3,504 856
Total net revenue 434,684 218,466 756,810 377,849
EXPENSES
Operating 53,848 39,672 101,117 64,733
General and administrative 5,523 2,498 8,803 4,030
Pre-acquisition {note 10} 4,431 1,253 16,343 2,460
Share-based compensation (note 4) 12,586 - 12,586 -
Interest on long-term debt 616 240 1,322 249
Other interest and finance income 684 63 322 120
Depletion, depreciation and accretion {note 3) 64,717 36,780 122,164 57,811
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss (1,800) 1,401 (1,743) 1,469
Total expenses 140,605 81,912 261,414 130,863
Income before provision for income taxes 294,079 136,554 495,396 246,986
. Provision for income taxes
Current (175,896) (74,947) {260,004) (149,511
Future (60,246} (8,136) {120,956) (15,095)
(236,142) (83,083) (380,960) (164,606)
Net income §7,937 53,471 114,436 82,380
Earnings per share, basic and diluted $0.41 $0.46 $0.85 $0.70
Weighted average number of common shares 140,100,100 117,000,000 134,008,940 117,000,000

outstanding, basic and diluted

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF RETAINED EARNINGS (unaudited)

(US $000’s)
Three-month periods Six-month periods
ended June 39, ended June 30,
2006 2005 2006 2005
Retained earnings, beginning of period 236,684 186,212 278,373 157,303
Net income 57,937 53,471 114,436 82,380
Distribution of earnings (note 1) - - (48,188) -
Dividends - - (50,000) -
Retained earnings, end of period 294,621 239,683 294,621 239,683
. See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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ADDAX PETROLEUM CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (unaudited)

(US $000°s)

Three-month periods

Six-month periods

ended June 30, ended June 30,
2006 2005 2006 2005
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITES
Net income 57,937 53,471 114,436 82,380
Items not affecting cash (note 7) 137,732 35,594 255,529 76,592
' 195,669 89,065 369,965 158,972
Changes in non-cash working capital {note 7) 114,648 (82,643) 92,442 (83,153)
310,317 6,422 462,407 75,819
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Expenditures on property, plant and equipment (225,689) {69,343) (328,126) (159,120)
(225,689) {69,343) (328,126) (159,120)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt - 75,000 . 125,000
Proceeds from {repayment of) long-term debt - 15,000 {80,000} -
Debt issues costs - (1,750) - (3,500)
Dividends paid - - (50,000) -
Proceeds from share issue (note 1) - - 371,050 -
Distribution of earnings (note 1) - - (48,188) -
- 88,250 192,862 121,500
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 84,628 25,329 327,143 38,199
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 249,223 16,752 6,708 3,882
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period 333,851 42,081 333,851 42,081

See accompanying noles to the consolidated financial statements
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ADDAX PETROLEUM CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudited)
June 30, 2006 and 2005

(US$, except as noted. Tabular amounts in US$ 000s, except as noted)

1. GENERAL

Addax Petroleum Corporation (the “Corporation”) was incorporated under the Canada
Business Corporations Act on September 6, 2005 as a wholly owned subsidiary of The Addax
and Oryx Group Ltd. (“AOG”) for the purpose of acquiring all of the issued and outstanding
common shares of Addax Petroleum N.V., another wholly owned subsidiary of AOG, in
connection with the initial public offering of the common shares of the Corporation (the
“IPO™).

On February 16, 2006, the Corporation completed its IPO of 21.0 million common shares and
on February 24, 2006 it completed the issuance of an additional 2.1 million common shares
upon the exercise of an over-allotment option granted to the underwriters by Addax Petroleum
Corporation in connection with the [PO. Total net proceeds from the issuances were
approximately $371,050,000.

In conjunction with the completion of the IPO, the Corporation acquired all of the issued and
outstanding common shares of Addax Petroleum N.V. for cash consideration of $48,188,360
and the issuance of 117,000,000 common shares. The cash consideration has been accounted
for as a distribution of earnings. As AOG controls both the Corporation and Addax Petroleum
N.V,, the acquisition occurred between entities under common control and was accounted for
in the books of the Corporation as a continuity of interests. Under this form of purchase
accounting, Addax Petroleum Corporation is deemed to have acquired Addax Petroleum N.V.
at book value. Subsequent to the acquisition, the Corporation’s financial statements presented
for comparative purposes reflect the financiat position, results of operations and cash flows as
if the Corporation and Addax Petroleum N.V. had been combined since the inception of
Addax Petroleum N.V,

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The interim consolidated financial statements of the Corporation include the Corporation, its
wholly-owned subsidiaries and its interests in joint ventures, and have been prepared
following the same accounting policies as the audited consolidated financial statements of
Addax Petroleum N.V. as at December 31, 2005. The interim financial statements contain
disclosures that are supplemental to the Corporation’s annual audited consolidated financial
statements. Certain disclosures that are normally required to be included in the notes to the
annual audited consolidated financial statements have been condensed. These financial
statements should be read in conjunction with Addax Petroleum N.V.’s audited consolidated
financial statements and notes thereto for the year ended December 31, 2005,
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ADDAX PETROLEUM CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudited)

(USS, except as noted. Tabutar amounts in US$ 000s, except as noted)

3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

June 30, December 31,
2006 2005

Oil and natural gas properties 1,257,664 890,914
Accumulated depletion (529,268) (407,644)

728,396 483,270

Corporate assets 17,097 7,289
Accumulated depreciation {4,076) (3,536)

13,621 3,753

Balance 741,417 487,023

Property, plant and equipment by cost centre is as follows:

June 30, December 31,
- 2006 2005

Cost Centre

Nigeria 581,690 468,289
Cameroon 11,994 5,401
Gabon 10,354 9,580
Iraq 11,070 -
Joint Development Zone 113,288 -
QOther corporate assets 13,021 3,753
Balance, end of period 741,417 487,023
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ADDAX PETROLEUM CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(unaudited)
(USS$, except as noted. Tabular amounts in US$ 000s, except as noted)

Included in property, plant and equipment are certain costs not subject to depletion and
depreciation as follows:

June 30, December 31,

2006 2005
Unproved properties
Cameroon 11,994 5,401
Gabon 10,354 9,580
Iraq 11,070 -
Joint Development Zone 113,288 -
146,706 14,981

In March 2006, the Corporation entered into three production sharing contracts (“PSCs”) with
the Joint Development Authority which administers the Joint Development Zone (JDZ)
between Nigeria and Sio Tomé e Principe.

In June 2006, the Nigerian government approved the assignment of a 40% interest in the
Okwok property to the Corporation.

During the second quarter of 2006, costs relating to the Taq Taq field in northern Iraq were
capitalized as the risks and rewards of ownership had been confirmed. Exploration and
development activities in Iraq may be subject to economic and political considerations such as
the risks of war, actions by terrorist or insurgent groups, community disturbances,
expropriation, nationalization, renegotiation, forced change or nullification of existing
contracts or royalty rates, unenforceability of contractual rights, adverse changes to laws
(whether of general application or otherwise) or the interpretation thereof, and foreign
governmental regulations that favour or require the awarding of contracts to local contractors
or require foreign contractors to employ citizens of, or purchase supplies from, a particular
jurisdiction. .
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. ADDAX PETROLEUM CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudited)
(USS$, except as noted. Tabular amounts in US$ 000s, except as noted)

4. SHARE CAPITAL

The Corporation is authorized to issue an unlimited number of common shares and an
unlimited number of preferred shares, issuable in series.

Issued and Qutstanding

Six-month period ended

June 30, 2006
Common
Shares Amount
Balance, beginning of period 117,000,100 20,010
Issued pursuant to IPO 23,100,000 371,050
Balance, end of period 140,100,100 391,060

Share-Based Compensation

i AOG has awarded 1,000,000 common shares of the Corporation to current employees and
| directors during the second quarter of the year. The grant date of the shares was June 30,
2006. The shares vest as follows: 468,700 shares immediately; 265,650 shares on January 31,
‘ 2007; and 265,650 shares on January 31, 2008. The fair value of the common shares granted
| . of $26,852,702 is expensed over the vesting period.
|
|
|

5. INVENTORIES

June 30, December 31,

| 2006 2005

I

| Oil products 39416 19,269
Materials and supplies 56,146 43,484
Balance 95,562 62,753
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ADDAX PETROLEUM CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudited)
(USS$, except as noted. Tabular amounts in US$ 000s, except as noted)

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Corporation uses certain derivative financial instruments to manage its commodity prices
and foreign currency exposures. These financial instruments are not used for trading or
speculative purposes. The Corporation had the following financial derivatives outstanding as
at June 30, 2006:

Foreign currency forward

Remaining term July 2006 - December 2006
Amount $1.5 million / month
Average exchange rate

{United Stated dollar / Swiss Franc) 1.268

Contract value $ 175,296

7. CASH FLOWS

(a) Items not affecting cash

Three-month periods Six-month periods
ended June 30, ended June 30,

2006 2005 2006 2005
Future income taxes 60,246 8,136 120,956 15,095
Depletion, depreciation and accretion 64,717 36,780 122,164 57,811
Change in fair value of derivatives 137 34 230 333
Share-based compensaticn 12,586 - 12,586 -
Other items, including foreign exchange 46 (9,356) (407) 3,353
Total items not affecting cash 137,732 35,594 255,529 76,592

(b) Changes in non-cash working capital
Three-month periods Six-month periods
ended June 30, ended June 30,

2006 2005 2006 2005
Accounts receivable (90,044) (67,193) {(79,119) (42,828)
Prepaid expenses 18,612 936 (1,227) 860
Inventories (9,819) (12,054) (23,823) (18,453)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities {12,609) 6,338 (22,614) 50,569
Tax and royalties payable 208,508 (11,095) 220,505 (71,196)
Deferred revenue - 425 {1,280) {2,105)
Changes in non-cash working capital 114,648 {82,643) 92,442 (83,153)
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ADDAX PETROLEUM CORPORATION:
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudited)
(USS$, except as noted. Tabular amounts in US$ 000s, except as noted)

(c) Other cash flow information

Three-month periods Six-month periods
ended June 30, ended June 30,
2006 2005 2006 2005
Interest paid - (1,391) (1,183) (4,676)
Income taxes paid (196) - (196) -
Total items not affecting cash (196) (1,391) (1,379) (4,676)

The Corporation pays taxes and royalties in Nigeria through government liftings taken-in-
kind. For the six month period ended June 30, 2006, such government liftings totalled
$195,609,000 ($56,043,000 for the quarter ended June 30, 2006).

8. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES
Included in the consolidated financial statements are the following items that represent the

Corporation’s interests in the jointly controtled assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of the
Joint ventures in Cameroon, Gabon, Iraq, JDZ and the Okwok property in Nigeria.

June 30, December 31,

2006 2005
Non-current assets 118,456 14,982
Current assets . 43,062 6,749
Non-current liabilities -
Current liabilities (210,703) (40,683)
Net liabilities (49,185 18,952
Income - -
Expenses 24,677 10,915
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. ADDAX PETROLEUM CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudited)
(US$, except as noted. Tabular amounts in US$ 000s, except as noted)

9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The following transactions took place between the Corporation and AOG and its other
subsidiary companies:

Three-month periods Six-month periods
ended June 390, ended June 30,

2006 2005 2006 2005
Sales to Addax B.V. : 356,289 136,032 529,650 236,223
Charges:
Addax Bunkering Services (3,786) - (9,919) -
AQG Advisory Services Litd (625) (497) (1,250) (1,122)
Addax BV (3,265) (2098) (3,602) (2,670)
Other entities (13) (379) @7 (627)

The sales to Addax B.V., the sole marketer of the Corporation’s crude oil, were made on the
same terms and conditions as with Addax B.V.’s non-related customers. The charges from
AOG Advisory Services Ltd., include management services, trademark licence and

. information technology support. Charges from Addax Bunkering Services are for the
purchase of fuel for the Corporation’s bunkering operations. Other items include charges
from Addax Limited for the refund of services paid on behalf of the Corporation. Addax B.V.
and Addax Limited are subsidiaries of AOG.

Amounts due from (to) related parties as included in accounts receivable and accounts
payable, respectively, in the consolidated balance sheet are as follows:

June 30, December 31,
2006 2005
Addax B.V. 73,425 109,694
AOG Advisory Services Ltd 3 281
Addax Limited 33) (2,943)

10. PRE-ACQUISITION EXPENSES

Included in pre-acquisition expenses are costs related to the Corporation's new venture
activity. Related expenditures are charged to the income statement pending finalization of the
Corporation's rights to a license. These costs can include seismic purchases, studies (in-house
and external) and consulting. Beginning in the second quarter of 2006, capital costs related to
the Corporation’s interest in the Taq Taq field in northern Iraq have been capitalized.
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. ADDAX PETROLEUM CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudited)
(USS$, except as noted. Tabular amounts in US$ 000s, except as noted)

11. EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO JUNE 30, 2006

On July 20, 2006, the Corporation announced that it had agreed with the board of Directors of
Pan-Ocean Energy Corporation Limited (“Pan-Ocean Energy™) to acquire two of its wholly-
owned subsidiaries, PanAfrican Energy Corporation (Mauritius) Ltd. (“PanAfrican”) and Pan-
Ocean Energy UK Ltd. (Pan ~Ocean UK”), for CDN $1.605 billion in cash. PanAfrican owns
and operates an exploration, production and marketing business in Gabon, West Africa with
management and operational services being provided by Pan-Ocean UK. Funding will be

| provided by a combination of internal cash resources and firm financing commitments from a

| syndicate of lenders.

I

The closing of the transaction, expected on or about September 7, 2006, is subject to three
quarters majority vote of both the Class A and B shares of Pan-Ocean Energy to be held at the
special meeting of shareholders of Pan-Ocean Energy on August 30, 2006 and approval of the
Royal Court of Jersey.

On August 1, 2006, the Corporation filed a preliminary short form base PREP prospectus with

the securities regulatery authorities in Canada relating to the distribution of up to 15,000,000

| subscription receipts, each subscription receipt representing the right to receive one common

| share of the Corporation, without payment of additional consideration. The Corporation has

; also granted to the underwriters an over-allotment option in respect of up to 10% of the

I . subscription receipts purchased exercisable at any time not later than 30 days after closing of
the offering. The net proceeds of the offering will be used to fund a portion of the acquisition

of PanAfrican and Pan-Ocean UK described above.

August 24, 2006 in the amount of CDN $0.05 per common share to be paid on September 14,
2006. Holders of subscription receipts on the record date are entitled to receive the dividend

|
I
|
On August 1, 2006, the Board of Directors approved a dividend to shareholders of record on
for each subscription receipt held.
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FORM 52-109F2
CERTIFICATION OF INTERIM FILINGS

I, JEAN CLAUDE GANDUR, Chief Executive Officer of ADDAX PETROLEUM
CORPORATION, certify that:

I

I have reviewed the interim filings (as this term is defined in Multilateral Instrument
52-109 Certification of Disclosure in Issuers’ Annual and Interim Filings) of Addax
Petroleum Corporation (the issuer) for the interim period ending March 31, 2006;

Based on my knowledge, the interim filings do not contain any untrue statement of a
material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated or that is necessary to
make a statement not misleading in light of the circumstances under which it was made,
with respect to the period covered by the interim filings;

Based on my knowledge, the interim financial statements together with the other
financial information included in the interim filings fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the issuer, as of the date
and for the pertods presented in the interim filings;

The issuer’s other certifying officers and | are responsible for establishing and
maintaining disclosure controls and procedures for the issuer, and we have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused them to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance that material information
relating to the issuer, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which the interim
filings are being prepared.

DATED: May 11, 2006

“Signed

"

JEAN CLAUDE GANDUR
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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FORM 52-109F2
CERTIFICATION OF INTERIM FILINGS

[, MICHAEL EBSARY, Chief Financial Officer of ADDAX PETROLEUM
CORPORATION, certify that:

1. I have reviewed the interim filings (as this term is defined in Multilateral Instrument
52-109 Certification of Disclosure in Issuers’ Annual and Interim Filings) of Addax
Petroleum Corporation (the issuer) for the interim period ending March 31, 2006;

2. Based on my knowledge, the interim filings do not contain any untrue statement of a
material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated or that is necessary to
make a statement not misleading in light of the circumstances under which it was made,
with respect to the period covered by the interim filings;

3. Based on my knowledge, the interim financial statements together with the other
financial information included in the interim filings fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the issuer, as of the date
and for the periods presented in the interim filings;

4, The issuer’s other certifying officers and 1 are responsible for establishing and
. maintaining disclosure controls and procedures for the issuer, and we have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused them to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance that material information
relating to the issuer, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which the interim
filings are being prepared.

DATED: May 11, 2006

“Signed”
MICHAEL EBSARY
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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Addax Petroleum Corporation

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

For the three months ended March 31, 2006




MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(amounts presented are in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Addax Petroleum Corporation was incorporated under the Canada Business Corporations Act
on September 6, 2005 as a wholly owned subsidiary of The Addax and Oryx Group Ltd.
(“AOG”) for the purpose of acquiring all of the issued and outstanding common shares of
Addax Petroleum N.V., another wholly owned subsidiary of AOG, in connection with the
initial public offering of the common shares of Addax Petroleum Corporation (the “IPO”).

On February 16, 2006 Addax Petroleum Corporation completed its initial public offering of
21 million common shares and on February 24, 2006 it completed the issuance of an
additional 2.1 million common shares upon the exercise of an over-allotment option granted
to the underwriters by Addax Petroleum Corporation in connection with the [PO.

The aggregate gross proceeds from the issuance of common shares pursuant to the [PO and
exercise of the over-allotment option was CDN$ 450,450,000. Prior to the completion of the
IPO, Addax Petroleum Corporation acquired all of the issued and outstanding common shares
of Addax Petroleum N.V. from Addax Mining Holdings BV for cash consideration of CDN$
55,575,000 and 117,000,000 common shares of Addax Petroleum Corporation. As AOG
controls both Addax Petroleum Corporation and Addax Petroleum N.V., the transaction
occurred between entities under common control and was accounted in the books of Addax
Petroleum Corporation as a continuity of interests. Under this form of purchase accounting,
Addax Petroleum Corporation is deemed to have acquired Addax Petroleum N.V. at book
value. Subsequent to the acquisition, Addax Petroleum Corporation’s financial statements,
presented for comparative purposes, reflect the financial position, results of operations and
cash flows as if Addax Petroleum Corporation and Addax Petroleum N.V. had been combined
since the inception of Addax Petroleum N.V.

Additional information relating to Addax Petroleum Corporation can be found on SEDAR at
www, sedar.com,

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Addax Petroleum Corporation
(the “Corporation”} should be read in conjunction with the Corporation’s interim consolidated
financial statements as at March 31, 2006 and for the three months periods ended March 31,
2006 and 2005 together with the notes thereto and the consolidated financial statements of
Addax Petroleum N.V. as at and for the year ended December 31, 2005 together with the notes
thereto and related Management's Discussion and Analysis. The consolidated financial
Statements presented herein are those of Addox Petroleum Corporation and its subsidiaries.

Certain statements in this report constitute forward-looking statements under applicable
securities legislation. Such statements are generally identifiable by the terminology used, such
as “anticipate”, “believe”, “intend”, “expect”, “plan”, “estimate", “budget”, “outlook” or
other similar wording. Forward-looking information includes, but is not limited to, reference to
business strategy and goals, future capital and other expenditures, reserves and resources
estimates, dritling plans, construction and repair activities, the submission of development
plans, seismic activity, production levels and the sources of growth theredf, project development
schedules and results, results of exploration activities and dates by which certain areas may be
developed or may come on-stream, royalties payable, financing and capital activities,
contingent liabilities, and environmental matters. By its very nature, such forward-looking
information requires the Corporation to make assumptions that may not materialize or that may
not be accurate. This forward-looking information is subject to known and unknown risks and




uncertainties and other factors, which may cause actual results, levels of activity and
achievements to differ materially from those expressed or implied by such information. Such
Jactors include, but are not limited to: imprecision of reserves and resources estimates, uitimate
recovery of reserves, prices of oil and natural gas, general economic, market and business
conditions, industry capacity; competitive action by other companies; fluctuations in oil prices;
refining and marketing margins; the ability to produce and transport crude oil and natural gas
to markets; the effects of weather and climate conditions; the results of exploration and
development drilling and related activities; fluctuation in interest rates and foreign currency
exchange rates; the ability of suppliers to meet commitments; actions by governmental
authorities, including increases in taxes, decisions or approvals of administrative tribunals;
changes in environmental and other regulations; risks attendant with oil and gas operations,
both domestic and international; international political events; expected rates of return; and

other factors, many of which are beyond the control of the Corporation. More specifically,
production may be affected by such factors as exploration success, startup timing and success,
Jacility reliability, reservoir performance and natural decline rates, water handling, and
drilling progress. Capital expenditures may be affected by cost pressures associated with new
capital projects, including labour and material supply, project management, drilling rig rates
and availability, and seismic costs. These factors are discussed in greater detail in filings made
by the Corporation with the Canadian provincial securities commissions.

Readers are cautioned that the foregoing list of important factors affecting forward-
looking information is not exhaustive. Furthermore, the forward-looking information contained
in this quarterly report is made as of the date of this report and, except as required by
applicable law, the Corporation does not undertake any obligation to update publicly or to
revise any of the included forward-looking information, whether as a result of new information,
Juture events or otherwise. The forward-looking information contained in this report is
expressly qualified by this cautionary statement.

The Corporation defines "Cash Flow From Operations” or "CFFO" as net cash from
operating activities before changes in non-cash working capital. CFFO is not a recognized
measure under Canadian GAAP. Management believes that in addition to net income, CFFQ is
a useful measure as it demonstrates the Corporation’s ability to generate the cash necessary to
repay debt or fund future growth through capital investment. Readers are cautioned, however,
that this measure should not be construed as an alternative to net income determined in
accordance with Canadian GAAP or as an indication of Addax Petroleum's performance.
Addax Petroleum's method of calculating this measure may differ from other companies and
accordingly, it may not be comparable to measures used by other companies.

For the purpose of the following discussion and analysis, figures expressed on a per
barrel basis are derived using sales volumes rather than production.

117,000,000 shares of APC were given to Addax and Oryx Group (A0G) for APC to
acquire Addax Petroleum N.V. Therefore for calculating earnings per share, it is assumed that,
prior to the Initial Public Offering on February 2006, there were 117,000,000 shares of APC
held by AOG.

There are no diluted shares and there are no off balance sheet transactions.

Except as otherwise indicated, certain defined words and terms used herein have the
meaning set forth in the Corporation's Annual Information Form dated March 28, 2006.




This MD&A is dated May 3, 2006.

ABBREVIATIONS
Crude Oil and Natural Gas Liguids Natural Gas
Bbls........ barrels mcf thousand cubic feet
bbls/d ..... barrels per day mmcf  Million cubic feet
mbbls ..... thousands of barrels bef billion cubic feet
mmbbls.. millions of barrels tcf trillion cubic feet
mbbis/d.. thousands of barrels per day mcf/d  thousand cubic feet per day
mmbbls/d millions of barrels per day mmcf/d million cubic feet per day

boe/d ...... barrels of oil equivalent per day bef/d  billion cubic feet per day
Mboe/d... thousands of barrels of oil
equivalent per day

Currency
$ United States dollars

CDN$  Canadian dollars
N Nigerian naira
CHF Swiss francs




SUMMARY

The Corporation’s sales figures are reported gross of royalties and NNPC’s share of
Profit Oil and exclude any volumes held as inventory at the end of the period. Inventory held at
the beginning of period is included in sales during the period together with the related sales and
costs.

~ The Corporation currently produces and sells crude oil from 3 streams in Nigeria; Antan
(OML123), Brass (OML124) and Okwori (OPL90). The document will refer to OML123,
OML124 and OPL90.

During the quarter ended March 31, 2006, the Corporation brought 4 new wells on-
stream. These wells were in OML123 and in OPL90. Average daily production for the quarter
ended March 31, 2006 for OPL90 was 26,659 bbls/d in comparison to 843 bbls/d during the
same period in 2005.

The Corporation’s total crude oil production by property for the quarter ended March
31, 2006 was 4.5 mmbbls from OML123, 0.3 mmbbls from OML124, and 2.4 mmbbis from
OPL90, as compared with 4.0 mmbbls from OMLI123, 0.3 mmbbls from OML124 and 0.1
mmbbls from OPL90 for the quarter ended March 31, 2005.

In March 2006, APC entered into three Production Sharing Contracts (“PSC’s™) with
the Joint Development Authority (JDA). The JDA administers the Joint Development Zone
(IDZ) between Nigeria and Sao Tome ¢ Principe. The three blocks awarded were JDZ 4 (APC
as operator with a share of 33.3%), JDZ 3 (APC non-operated share of 15%) and JDZ 2 (APC
non-operated share of 14.33%). Following the quarter end, the Corporation purchased a further
5% of IDZ 4. ‘

Net income increased to $56.5 million for the quarter ended March 31, 2006 from
$28.9 million for the same period in 2005. The following table summarizes the Corporation’s
results of operations for the quarter ended March 31, 2006 as compared to the same period in
2005.




March 31, March M, Variance March 31, March 31,
2006 2005 2006 2005
(S million) {$ million) %) ($/bbl) (S/bbi)
REVENUE
Petroleum Sales 394.2 1971 100% 59.41 44 .49
Royalties (73.3) (38.3) 91% (11.04) (8.65)
Net Sales 320.9 158.8 102% 48.37 35.85
Other Income 1.2 0.6 100% 0.18 0,14
Total Net Revenue 3221 159.4 102% 48.56 3598
EXPENSES
Operating 47.3 251 88% 713 566
General and Administrative 33 1.5 118% 0.50 0.34
Preacquisition costs 1.9 1.2 892% 1.79 0.27
Other (1) 0.8 0.1 800% 0.14 0.03
Depletion, depreciation and aceretion 574 21.0 173% 8.65 4.74
Total expenses 120.8 43.9 147% 18.21 11.04
Income before provision for income taxes 201.3 110.5 82% 30.35 24.94
Provision for income taxes
Current (84.1) (74.8) 13% (12.68) (16.84)
Future {60.7) (7.0} 767% (9.15) {1.58)
Net Income 56.5 28.9 96% 8.52 6.52
Notes:

(1) Other includes interest on long term debt, other interest and finance charges and foreign

exchange losses (gains).

(2) Figures expressed on a per barrel basis are derived using sales volumes rather than
production volumes, and adjusted for overlifis.




SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

March 31, March 31,

Note:

| 2006 2005

I

| Revenue, before Royalties (million) 394.2 1971
Net Income (million) 56.5 28.9
Per common share (3) 0.44 0.25
Cash Flow from Operations {million} 174.3 69.9
Per common share {$) 1.36 0.60
Capex, net of dispositions (million) 2455 89.8
Net incomme / Revenue 14% 15%

2006 per share amounts are calculated on the basis of 127,850,100 Common
Shares of Addax Petroleum Corporation

2005 per share amounts are calculated on the basis of 117,000,000 Common
Shares of Addax Petroleum NV, '

| The gross revenue increased by 100% from March 31, 2005 to March 31, 2006 from $197.1
! million to $394.2 million. Net income increased by 96% from March 31, 2005 to March 31,
2006 from $28.9 million to $56.5 million. Cash Flow From Operations has increased by

. 149% from March 31, 2005 to March 31, 2006 from $69.9 million to $174.3 million.

The major reasons for the revenue increase as of March 31, 2006 were the increased oil
prices, oil production from OPL90 and increased production from OML123. These increases
were partly offset by increases in taxes, royalties, operating expenses, general and
administrative expenses, depletion and other expenses.

Cash flow from operations has increased by $104.4 million mainly due to increased income,

partly offset by an increase in current taxes, operating expenses and general and administrative
expenses.




SELECTED OPERATING INFORMATION

{$/bbl) except daily production and sales in March 31, March 31,
number of barrels 2006 2005

Daily production 80'374 49'341
Daily sales (1) 73713 49'223
Sales price (2) 59.41 44 49
Royalties (11.04) (8.65)
Qperating expenses (7.13) {5.66)
Netback 41.24 30.18

(1) Including any overlift adjustment
(2) Total petroleum sales (overlift included) divided by the number of barrels
sold {overlift included)

The volume of daily sales has increased significantly over the year (increase of 50% between
March 31, 2005 and March 31, 2006). The 2006 daily sales volumes as of March 31

amounted to 73,713 bbls/d compared to 49,223 bbls/d in March 2005.

This increase is mainly due to the production from OPL90 (which commenced production in
March 2005). The first lifting from OPL90 occurred in June 2005.

The average sales price has also increased by 34% from $44.48 in the quarter ending March
31, 2005 to $59.41 in the quarter ending March 31, 2006. This is mainly due to the increase in
the Dated Brent Benchmark Price by 30%.

The Royalties per barrel has increased by 28% in the quarter ending March 31, 2006
compared to the quarter ending March 31, 2005 due to higher revenues.

Operating expenses per barrel have increased by 26% in March 31, 2006 compared to March
31, 2005. The increase is detailed in the section Operating Expenses.

As a result, the netback has increased by 37% from $30.18 per barrel to $41.24 per barrel.




PRODUCTION

2006 Q1 2005 Q1
OML123-124 OPL90 OML123-124 OPLS0
Production {mbbi) 4'834 2'399 4'365 76
Daily Production (bbl) 53'715 26'659 48'498 843
Royalties (mbil) {920} (322) (825) -
Daily Royalties (bhl) {10'224) (3'574) (9'163) -
Daily Production Net of 43'491 23085 39'335 843

Royalties (bbi)

The daily production before royalties has increased by 63% from 49,341 bbls/d to 80,374
bbls/d.

In OML123, the daily production before royalties has increased by 12% from 45,044 bbls/d to
50,427 bbls/d. In this block, 3 new production wells were added.

In OML124, the daily production before royalties has decreased by 5% from 3,454 bbls/d to
3,288 bbls/d, consistent with natural decline,

OPL90 commenced production in March 31, 2005, and has an average production for the
quarter ended March 2006 of 26,659 bbls/d. At March 2006, 7 wells were producing (March
31, 2005: 2 wells).

The split of the production has changed with the start of the production in OPL90. In the
quarter ended March 31, 2005, the number of barrels produced in OMLI123 accounted for
91% of the total barrels produced, the other 9% being from OML124 (7%) and OPL90 (2%).
In the quarter ended March 31, 2006, the volume of barrels produced in OML123 accounts
for 63%, the volume of barrels produced by OML124 accounts for 4% and the volume of
barrels produced in OPL90 accounts for 33% of the total production for the quarter ended
March 31, 2006.

The daily production net of royalties has increased by 69% from 39,335 barrels to 66,596
barrels.

The increase of the daily production net of royalties is mainly related to the gross production

in OPL90 (26,659 bbls/d in the quarter ended March 31, 2006 in comparison to 843 bbls/d in
the quarter ended March 31, 2003).
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CRUDE OIL PRICES

The Corporation currently produces and sells crude oil from 3 areas in Nigeria: Antan
{OML123), Brass (OML124) and Okwori (OPL90). The selling price for each area is based
on the Dated Brent Benchmark Price plus a premium or a discount which depends on the
quality of the crude oil.

Quarter ended Quarter ended

($/barrel) March 31, 2006 March 31, 2005
Average Dated Brent Benchmark Price 61.75 47.50
Antan Average Discount {4.90) (3.10}
Average Price 57.14 44 30
Brass Average Premium 0.90 0.34
Average Price 62.81 48.91
Okwori Average Premium 1.91 -
Average Price 63.56 -

Note: _

Premium/(Discount} to Brent Crude are reported on a volume weighted basis for both the crude in question and
Brent Crude, whereas Dated Brent Crude prices are reported as averages of monthly values for the period.
Accordingly, the difference between the reported average realized petroleum prices and Dated Brent Crude
prices may not correspond to the Premium/{Discount) to Brent Crude.

There has been an increase in Brent crude prices over the last years. This increase reflects,
among other things, an increase in world-wide demand, particularly in the United States and
Asia, heightened geopolitical uncertainty in many areas of the world and supply concerns in
the Middle East and other key producing regions.

The average dated Brent Benchmark Price has increased from an average price of $47.50 per
barrel in the quarter ended March 31, 2005 to an average price of $61.75 per barrel in the
quarter ended March 31, 2006.

The crude oil lifted from OML123 was sold with an average discount of $4.90 ($3.10 in the
quarter ended March 31, 2005). This accounts for an average discount of 8% in comparison to
Brent. As the price of the Brent crude increases the OML123 discount tends to increase; 64%
of the barrels lifted in the quarter ended March 31, 2006 were from OML123 (93% in March
2005).

The average premium applied on the crude oil lifted from OMLI124 is $0.90 in the quarter
ended March 31, 2006 in comparison to $0.34 in the quarter ended March 31, 2005. 3% of the
barrels lifted in March 2006 were from OML124 (7% in March 2005).
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The average premium per barrel applied on the crude oil lifted from OPL90 is $1.91. The
average price is $63.56. 33% of the barrels lified in the quarter ended March 2006 were from
OPL90 compared to nil in the quarter ended March 2005, OPL90 commenced trading at a
discount to Brent, as it was a new crude stream. This has now been reversed, and OPL90
currently trades at a premium to Brent.

PETROLEUM SALES

Petroleum sales are reported on the basis of production volumes sold gross of Royalties and
NNPC’s share of Profit Oil and exclude any volumes held as inventory at the end of the
period. Any overlifts are accounted for as deferred income in the balance sheet.

The table below summarises the Petroleum Sales.

OML123 OML124 OPL90 TOTAL
$million 2006 Q1 2005 Q1 2006 Q1 2005 Q1 2006 Q1 2005 Q1 2006 Q1 2005 Q1
Petroleum Sales 2427 182.8 11.6 143 139.9 - 3842 1971

The petroleum sales have increased by 100% between the quarter ended March 2005 and the
quarter ended March 2006. The petroleum sales include the liftings from OML123, OML124
and OPL90 (since quarter 2, 2005).

The petroleum sales from OMLI123 accounts for 62% of the total (93% as of the quarter
ended March 2005). The petroleum sales from OML124 accounts for 3% of the total (7% as
of the quarter ended March 2005). The petroleum sales from OPL90 accounts for 35% (nil as
of the quarter ended March 2005) of the total of revenue.

The increase of petroleum sales in OML123 (33% between the quarter ended March 2005 and
the quarter ended March 2006) from $182.8 million to $242.7 million is due mostly to the
increase in prices. The impact of the increase in price is $54.5 million or 91% whereas the
impact of the increase in production is $5.4 million or 9%.

In OML124, the decrease in petroleum sales by 23% from $14.3 million to $11.6 million is
due to fewer barrels being lified in Q1 2006 compared to Q1 2005. A late March 2006
OML124 lifting of 120,000 barrels was delayed to early April 2006.

In OPL9Q, the first liftings occurred in June 2005. The revenue of $139.9 million is fully
generated by this new production. A late March 2006 lifting of 650,000 bbls was delayed until
April 2006, due to unavailability of tugs.

Other income has increased from $0.6 million in the quarter ended March 31, 2005 to $1.2
million in the quarter ended March 31, 2006. The increase is mainly related to an increase in
interest income. The cash received from the Initial Public Offering completed in February
2006 has generated interest income of $0.4 million.
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ECONOMIC SENSITIVIES

The following table shows the estimated after-tax effect that changes to crude oil prices,
crude oil production and operating costs would have had on the Corporation's net income for the
quarter ended March, 2006, had these changes occurred on January 1, 2006. These calculations
are based on business conditions, production and sales volumes existing for Q1 2006. The
1,000 bbls/d increase has been allocated equally between OML123/0OML 124 and OPL90.

Factor Change (+} Net Income Impact Net Income Impact
($million) {$/share)
Price received for crude oil $1.00/bbi 13 ) 0.01
Crude oil production 1,000 bbls/d 1.0 0.01
Increase in operating costs 10% {1.9) {0.01)

The impact of the above changes may be compounded or offset by changes to other
business conditions. In addition, the table does not consider the relationships between the above
factors.

ROYALTIES

Royalties are comprised of NNPC Profit Oil, Education Tax, Royalty Oil, Niger Delta
Development Corporation (NDDC) levy and the Cost Penalty Arrangement (CPA). Royalties
are determined in accordance with the applicable PSC.

2006 Q1 2005 Q9 Chlngl . 2006 Q1 2005 Q1
Antan- Okeworl Antan- Okwark Antan- Antan- Okwori Antan- Oteword
Brass Brass Brass Brass Brass
. {$million) {$rmillion) {$million)  (3eilticn) (%) (Sa'bhl)_ {$bbl) {$obn {$/bbhn
Royalty Qil 177 az 168 - 5% 400 283 78 -
NDDC Levy : 35 3.4 1.7 - 106% 078 1,38 038
Education Tax 31 18 28 - 1% am 074 063
NNPC's shara of profit oil 249 84 17.0 - 48% 5.61 4.28 385
Cost Penalty Arrangement 3.8 - - . 100% 0.85 - -
Total Royalties 53.0 0.3 18.3 - 8% 11.96 9.24 B.65

Royalties for crude oil lifted from OML123 and OML.124 have increased by 38% from $38.3
million ($8.64 per barrel) to $53.0 million ($11.96 per barrel). The Roya!ues for crude oil
lifted from OPL90 are $20.3 million ($9.24 per barrel) compared to nil in the quarter ended
March 31, 2005. .

Royalty Oil from OML123 and OML 124 slightly increased by 5% from $16.8 million (83.78
per barrel) in the quarter ended March 31, 2005 to $17.7 million ($4.00 per barrel) in the
quarter ended March 31, 2006. Royalty Oil is levied on petroleum sales, with the percentage
of Royalty Oil increasing with production. Royalty Oil has increased due to increased
production and revenue in Q1 2006 compared to Q1 2005. OPL90 Royalty Oil for the quarter
ended 31, March 2006 is $6.2 million ($2.83 per barrel) compared to nil in the period ended
31; March 20035.
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Profit Oil in OML123/124 has increased by 46% from $17.0 million in the quarter ended
March 31, 2005 ($3.85 per barrel) to $24.9 million ($5.61 per barrel) in the quarter ended
March 31, 2006. The increase is due to the increase of 25% in revenues in OML123 and
OML124. Profit Oil in OPL90 accounts for $9.4 million ($4.28 per barrel).

OPERATING EXPENSES

The operating expenses as presented below include costs relating to OML123/124 and to
OPL90 (which commenced production in 2005).

2006 Q1 2005 Q1

Operating Expenses (miliion)

OML123/124 35.7 251

OPLS0 16 -

Total Producing Assets 47.3 251

$/obl lifted 713 5.66
¥/bbl lifted in OML123-124 8.05 5.66

&bl lifted in OPL9O 526 -

There is a continuing upward pressure on operating costs due to high demand for oil services.
The Corporation continues to mitigate this upward pressure through a number of methods
such as using competitive bidding procedures and awarding long term contracts, but with
crude oil continuing at its historic highs, continual upward cost pressure is expected.

Operating costs have increased by 88%, from $25.1 million in the quarter ended March 31,
2005 to $47.3 million in the quarter ended March 31, 2006.

The operating costs in OML123/124 have increased by 42% ($10.6 million) from $25.1
million to $35.7 million and from $5.66 per barrel in the quarter ended March 31, 2005 to
$8.05 per barrel in the quarter ended March 31, 2006.

For OML123/124, the increase in operating costs is mainly due to an increase by $4.5 million
relating to a special bonus and allowances paid to the Nigerian staff following union
negotiations, and a settlement of a contract relating to the period from April 2004 to March
2006 (increase of $3.6 million). '

For OPL90, total operating costs were $11.6 million and the main operating cost is the cost

related to the floating production storage and offloading vessel (“FPSO”) ($7.5 million).
There were no operating costs for OPL90 in Q1 2005,
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GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

General and administrative charges relate to corporate costs.

$million except per bbl amounts

2006 Q1 2005 Q1
Corporate costs (million) 33 1.5
Corporate costs (per barrel) 0.50 0.34

Corporate costs have increased by 136% to $3.3 million in the quarter ended March 31, 2006
compared from $1.5 million in the quarter ended March 31, 2005. The main reason for the
increase is additional employees within the commercial and finance departments in the
Geneva office working specifically on corporate activities.

PRE-ACQUISITION EXPENSES

Included in pre-acquisition expenses are costs related to the Corporation's New Venture
activity. Related expenditures are charged to the income statement pending finalization of the
Corporation's rights to a license. These costs can include seismic purchases, studies (in house
and external) and consulting.

$million except per bbl amounts
2006 Q1 2005 Q1

Taq Taq Costs 7.7 -
New Venture Costs - Nigeria 26 -
New Venture Costs - Other 1.6 1.2
Total Pre-acquisition costs 11.9 1.2
Pre-acquisition costs per barrel 1.79 027

The reason for the increase from March 31, 2005 to March 31, 2006 is due to the Corporation
aggressively seeking new opportunities in its core areas.

Total Taq Taq costs incurred in the quarter ended March 31, 2006 totaled $7.7 million
compared to nil in the quarter ended March 31, 2005, which include $2.2 million for seismic
data acquisition. The capital expenditure and operating costs relating to Taq Taq are currently
charged pending finalization of the Corporation’s rights to the license.

The New Venture costs have increased by $3 million from $1.2 million in the quarter ended
March 31, 2005 to $4.2 million in the quarter ended March, 31 2006. This increase is mainly
due to the increase by $2.6 million in New Ventures costs in Nigeria. The Corporation has
significantly increased its new venture activity in 2006, including formation of a new venture
team in Nigeria.
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Interest and debt commitment fees directly attributable to development activities are
capitalized to the respective cost pools and amortized on a unit of production basis with the
cost pool to which it relates,

(% million) 2006 Q1 2005 Q1
Long term debt - 100
Interest 1.2 -
Other finance charge 01 -
‘ Foreign Exchange Gain/Loss {0.4) 0.1
" Total expenses 0.9 0.1

The increase in interest is related to the increase in hedging costs. Hedging costs were $0.6
miilion in the quarter ended March 31, 2006 in comparison to nil in the quarter ended March
31, 2005.

The Corporation utilizes various financial instruments to manage its commodity prices, foreign
currency and interest rate exposures. These financial instruments are not used for trading or
speculative purposes. The Board of Directors provides principles for overall risk management
as well as policies covering specific areas related to each category of financial instrument.
Currently the Corporation has a currency hedge only. There are no liquidity risks associated
with this instrument. The Corporation has no immediate plans to put in place other hedges.

The Corporation has previously entered into commodity price contracts to cover pricing
exposure in order to safeguard a minimum cash income. Gains or losses on these contracts are
_ included in other interest and finance charges.

The Corporation has previously entered into interest rate swap agreements to manage its fixed
and floating interest mix on its long term debt obligations in which the Corporation agrees to
exchange, at specified intervals, the difference between fixed and variable interest amounts
calculated by reference to an agreed-upon notional principal amount. Gains or losses on interest
rate swap contracts are included in other interest and finance charges.

The Corporation enters into foreign exchange forward contracts to manage its exposure to
foreign currency risk with respect to the Swiss franc against the US doliar. These contracts
require the periodic exchange of payments with the exchange at maturity of notional principal
amounts on which the payments are based. Gains or losses on foreign exchange forward
contracts are included in other interest and finance charges.

DEPLETION, DEPRECIATION AND ACCRETION (DD&A)

The costs of oil and natural gas properties are depleted on a unit-of-production basis, based on
the Corporation’s share of gross estimated proved reserves. The proved reserves utilized to
compute DD&A for the quarter were based on the internal estimate of proved reserves at
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December 2005 and adjusted for any additions or deletions. The Corporation used a proved
reserve estimate of 104.2 million barrels for the quarter ended March 31, 2006. The proved
reserve figure in the current quarter used in calculating DD&A was increased by 13.2mmbbls
due to increases in proved reserves in Nda, Adanga North and North Oron.

The increase in DD&A from $21.0 million for the quarter ended March 2005 to $57.4 million
for the quarter ended March 2006 was mainly due to OPL90 DD&A included in the quarter
ended March 2006 of approximately $20.3 miilion (nil in quarter 1 2005), and the increase in
production at OML123.

CURRENT INCOME TAXES
2006 Q1 2005 Q1 2006 Q1 2005 Q1
{million) {million} $/bbl $/bbl
OML123/124 76.7 74.6 17.29 16.84
OPLS0 7.3 - 3.34 -
Other 0.1 - - -
Current income Taxes 841 74.6 - -

Current income taxes have increased by $9.5 million (13%) from $74.6 million in the quarter
ended March 31, 2005 to $84.1 million in the quarter ended March 31, 2006.

The increase is mainly related to the income tax for OPL90. The amount of current income
tax for OPL90 for the first quarter of 2006 was $7.3 million (nil in Q1 2005).

The “other taxes” represent local income tax due by the Geneva Branch of Addax Petroleum
Services, a subsidiary of the Corporation.

FUTURE INCOME TAXES

2006 Q1 2005 Q1 2006 Q1 2005 Q1

{million) {million) $/bbl $/bbl
OML123/124 12.8 7.0 2.89 1.57
OPLS0 47.9 - 21.79 -
Future Income Taxes 60.7 7.0 - -

Future income taxes for OML123/124 increased by 83% to $12.8 million in the quarter ended
March 31, 2006 from $7 million in the quarter ended March 31, 2005.

Future income taxes for OPL90 were $47.9 million in the quarter ended March 31, 2006
compared to nil in the quarter ended March 31, 2005. OPL90 has large capital allowance
balances which are currently being used to offset against Petroleumn Profits Tax (current tax).
The reductions earned from the capital allowances reduce current taxes and increase future
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income taxes. The benefit from these capital allowances is then realized over the producing
life of the asset to which the allowances relate.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
{$ million) 2006 Q1 2005 Q1
OML123/124
Drilling 29.2 18.8
Facilities 418 53
Other 2.7 37
Sub Total 73.7 27.8
OPL90/225
Okwori development 48.4 495
Nda development 325 0.7
Nda extended well test - 8.1
Other 7.8 0.2
Sub Total 88.8 - 58.5
Cameroon 65 0.4
Gabon 0.3 0.4
JDZ Block 2 151 -
JDZ Block 3 9.5 -
JBZ Block 4 41.4 -
Other (1) 10.2 2.7
Total 2455 89.8
Notes:

(1) capital expenditures for the corporate companies.

There is a continuing upward pressure on capital expenditures due to high demand for oil
services especially for drilling rigs. The Corporation continues to mitigate this upward
pressure such as using competitive bidding procedures bidding on long term contracts, but
with crude oil continuing at its historic highs, continual upward cost pressure is expected.

Totat capital expenditures have increased by 173% from $89.8 million in QI 2005 to $245.5
million in Q1 2006.

For Q1 2006, total capital expenditures on OML123 and OMLI124 were $73.7 million
compared to $27.8 million in Q1 2005. Dirilling costs were $29.2 million comprising
$8.2 million for an exploration well and $19.6 million for appraisal and development wells on
OML123. Facilities costs on OMLI123 and OMLI124 were 3$41.8 million comprising
$36.6 million for the OML123 FPSQ replacement and $2.8 million for Adanga North extended
well test. OML124 oil facilities expenditure was $0.9 million. Other capital expenditures on
OML123 and OMLI124 were $2.7 million including capitalized studies of $1.4 million,
capitalized seismic costs of $0.6 million and $0.7 million of office capital expenditure.
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For Q1 2006, total capital expenditures on OPL90 and OPL225 were $88.8 million. Capital
expenditures on OPL90 included $32.5 million for the appraisal and initial development of the
Nda field and $48.4 million for development, facilities and drilling costs on the Okwori
property. The other costs of $7.9 million are primarily capitalized seismic acquisition costs on
OPL225.

Capital expenditures of $6.5 million in Camercon for Q1 2006 primarily related to the
acquisition of 3D seismic data. .

Capital expenditures of $66.0 million in the Joint Development Zone Blocks are mainly related
to signature bonus payments and farm in fees for the JDZ Block 2 ($15.1 mittion), Block 3
(8$9.5 million) and Block 4 ($41.4 million).

Other capital expenditures mainly relate to the acquisition of a rig for Taq Taq ($8.3 million).

Major Capital Projects

There are two major capital projects on OPL90, the Okwori field development, and the Nda
field development.

For the Okwori field development, the final two wells will be completed and tied in during the
second quarter of 2006. The capital costs to date are $328.9 million, and the capital costs to
complete the project are budgeted at $58.0 million.

The Nda field development has currently 1 test well producing, In the first quarter the Nigerian
authorities have given approval for full development of the Nda project. Four further
development wells will be drilled in 2006 and brought on stream in the second and third
quarters of 2006.

The Nda development capital costs to date are $108.8 million, and the capital costs to complete
the project are $127.4 million. It is planned to drill further appraisal wells in the greater Nda
area following the Nda field development project.

On OML123, the replacement FPSO work is ongoing. It is anticipated that the replacement will
be completed in the third quarter of 2006. Costs to the end of March 2006 were $58.4 million,
and the capital costs to complete the project are budgeted at $35.8 million.

Taq Taq and the three JDZ blocks are still in the appraisal and exploration stages.

Outlook

The capital expenditure forecast for 2006 is as per the MD&A as of December 2005, except for
capital expenditure of $103.5 million for Joint Development Zones 2, 3 and 4, which were not
included in the December 2005 forecast. The capital expenditure forecast for JDZ 4 is $68.9
million, JDZ 3 is $14.5 million, and for JDZ 2 is $20.1 million. The costs include signature
bonuses, farm-in fees and technical studies.
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Capital expenditures for the first quarter were $245.5 million, and for the following three
quarters are forecasted to be: for the second quarter of $328.9 million; for the third quarter
$292.2 million; and for the fourth quarter $223.4 million.

Average production for 2006 is forecasted to be 85,000 barrels per day, with a production rate
of by year end of 100,000 barrels per day.

Due to the anticipated increase in OPL90 production and based on a forward projection of
$50/bbl, it is anticipated that current tax for OPL90 should be approximately $100 million for
2006. This assumes a current tax rate of 60%. Due to the Nigerian tax regulations, it is
anticipated that there will be a restriction on OPL90’s ability to access all allowances, and
there will be unused current period allowances on approximately $70 million. Assuming
OPL90 generates sufficient tax income, these unused allowances in 2006 can be used in future
periods.

Proposed Transactions

The Corporation proposes to farm-in to 40% of the Okwok property, OML67 in Nigeria.
Agreement has been reached with the holder of the licence, but the Corporation and the holder
of the licence are awaiting government approval. This approval is anticipated to be received in
the second quarter of 2006.

A $35 million farm-in fee is payable on completion, and the 2006 work programme is forecast
at $45 million, including 2 appraisal wells.

The Corporation is planning to buy a production unit which is currently leased to OML123. The
technical review is ongoing. Assuming a positive result from the technical review, the unit will
be bought in the second or third quarter of 2006 for approximately $30 million.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Overview

The Corporation's principal source of liquidity has been cash generated from operating
activities which has been supplemented as necessary by credit facilities to meet increased
capital expenditures, primarily for the development of the Okwori property in OPL90 and the
IDZ blocks. The Corporation has not experienced seasonal variations in its cash flows.
Currently, the Corporation generates all of its cash from operating activities from its Nigerian
subsidiaries. Provided applicable solvency and corporate requirements are satisfied, there are no
legal or practical restrictions in Nigeria on the ability of the Corporation's Nigerian subsidiaries
to transfer funds to the Corporation in the form of cash dividends, loans or advances. In
addition, there are no contractual restrictions on such transfers of funds to the Corporation by its
Nigerian subsidiaries.

'The Corporation held total cash and cash equivalents of $249.2 million as at March 31,
2006.
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On February 16, 2006, the Corporation was listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange by
way of an Initial Public Offering (“IPO”). Pursuant to the PO, the Corporation raised $355.1
million {CDN $409.5 million) of which:

*»  $17.6 million (CDN $20.5 million) was used to pay expenses related to the IPO;

¢ $48.2 million (CDN $55.6 million) and 117,000,000 common shares of APC
were paid to acquire all of the issued and outstanding common shares of Addax
Petroleum N.V., previously held by AOG.

On February 24, 2006, an over-allotment option held by the underwriters was exercised
yielding net proceeds of $33.7 million (CDN $38.9 million) (gross proceeds totalled $35.5
million (CDN $41.0 million)).

Total net proceeds from the IPO, the over-allotment option and the share purchase
amounted to $322.9 million (CDN $372.4 million). Part of the proceeds were used to pay down
the Corporation’s debt. The balance of the proceeds will be used to fund the Corporation’s
ongoing capital expenditures.

The Corporation has a senior secured revolving credit facility with BNP Paribas as
Mandated Lead Arranger and Standard Bank as Lead Arranger with a borrowing base of
$300.0 million. This facility expires on December 31, 2008. The borrowing base was initially
set at $100.0 million, and is ré-determined semi-annually based on NSAI's evaluation of the
Corporation's ol and gas reserves, subject to the approval of the majority lenders. As at
March 31, 2006, all amounts drawn on the credit facility were reimbursed. The credit facility
bears interest at floating rates tinked to LIBOR plus a margin determined in relation to the
percentage of utilization on the first day of the interest period.

The following table summarizes the principal components of Addax Petroleum's
consolidated cash flows for the periods indicated:

($million)

Net Cash inflows (outflows) before movements in

working capital Q1 2006 Q1 2005

Cash Flow From Operations 174.3 69.9
Net cash flow used in investing activities (102.4) (89.8}
Net cash flow {used in) finanting activities 192.8 333
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 264.7 13.4
{Increase) decrease in working capital (22.2) (0.5)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 2425 12.9
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 249.2 16.8
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Cash Flow From Operations

Cash flow from operations was $174.3 million in Q1 2006, compared to $69.9 million
in Q1 2005, representing an increase of $104.4 million. The increase resulted from the increase
in income before income taxes of $90.9 million, due to the Okwori property in OPL90 coming
on-stream, and higher production from OML123/124 compared to 2005.

Net Cash Flow Used in Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities consists principally of the purchase of property,
plant and equipment, and intangible capital expenditures. Net cash used in investing activities
was $102.4 million for QI 2006 compared to $89.8 million for Q1 2005, representmg an
increase of $12.6 million. This increase is due to an increase by $66.0 million in capital
expenditures on JDZ Blocks 2, 3 and 4, to an increase by $36.6 million related to the OML123
FPSO replacement and to an increase in capital expenditures of $30.3 million on OPL90.

Net Cash From (Used in) Financing Activities

~ Net cash from financing activities was $192.8 million for Q1 2006 compared to a cash
inflow of $33.3 million in Q1 2005. The Corporation received $371 million from the IPO. This
cash inflow was partially offset by the following outflows: repayment of long term debt (380
million in Q! 2006 in comparison to $15 million in Q1 2003), payment of dividend (350
million in Q1 2006 in comparison to nil in Q1 2005) and fees related to the purchase of Addax
Petroleum N.V, by the Corporation.
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COMMITMENTS

The Corporation has assumed various contractual obligations and commitments in the normal
course of its operations and financing activities. These obligations and commitments have
been described in the December 31, 2005 MD&A and have not significantly changed during
the first quarter of 2006.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Corporation is exposed to several operational risks inherent in exploring, developing,
producing and marketing crude oil and natural gas. These inherent risks include: economic
risk of finding and producing reserves at a reasonable cost; cost of capital risk associated with
securing the needed capital to carry out the Corporation’s operations; risk of fluctuating
foreign exchange rates; risk of carrying out operations with minimal environment impact; risk
of governmental policies, social instability or other political, economic or diplomatic
developments in its international operations, and non-performance by counterparties to
contracts.

The Corporation uses a variety of means to help minimize these risks. The Corporation
maintains a comprehensive insurance program to reduce risk to an acceptable level and to
protect it against significant losses. Operational contro! is enhanced by focusing efforts on
large core regions with high working interests and by assuming operatorship of all key
facilities. Sales of crude oil are aimed at various markets to ensure that undue exposure 1o any
one market does not exist. Financial instruments are utilised to help ensure targets are met to
manage commodity prices, foreign currency rates and interest rate exposure. The Corporation
minimizes credit risks by entering into sales contracts and financial derivatives with only high
rated entities and financial institutions. In addition, the Corporation reviews its exposure to
individual companies on a regular basis, and where appropriate ensures that parental
guarantees or letters of credit are in place to minimise the impact in the event of default.

The Corporation’s current position with respect to its financial instruments is detailed in note
6 to the consolidated financial statements. The arrangements and policies concerning the
Corporation’s financial instruments are under constant review and may change depending
upon prevailing market conditions.

The Corporation’s capital structure mix is also monitored on a continual basis to ensure that it
optimizes flexibility, minimizes cost and offers the greatest opportunity for growth. This
includes the determination of a reasonable level of debt and any interest rate exposure risk
that may exist,

Addax Petroleum has direct responsibility for Health, Safety and Environment (HSE) in its
Nigerian and Cameroonian properties. The Corporation has implemented HSE policies in
respect of its operations. These HSE policies are an important part of the responsibilities of
the Corporation’s managers and significantly influence the operations of the Corporation.

The Corporation requires all employees and contractors to comply with HSE policies. The

HSE policies are codified in the Corporation’s HSE manual, which define individual HSE
responsibilities and suggests ways to promote and support a safe and healthy environment.
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The Corporation circulates the manual to employees in all locations and managers regularly
discuss the policies with staff at periodic safety meetings. In Nigeria, the Corporation has a
dedicated HSE department that focuses on accident prevention, monitors operational
compliance with the HSE policies and advises management on statutory and industry
requirements. The manager of this HSE department reports directly to the Managing Director
of Nigerian Operations of the Corporation and is a member of the management committee,
which meets weekly to discuss and direct the Corporation’s activities.

The HSE policy of the Corporation emphasizes leadership, commitment and training, risk
management, health and safety operations, environmental protection and incident response
plan.

ENVIRONMENT
2006 Q1 2005 Q1
(million) (million}
Asset retirement obligations 25.8 12.5
OML123-124 13.7 12.5
OPL90 121 -

The asset retirement obligation refates to both OML123/124 and OPL90 in Nigeria. The
Production Sharing Contracts (PSC) for OML123/124 specifies that APDNL’s share of the
total asset retirement obligation shall equal the percentage derived from the relationship of the
anticipated remaining production to the production prior to Addax Petroleum assuming the
operatorship. Costs relating to property, plant and equipment constructed after APDNL
assumed operatorship is allocated 100% to Addax.

The increase in the asset retirement obligation for OML123/124 by $1.2 million from $12.5
million at March 31, 2005 to $13.7 million at March 31, 2006 relates to accretion over this
period.

The asset retirement obligation was booked for the first time for OPL90 during the second
quarter of 2005.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

In the preparation of the Corporation's financial statements, management is required to
use judgements, assumptions and estimates in the application of generally accepted accounting
policies which has an impact on the financial results of the Corporation. These estimates and
assumptions are based on the best available information at the time, but may change due to new
events and additional information giving rise to changes in the estimates over time. Note 1 of
the Corporation's consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2005
explains the significant financial accounting policies used by the Corporation. The following is
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a discussion of the critical accounting policies which use significant assumptions and estimates
in determining the financial results of the Corporation.

Estimated Oil Reserves

Reserve estimates have a significant impact on earnings due to its impact on
depreciation and depletion rates and asset impairment. The Corporation's reservoir engineers
perform an internal evaluation on a bi-annual basis of all of its crude oil reserves. The
estimation of reserves are based on engineering data, projected future prices, expected future
rates of production and the timing of future capital expenditures, all of which are subject to
numerous uncertainties and interpretations. The Corporation expects over time that its reserves
will change, upwards or downwards, as a result of the results of future drilling, testing,
production levels, changes in future price estimates, and economics of recovery based on cash
flow forecasts. A change in the reserves estimate may result in a higher or lower depletion
charge to the income statement and affect the future tax charge. A lower reserve estimate could
result in a write-down of an oil property under the ceiling test.

Independent petroleum engineering consultants evaluate 100 per cent of the oil
properties on a semi-annual basis, and reconciliation is performed between the Corporation's
reserves estimates and that of the independent consultants.

Asset Impairments

Annually, an impairment test is performed to ensure that unamortized capitalized costs
do not exceed their fair value. An impairment loss will be recognized in the income statement
when the carrying value of a cost centre exceeds the estimated undiscounted future cash flows.
The future cash flows used in the impairment test include assumptions on oil prices, production,
and operating costs. Changes to any of these assumptions such as a decrease to future oil prices,
a decrease in reserves, or an increase in operating costs could result in the impairment of an
asset's carrying value.

Full Cost Accounting

. The Corporation follows the full cost method for accounting for oil and gas properties as
described by the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants. Accordingly, costs incurred in
the exploration and development of oil and gas properties are capitalized on a country by
country cost pool basis. Capitalized costs include land acquisition, geological and geophysical
activities, exploration and devetopment wells, both successful and unsuccessful, related plant
and equipment, directly attributable interest costs, overhead charges directly related to
exploration and development and the estimated discounted cost of the asset retirement
obligations.

The capitalized costs are depreciated, depleted and amortized on a unit of production
method based on proved reserves for each producing cost pool. Costs relating to unproved
properties and certain development projects are not subject to depreciation, depletion and
amortization until production commences. The costs relating to unproved properties are
reviewed periodically and any impairment is transferred to the costs being depleted, or if it is
ascertained there are no reserves relating to the unproved properties, the impairment is charged
directly to the income statement.
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Asset Retirement Obligation

The Corporation currently records the asset retirement obligations of fixed assets at fair
value when they are incurred, discounted to the Corporation's credit-adjusted risk free interest
rate. Retirement costs equal to the fair value are capitalized as part of the related capital assets
and are amortized to the income statement over the estimated life of the asset. Estimates of the
fair value of the retirement obligations can change over time due to legislation, current costs,
technology, interest rates and field life, which can affect the rate of amortization. Differences
between the estimated and actual costs to settle the retirement obligation could result in gains or
losses in the settlement of the obligation.

Income Taxes

The Corporation follows the liability method of accounting for income taxes under
which the future tax consequences are recognized for temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying value for financial reporting purposes. Future
income tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted or substantively enacted income tax
rates expected to apply in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to
reverse. The effect of a change in income tax rates on future income tax assets and liabilities is
recognized in the period in which the change occurs.

The Corporation earns capital investment allowances on capital expenditures in Nigeria.
The future income tax benefits arising from capital investment allowances are recorded when
the capital investment allowances are earned and reduce the carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment. Capital investment allowances are charged to future income tax in the statement
of operations as the tax benefits are realized.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Corporation has entered into the following transactions with AOG:

» the Share Transfer Agreement between a subsidiary of AOG and Addax Petroleum
Corporation;

+ the Antan Crude Oil Supply Agreement, the Brass River Blend Crude Oil Supply
Agreement and the Okwori Crude Qil Supply Agreement (collectively defined as the
"Crude Oil Supply Agreements");

» the Management Services Agreement;

» Bunkering Agreement,

* the Agreement for Services of Jean Claude Gandur, effective January 1, 2006
between APS and AOG;

« the Trademark Agreement; and

+ the Non-Competition Agreement.
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Share Transfer Agreement

Addax Petroleum Corporation and a subsidiary of AOG have entered into the Share
Transfer Agreement under which Addax Petroleum Corporation has acquired a full and legal
ownership of all of the outstanding shares of Addax Petroleum N.V. at the time of the IPO. In
consideration for the transfer of ownership of Addax Petroleum N.V. to Addax Petroleum
Corporation, the AQG subsidiary received the equivalent of 120,000,000 Common Shares.

The Crude Oil Supply Agreements

The existing Crude Oil Supply Agreements were executed at the same time as the Credit
Facility arranged by BNP Paribas, of which assignment of the Crude Oil Supply Agreements
and the proceeds from oil sales constitute a significant element of the loan security package.
The Crude Oil Supply Agreements shall terminate on the later of the Maturity Date and the
Final Discharge Date (as defined in the Credit Facility and anticipated to be December 31, 2008
at the latest).

The price of crude oil is determined for (i) Antan crude liftings, FOB Antan Terminal as
the average of Platt's Crude Oil Marketwire quotations, midpoint of spot assessment for Brent
Crude effective for the month of loading, plus/minus a premium on/discount off to be mutually
agreed by both parties, (ii) Brass River Blend crude liftings, FOB Brass River Terminal as the
average of Platt's Crude Oil Marketwire quotations, midpoint of spot assessment for Brent
Crude effective for the month of loading, plus/minus the differential as quoted in the Official
Selling Price for Brass River Blend Crude notified by NNPC to the Corporation for that month,
and (iii) Okwori crude liftings, FOB Okwori Terminal as the average of Platt's Crude Oil
Marketwire quotations, midpoint of spot assessment for Brent Crude effective for the month of
loading, plus/minus a premium on/discount off to be mutually agreed by both parties. In each
instance payment terms are in US dollars, paid offshore and 30 days from bill of lading date.
Under the agreements amending the Crude Oil Supply Agreements each dated November 20035,
ABV will receive a marketing fee of $0.08 per barrel. The Corporation has the right of audit of
ABV's resale of Antan crude, Brass River Blend crude and Okwori crude. The payment
obligations of ABV under the Crude Oil Supply Agreements are guaranteed by AOG.

The Crude Qil Supply Agreements offer a reliable and competitive means for the sale of
crude oil produced from its operations. The Board intends to have a semi-annual review of the
terms and conditions of this arrangement.

Management Services Agreement

AOG provides management services to the various subsidiaries of AOG. The services
include support in relation to financial control and reporting, legal, tax, risk and insurance,
human resources, information technology, training and local expertise in-country.

Unless terminated for a breach of terms, the initial duration of the Management Services
Agreement will expire on December 31, 2009 and will thereafter continue for further periods of
one year unless and until terminated by six months prior notice given at any time by either
party. The fee to be paid under the contract is $2.5 million per year for the term.
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Bunkering

A subsidiary of AOG provides fuel bunkering for the Corporation’s FPSOs in Nigeria.

Agreement for Services of Jean Claude Gandur

Addax Petroleum Services Ltd has entered into a services agreement with AOG for the
procurement of services to be rendered by Mr. Jean Claude Gandur as Chief Executive Officer
and member of the Board of Directors of the Corporation. At present, it is anticipated that
approximately 90 per cent of Mr. Gandur's time will be dedicated to Addax Petroleum. The
total fee to be paid by the Corporation for such services is $1.1 million per annum.

Unless terminated for a breach of terms, this agreement shall continue in force unless and until
terminated by nine months prior notice given at any time by either party.

Trademark Agreement

The Corporation identifies itself using names and logos that indicate a relationship with
AOG. The Corporation believes that association with the AOG trademark has been and wili
continue to be beneficial. The Corporation's regional strategic focus is the African continent,
particularly West Africa where AOG has established itself in the petroleum trading, oil storage
and retail petroleum products industries. The Trademark Agreement provides the Corporation
with the right to use under a sub-license agreement all registered and unregistered AOG
trademarks in any territory in which the Corporation has business activities.

Unless terminated for a breach of terms, the initial duration of the amended and restated
Trademark Agreement will expire on December 31, 2009 and will thereafier continue for
further periods of one year unless and until terminated by six months prior notice given at any
time by either party. The Corporation will pay AOG a fixed annual fee of $500,000 under this
agreement.

Non-Competition Agreement

AOG has agreed with Addax Petroleum that, provided AOG and Jean Claude Gandur
together own not less than 25 per cent of the issued and outstanding Common Shares, neither
AOG nor any of its subsidiaries will:

+ acquire any petroleum properties or facilities or participate in the exploration for or
development and production of petroleum or participate in any upstream petroleum
business opportunities, unless AOG has first offered such business opportunities to
Addax Petroleum and Addax Petroleum has declined to acquire such business
opportunities. Such offer must remain open for acceptance for a minimum of
30 business days. For purposes of certainty, petroleum trading, downstream
activities or non-petroleum resource activities of AOG shall not be considered
directly competing interests; or

*+ participate in any person, other than acquiring not more than five per cent of the

equity of a publicly listed corporation, which engages in the above prescribed
.activities.
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QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

2006 2006 2004
Q1 Q4 Q3 Q2 a1 Q4 Q3 Q2
Patroleum Sales (milion} 384.2 3785 3857 257.8 197.1 158.4 146.8 1171
Net income {million) 585 381 ass 5356 288 213 15.8 13.7
Nat incoma par share ($) 0.44 033 0.73 0.46 Q.25 a.18 0.14 0.12
Cash Flow from operations (million) 1743 145.0 163.2 89.1 69.8 526 48.0 330
Per common share ($) 1,36 1.25 1,39 076 060 0.45 041 024

biotes;
{1) 2006 per share amounts are calculated on a basis of 127,850, 100 common shares of Addax Petroleurn Corporation
{2) 2004 and 2005 per share amounts are calculated on a basis of 117,000,100 commaon sharas of Addax Petroleum N.V.

{3) In the prospectus relating to the IPO of February 2006, the revenues did nat take into account cverlft adjustments tor quarters 1, 2 and 3 of 2005. In
quarter 1, 2005 there was an averlift adjustment of $2.6 million which incraasad the petroleurn sales fzom $184.5 milken contained in the prospectus, to
$187.1 millkon in the March 2008 incame statement. In quarter 2, 2005 there was an overlift adjustment of $2.1 million incseasing the petroleum sales to
$260.3 million. In quarter 3, 2005 there was an overiift adjustment of $2.1 million reducing the petraleurn sales to $385.7 million.

Petroleum Sales

The petroleum sales have slightly increased by 4% between Q4 2005 and Q1 2006 from
$378.5 million to $394.2 million. This increase is due to an increase in prices. The average
selling price has increased by 8% from $54.94 to $59.42. The increase is partially offset by a
4% reduction in liftings from 6. 9mmbbls to 6.6mmbbls. The decrease is due 10 a lifting slippage
on OML124 and OPL90 of 0.8mmbbils.

The general upward trend over the eight quarters of increasing petroleum sales has
resulted from a combination of increased production from OML123, commencement of sales
from OPL9Q in quarter 2, 2005 and increasing crude oil prices throughout the period.

Net Income

Net income increased in Quarter 1 2006 by 48% to $56.5 million from $38.1 million in
Quarter 4, 2005. The major reasons for the increase were a $15.6 million increase in petroleum
sales, a reduction in expenses of 12% or $16.7 million, partially offset by an increase in taxes of
$9.3 million.

Expenses reduced due to a reduction in (1) general and administrative expenses in
quarter one 2006 compared to quarter 4 2005 of $14.0 million due to a reduction in Nigeria
New Ventures from $8.4 million in quarter 4 2005 to $2.6 million in quarter 1 2006, to the cost
relating to the IPO reducing from $3.9 million in quarter 4 2005 to nil million in quarter 1 2006
and to the write off of $3 million relating to an option to farm-in to a block. The option was not
exercised; (2) a reduction in other costs from $5.1 million in quarter 4 2005 to $0.9 million in
quarter 1 2006 due to the write off of assets in Gabon in gquarter 4 2005 ($3.2 million); (3) a
reduction in DD&A of $4.8 million in quarter 1, 2006 compared to quarter 4 2005 due to the
decrease in liftings discussed in the Petroleumn Sales section above; and (4) an increase in
operating costs of $6.3 million from quarter 4, 2005 to quarter 1, 2006 primarily due to the
increase in Taq Taq costs of $4.3 million.
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The increase in taxes from $135.5 million in quarter 4 2005 to $144.8 million in quarter
1, 2006 is primarily due to the increase in petroleum sales $15.6 million, discussed in the
Petroleum Sales section above,

The general upward trend of increasing net income over the eight quarters is due to
increasing petroleum sales, partially offset by increasing operating costs, DD&A and taxes. In
quarters two and three 2005, the Corporation benefited from tax incentives in OPL90.

Cash Flow from Operations

Cash flow from operations increased by 19% to $174.3 million in the first quarter of
2006 compared to $146.0 million in the fast quarter of 2005. The major increases in the first
quarter 2006 compared to the last quarter 2005 were an increase of $18.4 million in net
income, as discussed above, and an increase in items not affecting cash of $22.6 million. The
increase in items not affecting cash was primarily an increase in future income taxes of $17.4
million due to the accelerated usage of tax allowances in OPL 90.

The general upward trend in cash flow from operations in the eight quarters is due to
increasing petroleum sales, partially offset by increasing operating costs and current taxes.
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Aﬂdax Petroleum Corporation

Consolidated Financial Statements

As at March 31, 2006 and for the three month
periods ended March 31, 2006 and 2005




ADDAX PETROLEUM CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (unaudited)

(US $000’s)
March 31, December 31,
2006 2005
ASSETS
Current
Cash and cash equivalents 249,223 6,708
Accounts receivable (note 9) 123,107 134,033
Inventories (note 5) 39,476 62,753
Prepaid expenses 35,345 15,506
497,151 219,000
Future income taxes 137,267 155,884
Deferred financing charges 4,355 4,763
Property, plant and equipment (note 3) 612,300 487,023
753,922 647,670
1,251,073 866,670
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY
Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 9) 293,183 160,113
Income taxes and royalties payable 215,623 203,626
Deferred revenue 1,280
508,806 365,019
Asset retirement obligations 25,834 25,266
Future income taxes 80,266 93,093
Other long-term liabilities 8,423 4,909
Long-term debt 20,000
114,523 203,268
Shareholders® equity
Share capital (note 4) 391,060 20,010
Retained earnings 236,634 278,373
627,744 298,383
1,251,073 866,670

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements




. ADDAX PETROLEUM CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS (unaudited)
(US $000’s, except per share amounts)

1]

Three month periods-
ended March 31,

2006 2005
REVENLUE
Petroleum sales (note 9) 394,161 197,051
Royalties (73,268) (38,294)
Net sales 320,893 158,757
Other income 1,233 625
Total net revenue 322,126 159,382
. EXPENSES

Operating 47,269 25,061
General and administrative 3,276 1,532
Pre-acquisition {note 10) 11,912 1,207
Interest on long-term debt 1,209 -
Other interest and finance income (362) 52
Depletion, depreciation and accretion {note 3) 57,447 21,031
Foreign exchange loss 57 68
Total expenses 120,808 48,951
Income before provision for income taxes 201,318 110,431
Provision for income taxes

Current (84,109) (74,564)

Future {60,710) (6,959)
Net income 56,499 28,908
Earnings per share, basic and diluted $0.44 _$0.25
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding,
basic and diluted 127,850,100 117,000,000

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF RETAINED EARNINGS (unaudited)
(US $000°s)

Three month periods
ended March 31,

2006 2005
. Retained earnings, beginning of period 278,373 157,303
Net income for the period 56,499 28,903
. Distribution of earnings (note 1) (48,188) -
~_Dividends , (50,000) -
Retained earnings, end of period 236,684 186,211




. ADDAX PETROLEUM CORPORATION

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (unaudited)
(US $000°s)

Three menth periods
ended March 31,

2006 2005
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income 56,499 28,908
ftems not affecting cash (note 7) 117,796 40,999
174,295 69,907
Changes in non-cash working capital (note 7) (22,203) (510)
152,092 69,397

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Expenditures on property, plant and equipment (102,439) (89,777}

(102.,439) (89,777)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
. Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt - 50,000
Repayment of long-term debt (80,000) (15,000)
Debt issue costs - (1,750)
Dividends paid (50,000) -
Proceeds from share issue (note 1) 371,050 -
Distribution of earnings (note 1) (48,138) -
192,862 33,250
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 242,515 12,870
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 6,708 3,882
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period 249,223 16,752

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements




ADDAX PETROLEUM CORPORATION
NOTES TQO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudited)
(USS$, except as noted. Tabular amounts in US$ 000s, except as noted)

1. GENERAL

Addax Petroleum Corporation (the “Corporation™) was incorporated under the Canada
Business Corporations Act on September 6, 2005 as a wholly owned subsidiary of The Addax
and Oryx Group Ltd. (“AOG”) for the purpose of acquiring all of the issued and outstanding
common shares of Addax Petroleum N.V., another wholly owned subsidiary of AQG, in
connection with the initial public offering of the common shares of the Corporation (the
“IPO”).

On February 16, 2006, the Corporation completed its IPO of 21 million common shares and
on February 24, 2006 it completed the issuance of an additional 2.1 million common shares
upon the exercise of an over-allotment option granted to the underwriters-by Addax Petroleum
Corporation in connection with the IPO.  Total net proceeds from the issuances were
approximately $371,050,000.

In conjunction with the completion of the PO, the Corporation acquired all of the issued and
outstanding commen shares of Addax Petroleum N.V. for cash consideration of $48,188,360
and the issuance of 117,000,000 common shares. The cash consideration has been accounted
for as a distribution of earnings. As AOG controls both the Corporation and Addax Petroleum
N.V., the acquisition occurred between entities under common control and was accounted for
in the books of the Corporation as a continuity of interests. Under this form of purchase
accounting, Addax Petroleum Corporation is deemed to have acquired Addax Petroleum N.V.
at book value. Subsequent to the acquisition, the Corporation’s financial statements presented
for comparative purposes reflect the financial position, results of operations and cash flows as
if the Corporation and Addax Petroleum N.V. had been combined since the inception of
Addax Petroleum N.V,

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The interim consolidated financial statements of the Corporation include the Corporation, its
wholly-owned subsidiaries and its interests in joint ventures, and have been prepared
following the same accounting policies as the audited consolidated financial statements of
Addax Petroleum N.V, as at December 31, 2005. The interim financial statements contain
disclosures that are supplemental to the Corporation’s annual audited consolidated financial
statements. Certain disclosures that are normally required to be included in the notes to the
annual audited consolidated financial statements have been condensed. These financial
statements should be read in conjunction with Addax Petroleum N.V.’s audited consolidated
financial statements and notes thereto for the year ended December 31, 2005.




ADDAX PETROLEUM CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(unaudited)
(US$, except as noted. Tabular amounts in US$ 000s, except as noted)

3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

March 31, December 31,
2006 2005
Oi! and natural gas properties 1,064,877 890,914
Accumulated depletion (464.889) (407,644)
599,988 483,270
Corporate assets 16,050 7,289
Accumulated depreciation (3,738) (3,536)
' 12,312 3,753
Balance 612,300 487,023
Property, plant and equipment by cost centre is as follows:
March 31, December 31,
2006 2005
Cost Centre
Nigeria 511,859 468,289
Cameroon 11,858 5,401
Gabon 9,879 9,580
Joint Development Zone 66,392 -
Other corporate assets 12,312 3,753
Balance, end of period 612,300 487,023




ADDAX PETROLEUM CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudited)
(USS, except as noted. Tabular amounts in US$ 000s, except as noted)

Included in property, plant and equipment are certain costs not subject to depletion and
depreciation as follows:

March 31, December 31,

2006 2005
Unproved properties
Cameroon 11,858 5,401
Gabon 9,879 9,580
Joint Development Zone 66,392 -
88,129 14,981

In March 2006, the Corporation entered into three production sharing contracts (“PSCs”) with
the Joint Development Authority which administers the Joint Development Zone (JDZ)
between Nigeria and S3o Tomé¢ e Principe.

4. SHARE CAPITAL

The Corporation is authorized to issue an unlimited number of common shares and an
unlimited number of preferred shares, issuable in series.

Issued and Outstanding

Three month period ended

March 31, 2006
Common
Shares Amount
Balance, beginning of period 117,000,100 20,010
Issued pursuant to IPQ 23,100,000 371,050
Balance, end of period 140,100,100 391,060

AOG plans to award up to 987,000 common shares of the Corporation it currently holds to
current employees and directors of the Corporation during the second quarter of the year.
Once awarded, the individuals will have 30 days to either accept or reject the award. Rejected
shares will be kept by AOG. The shares will vest as follows: one third at the IPO date
(February 2006); one third on the first anniversary of the IPO date; and one third on the
second anniversary of the IPO date. The fair. value at the date of grant of the common shares
awarded to and accepted by employees and directors of the Corporation will be expensed over
the vesting period.




ADDAX PETROLEUM CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudited)
(US$, except as noted. Tabular amounts in US$ 000s, except as noted)

5. INVENTORIES

March 31, December 31,

2006 2005
QOil products 43,523 19,269
Materials and supplies 45,953 43,484
Balance 89,476 62,753

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Corporation uses certain derivative financial instruments to manage its commodity prices
and foreign currency exposures. These financial instruments are not used for trading or
speculative purposes. The Corporation had the following financial derivatives outstanding as
at March 31, 2006:

Foreign currency forward

Remaining term April 2006 - December 2006
Amount $1.5 million / month
Average exchange rate

(United Stated dollar / Swiss Franc) 1.274

Contract value $398,000

7. CASH FLOWS

{a) Items not affecting cash

March 31, March 31,
2006 2005
Future income taxes 60,710 6,959
Depletion, depreciation and accretion 57,447 21,031
Change in fair value of derivatives 93 299
Other items, including foreign exchange {454) 12,710
Total items not affecting cash 117,796 40,999




+

ADDAX PETROLEUM CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudited)
(USS, except as noted. Tabular amounts in US$ 000s, except as noted)

(b) Changes in non-cash working capital

March 31, March 31,

2006 2005
Accounts receivable 10,926 24,365
Prepaid expenses (19,839) (76)
Inventories (14,004) (6,399)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (10,003) 44,231
Tax and royalties payable 11,997 (60,101)
Deferred revenue (1,280) (2,530)
Changes in non-cash working capital (22,203) (510)
(c) Other cash flow information

Period ended March 31,

2006 2005
Interest paid 1,183 3,283

Income taxes paid - -

The Corporation pays the Petroleum Profits Tax and Royalties in Nigeria through government
liftings taken-in-kind. During the period, such government liftings totalled $139,566,000.

8. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES
Included in the consolidated financial statements are the following items that represent the

Corporation’s interests in the jointly controlled assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of the
joint ventures.

March 31, December 31,

2006 2005

Non-current assets 87,720 14,982
Current assets 42,098 6,749
Non-current liabilities - -
Current liabilities (162,444) (40,683)
Net liabilities : 32,626 18,952
Income - -
Expenses 8118 10,915

9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS



ADDAX PETROLEUM CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudited)
(USS$, except as noted. Tabular amounts in US$ 000s, except as noted)

The following transactions took place between the Corporation and AOG and its other
subsidiary companies:

March 31, March 31,

2006 2005
Sales to Addax B.V. 173,361 100,201
Charges:
Addax Bunkering Services (1,133) -
AOG Advisory Services Ltd (625) (625)
Addax B.V. (337) (572)
Addax Limited (14) (248)

The sales to Addax B.V., the sole marketer of the Corporation’s crude oil, were made on the
same terms and conditions as with Addax B.V.’s non-related customers. The charges from
AOG Advisory Services Ltd, include management services, trademark licence and
information technology support. Charges from Addax Bunkering Services are for the
purchase of fuel for the Corporation’s bunkering operations.  Other items include charges
froin Addax Limited for the refund of services paid on behalf of the Corporation. Addax B.V.
and Addax Limited are subsidiaries of AOG.

Amounts due from (to) related parties as included in accounts receivable and accounts payable
in the consolidated balance sheet are as follows:

N

March 31, December 31,

2006 2005
Addax B.V. 57,040 109,694
AOG Advisory Services Ltd. 435 281
Addax Limited (2,328) (2,943)

10. PRE-ACQUISITION

Included in pre-acquisition expenses are costs related to the Corporation's New Venture
activity. Related expenditures are charged to the income statement pending finalization of the
Corporation's rights to a license. These costs can include seismic purchases, studies (in-house
and external) and consulting.
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RECEIVED

Report in Respect of Voting Results Pursuant to Section 11.3 of nmm J g A 58
National Instrument 51-102 — Continuous Disclosure Obligations. o
S PICE OF IMTERNATIONAL
In respect of the Annual and Special Meeting of shareholders of Addax Petroleum Corporation (the £Corporation?) FIRANCE
held June 28, 2006 (the “Meeting”), the following sets forth a brief description of each matter which was voted
upon at the Meeting and the cutcome of the vote:

Description of Matter | Outcome of Vote

1. Ordinary resolution to approve the appointment of Deloitte & | Resolution approved
Touche LLP, Chartered Accountants, to serve as auditor of the
Corporation until the next annual meeting of shareholders, at such
remuneration as may be approved by the Audit Committee of the
Corporation.

2. Ordinary resolution to approve the eight nominees for election as | Resolution approved
directors of the Corporation, each director elected will hold office
until the close of the next annual meeting of sharehotders, or until
his successor is duly elected or appointed, as described in the
Management Proxy Circular of the Corporation dated May 24, 2006
(the “Proxy Circular”).

3. Ordinary resolution to authorize, approve and adopt the long term | Resolution approved
incentive plan of the Corporation, all or more particularly set forth

and described in the Proxy Circular.
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ADDAX
PETROLEUM
NOTICE OF ANNUAL AND SPECIAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that an annual and special meeting (the “Meeting”) of the
holders (“Shareholders™) of common shares (“Common Shares”) of Addax Petroleum Corporatien (the
“Corporation™) will be held in the Sky Room at the Carlu, 7* Floor, 444 Yonge Street, Toronto, Ontario
on Wednesday, June 28, 2006 at 10:00 a.m. (Eastern Standard Time) for the following purposes, which
are described in more detail in the Management Proxy Circular of the Corporation (the “Circular”)
accompanying this Notice, namely:

L. to receive the audited financial statements of the Corporation together with the Report of the
Auditor thereon for the year ended December 31, 2005;

2. to appoint auditors of the Corporation for the ensuing year at such remuncration as may be
approved by the Audit Committee of the Corporation;

3 to elect the directors of Addax Petroleum Corporation to hold office until the next annual meeting
of Shareholders or until their successors are elected or appointed;

4. to consider and, if deemed advisable, to pass an ordinary resolution approving the Long Term
Incentive Plan of the Corporation, as more particularly described in the Circular of the
Corporation dated May 24, 2006, and

5. to transact such other business as may properly come before the Meeting or any adjournment
thereof.

Only Shareholders of record at the close of business on May 24, 2006 will be entitled to notice of
and to vote at the Meeting or any adjournment thereof.

If you are unable to attend the Meeting in person, please complete, sign and deliver a
proper form of proxy to the Corporation’s transfer agent, Computershare Trust Company of
Canada (“Computershare”), 100 University Avenue, 9" Floor, Toronto, Ontarioc MS5J 2Y1
Attention: Proxy Department. In order to be valid, proxies must be received by Computershare no
later than 10:00 a.m. (Eastern Standard Time) on June 26, 2006 or, if the Meeting is adjourned, by
10:00 a.m. (Eastern Standard Time) on the second business day prior to the date on which the
Meeting is reconvened.

By Order of the Board of Directors of
Addax Petroleum Corporation

(Signed)
Geneva, Switzerland David Codd
May 24, 2006 Chief Legal Officer and Corporate Secretary




ADDAX

PETROLEUM

MANAGEMENT PROXY CIRCULAR

DATED MAY 24, 2006

SOLICITATION OF PROXIES

THIS MANAGEMENT PROXY CIRCULAR (THE “CIRCULAR™) IS FURNISHED IN
CONNECTION WITH THE SOLICITATION OF PROXIES BY THE MANAGEMENT OF
ADDAX PETROLEUM CORPORATION (the “Corporation™) for use at the Annual and Special
Meeting (the “Meeting”) of the shareholders of the Corporation (the “Shareholders”) and at any
adjournment thereof. The Meeting will be held in the Sky Room at the Carlu, 7" Floor, 444 Yonge
Street, Toronto, Ontario on Wednesday, June 28, 2006 at 10:00 a.m. (Eastern Standard Time) for the
purposes set out in the Notice of Annual and Special Meeting (the “Netice™) accompanying this Circular,

The solicitation of proxies is intended to be made primarily by mail but may also be undertaken
by way of telephone, facsimile transmission or other electronic means of communication or in person by
the directors and officers of the Corporation. The cost of the solicitation of proxies will be borne by the
Corporation. Except where otherwise stated, the information contained herein is given as of May 24,
2006.

PROXY INSTRUCTIONS
APPOINTMENT OF PROXIES

Those Shareholders who wish to be represented at the Meeting by proxy must complete, sign and
deliver a proper form of proxy to the Corporation’s transfer agent, Computershare Trust Company of
Canada. (“Computershare”), 100 University Avenue, 9th Floor, Toronto, Ontario, M5J 2Y 1, Attention:
Proxy Department. In order to be valid, proxies must be received by Computershare no later than
10:00 a.m. (Eastern Standard Time) on June 26, 2006 or, if the Meeting is adjourned, by 10:00 a.m.
(Eastern Standard Time) on the second business day prior to the date on which the Meeting is reconvened.

The document appointing a proxy must be in writing and completed and signed by the
Shareholder or the Shareholder’s attorney authorized in writing or, if the Shareholder is a corporation,
under its corporate seal or by an officer or attorney thereof duly authorized. Persons signing as officers,
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attorneys, executors, administrator, trustees, etc., should so indicate and provide satisfactory evidence of
such authority.

THE PERSONS NAMED IN THE ENCLOSED FORM OF PROXY ARE DIRECTORS
AND/OR OFFICERS OF THE CORPORATION. A SHAREHOLDER WISHING TO APPOINT
SOME OTHER PERSON AS HIS OR HER REPRESENTATIVE AT THE MEETING MAY DO
SO BY EITHER: (I) CROSSING OUT THE NAMES OF THE MANAGEMENT NOMINEES
AND LEGIBLY PRINTING THE OTHER PERSON’S NAME (WHO NEED NOT BE A
SHAREHOLDER) IN THE BLANK SPACE PROVIDED IN THE ENCLOSED FORM OF
PROXY, OR (II) COMPLETING ANOTHER VALID FORM OF PROXY. In any case, the form of
proxy should be dated and signed by the Shareholder or the Shareholder’s attorney authorized in writing,
or if the Shareholder is a corporation, under its corporate seal, or by an officer or attorney thereof duly
authorized.

REVOCATION OF PROXIES

A Shareholder who has submitted a proxy has the power to revoke it before the proxy is
exercised. In addition to revocation in any manner permitted by law, a Shareholder may revoke the proxy
with an instrument in writing signed and delivered to Computershare at any time up to and including the
last business day preceding the day of the Meeting or any adjournment thereof or deposited with the
chairman of the Meeting on the date of the Meeting or any adjournment thereof prior to the
commencement of the Meeting. The document used to revoke a proxy must be in writing and completed
and signed by the Sharcholder or his or her attorney authorized in writing or, if the Sharcholder is a
corporation, under its corporate seal or by an officer or duly authorized attorney thereof. As well, a
Shareholder who has given a proxy may attend the Meeting in person (or where the Shareholder is a
corporation, its authorized representative may attend), revoke the proxy (by indicating such intention to
the chairman of the Meeting before the proxy is exercised) and vote in person (or abstain from voting).

EXERCISE OF DISCRETION WITH RESPECT TO PROXIES

The Common Shares represented by the enclosed proxy will be voted or withheld from voting on
any motion, by ballot or otherwise, in accordance with any indicated instructions. IN THE ABSENCE
OF SUCH DIRECTION, SUCH COMMON SHARES WILL BE VOTED IN FAVOUR OF ALL
MATTERS IDENTIFIED IN THE NOTICE ACCOMPANYING THIS CIRCULAR. If any
amendment or variation to the matters identified in the Notice is proposed at the Meeting or any
adjournment thereof, or if any other matters properly come before the Meeting or any adjournment
thercof, the enclosed proxy confers discretionary authority on the proxy nominee to vote on such
amendments or variations or such other matters according to the best judgment of the appointed
proxyholder. As at the date of this Circular, neither the directors nor management of the Corporation arc
aware of any amendments or variations or other matters to come before the Meeting.

INFORMATION FOR BENEFICIAL HOLDERS OF COMMON SHARES

The information set forth in this section is of significant impoertance to Shareholders who do
net hold Common Shares in their own name. Almost all of the Shareholders of the Corporation do
not hold Commeon Shares in their own name.

Shareholders who de not hold their Common Shares in their own name (referred to in this
Circular as “Beneficial Shareholders™) should note that only proxies deposited by Sharcholders
whose names appear on the records of the Corporation as the registered holders of Common Shares
can be recognized and acted upon at the Meeting.
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If Common Shares are listed in an account statement provided to a shareholder by a broker, then
in almost all cases those Common Shares will not be registered in the shareholder’s name on the records
of the Corporation. Such Common Shares will more likely be registered under the name of the
shareholder’s broker or an agent of that broker. In Canada, the vast majority of such shares are registered
under the name of CDS & Co. (the registration name for The Canadian Depository for Securities Limited,
which acts as nominee for many Canadian brokerage firms). Common Shares held by brokers or their
agents or nominees can only be voted (for or against resolutions) or withheld from voting upon the
instructions of the Beneficial Shareholder. Without specific instructions, brokers and their agents and
nominees are prohibited from voting Common Shares on behalf of their clients.

Therefore, Beneficial Shareholders should ensure that instructions respectmg the voting of
their Common Shares are communicated to the appropriate person.

Applicable regulatory policy requires intermediaries/brokers to seek voting instructions from
Beneficial Shareholders in advance of shareholders’ meetings. Every intermediary/broker has its own
mailing procedures and provides its own return instructions to clients, which should be carefully followed
by Beneficial Shareholders in order to ensure that their Common Shares are voted at the Meeting. The
form of proxy supplied to a Beneficial Shareholder by its broker (or the agent of that broker) is similar to
the form of proxy provided to registered shareholders of the Corporation. However, its purpose is limited
to instructing the registered sharcholder (the broker or agent of the broker) how to vote on behalf of the
Beneficial Shareholder. The majority of brokers now delegate responsibility for obtaining instructions
from clients to ADP Investor Communications Corporation (“ADP™), ADP typically asks Beneficial
Shareholders to return proxy forms to ADP. ADP then tabulates the results of all instructions received
and provides instructions respecting voting of shares represented at the Meeting. A Beneficial
Shareholder receiving an ADP proxy cannot use that proxy to vote Common Shares directly at the
Meeting; the ADP proxy must be returned to ADP well in advance of the Meeting in order to have
the Common Shares voted.

Although a Beneficial Shareholder may not be recognized directly at the Meeting for the purposes
of voting Common Shares registered in the name of a broker (or agent of the broker), a Beneficial
Shareholder may attend the Meeting as proxyholder for the registered shareholder and vote the Common
Shares in that capacity. Beneficial Sharcholders who wish to attend at the Meeting and indirectly vote
their Common Shares as proxyholder for the registered shareholder should enter their own names in the
blank space on the instrument of proxy provided to them and return same to their broker (or the broker’s
agent) in accordance with the instructions provided by such broker (or agent), well in advance of the
Meeting.

Unless otherwise indicated, all references in this Circular to dollar amounts are to U.S. dollars.

ADDAX PETROLEUM CORPORATION

The Corporation is an international oil and gas exploration and production company focused on Africa and
the Middle East. The Corporation is the largest independent oil producer in Nigeria, and has increased its
crude oil production from an average of 8,800 barrels per day for 1998 to an average to date of
approximately 80,000 barrels per day for 2006. The Corporation has grown by acquiring under-developed
properties in established basins and has increased its production by utilizing advanced and proven
technologies.

The Corporation was incorporated pursuant to the Canada Business Corporations Act (the “CBCA™) on
September 6, 2005. Pursuant to a share transfer agreement among the Corporation, The Addax and Oryx
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Group Ltd. (“AOG”) and Addax Mining Holdings B.V. dated February 10, 2006, the Corporation
acquired all of the issued and outstanding shares of Addax Petroleum N.V. (“APNV”™), a corporation
incorporated under the laws of the Netherlands Antilles. The Corporation now carries on the business
previously carried on by APNV, of evaluating and pursuing oil and gas exploration and production in
Africa and the Middle East.

As of the close of business on May 24, 2006, the Corporation had 140,100,100 Common Shares
outstanding.

BUSINESS OF THE MEETING
Regular Business
RECEIPT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT

Shareholders will receive and consider the audited financial statements of the Corporation for the
year ended December 31, 2005 and the Report of the Auditor thereof will be placed before the Meeting.

APPOINTMENT OF AUDITOR

Management of the Corporation proposes to nominate Deloitte & Touche LLP, Chartered
Accountants, to serve as auditor of the Corporation until the next annual meeting of Shareholders, at such
remuneration as may be approved by the Audit Committee of the Corporation. Deloitte & Touche LLP
were first appointed auditors of the Corporation on November 23, 2005.

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Corporation’s articles of incorporation provide for the board of directors to consist of a
minimum of 1 and a maximum of 11 directors.

The following table includes information about each of the nominees for election as a director of
the Corporation, including the number of Common Shares beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, or
over which control or direction is exercised as at May 24, 2006. Each director elected will hold office
until the close of the next annual meeting of shareholders, or until his successor is duly elected or
appointed. The persons named below will be presented for election at the Meeting as management’s
nominees. Management does not contemplate that any of these nominees will be unable to serve as a
director but, if that should occur for any reason prior to the Meeting, the persons designated in the
enclosed form of proxy reserve the right to vote for other nominees at their direction.




Number of Common
Shares Beneficially
Owned Directly or
Name and Yeor Indirectly or
Municipality of of Position with Director Controlled, or Principal Occupation and Principal
Residence Birth the Corporation Since Directed Positions Held During the Last Five Years
Peter Dey @® 1941 Director, Chairman of the 2005 27,100 Chairman, Paradigm Capital Inc.
Toronta, Ontario Board of Directors and Former Partner, Osler, Hoskin &
Chairman of the Harcourt LLP,
Corporate Governance, Director of Workbrain Corporation and
Nominating anc former Chairman of Morgan Stanley Canada
Compensation Committee Limited.
Jean Clavde Gandur™® 1949 Chief Exccutive Officer and 2005 6,024,250 Officer of the Cotporation,
London, Director Chairman of the Advisory Board of The
United Kingdom Addax and Oryx Group Ltd.
Non-Executive Chairman of AXMIN Inc.
Brian Anderson @™ 1943 Director and Chairman of 2005 11,900 Chairman and Managing Director of
Kowloon, Hong Kong the Technical and Rescrves Anderson Encrgy (Hong Kong) Limited.
Committee
James Davic™® 1943  Director 2005 43,000 Director of Brompton Group of Funds,
Toronto, Ontario Profico Encrgy Management Ltd., Range
Royalty Management Ltd., Navigo
Energy Inc. and Taylor Gas
Management Lid.
Prior to July 2002, Managing Dircctor of
RBC Dominion Sccuritics Inc.
Stephen Paul de 1942 Director 2005 37,050 Independent Consultant.
Heinrich®™® Associate with Beldi & Cie S.A.
Dully, Switzerland \{icc Chairman of Advisory Board of
‘ The Addax and Oryx Group Ltd.
Gerry Macey™® 1946 Director 2005 22,400 Dircctor of Verenex Energy Inc. and
Culgary, Alberta ’ PanCrient Encrgy Corp.
Prior thereto, from 2002 to March 2004,
Executive Vice President and President,
International New Ventures Exploration,
Division of EnCana Corporation and from
1999 to 2002, Exccutive Vice President,
Exploration, of PanCanadian Petrolcum
Corporation,
Afolabi Oladele™ 1951 Dircetor 2005 1,500 Vice President, Oil and Gas, Capital

Mississauga, Ontario

Alliance Nigeria.

Chaimman of Subsurface Asscts
Management Co. and Formwork Lid.
Director of Freczone Fabrication
Intemational Qil & Gas Facilitics
Fabrication Co., Dorman Long

Engincering Co,, Sudcllctra Nigeria Lid. and
The Addax and Oryx Group Lid.



Notes:

M
(2)
3

(3

Number of Common
Shares Beneficially
Owned Directly or
Name and Year Indirectly or
Municipality of of Position with Director Controlled, or Principal Occupation and Principal
Residence Birth the Corporation Since Directed Positions Held During the Last Five Years
Wesley Twiss®® 1945  Dircctor and Chairman of 2005 11,000 Director and Audit Committee Chair of the
Calgary, Alberia the Audit Committee Canadian Oil Sands Trust, Hydrogenics
Corporation, Enbridge Income Fund, Keyera
Facilitics Income Fund and EPCOR.

Mz, Gandur has been an officer of APNY since 2002 and became a director and officer of the Corpotation in 2005,

Member of the Audit Commitice,

Member of the Technical and Reserves Committee.

Member of the Corporatec Governance, Nominating and Compensation Commitiee.

Hydromet Financial Corp., which is beneficially owned by Mr. Gandur, is a significant shareholder in The Addax and Oryx Group
Ltd. which itself bencficially owns, directly or indirectly, all the outstanding shares of Addax Mining Holdings B.V. a principal holder
of Common Shares.

No proposed director of the Corporation:

(a) is, as at the date of the Circular, or has been, within the 10 years before the date of the
Circular, a director or executive officer of any company (including the Corporation), that
while that person was acting in that 